




OVERVIEW

REED ELSEVIER

2013 Financial highlights

Underlying revenue up 2% E3% excluding biennial exhibition cycling

Underlying adjusted operating profit up 5%

Adjusted EPS up 9% to5Op for Reed Elsevier PLC up 5% to ft99 for Reed Elsevier NV

Reported EPS up 9% to 488p for Reed Elsevier PLC up 5% to O91 for Reed Elsevier NV

Full year dividend up 7% to 246Op for Reed Elsevier PLC and up 8% to O5O for

Reed Elsevier NV

Return on invested capital up O4ptsto 121%

Net debt stable at 3lbn 2lx EBITDA pensions and lease adjusted ELóx unadjusted
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Chairman statement

Dividends

The Boards are recommending egualised finaldividends of l7.95p

for Reed ElsevrerPLC and e0.374 icr Reed Flsevier NV up

respectively 6/ and against the pr or year This hr ngs the total

dividends for the year to 24.60p for Reed Etsev er PLC up7 and

0506 for Reed Etsevier NV up 8% The differ ing growth rater of

the nterirr and finat dividends forthe two parentcompanies reflect

movements in the sterling euro exchange rate between dividend

announcement dates

BaLance sheet

Net debt was 63.lbii/3.7brr un 31 Dccc rrber 2013 ompared with

3.1 brr/3.Bbn last year Net debt/EBIT DA on pensions arrd tease

adjusted basis for 2013 was lx down from 22x last year and on

an unadjusted basis itwas 1.6x downfrom 1.7x lastyear Adjusted

operating cash flew conversion was 91 up from 95 in 2012 with

capitalexpenditureat5 of revenues

Share buybacks

Strong cash flow togetherwith proceeds from the disposalof

businesses enabled us to step up our shsre buyback programme
while maintaining strong balance sheet In 2013 we deployed

total of 160Dm on share buybacks and by thc end of February

2014 we had deployed an additionalll00m In 2014 although we

expect disposal proceeds lobe lower we intend to deploy total of

600rrr on share buybacks based on our strong balance sheet and

cash flow

Growth of underlyii revcnu which ox lude the effects of currency

translation acqurs lions and disposals aias 2% or excluding

the cyc ing effect of ennial exhibitions with allfive business

areas contributing to underlying growth Our reported revenues

dccl ned by l% to 6035m expressed in sterling and 5% to 7121m

expr es wd in cures or down at constant exchange rates

reflecting disposal made ac rossthe businesses

Underlying adjusted ciperating profits grew 5/ with the

improvxment in profrtab ty reflecting combination of process

innovation and portfolio development across all business areas

Adjusted operating profits grew 4/a to 749m exprcssed rn

sterlirlcdown at C2O64rrr expressed in cur os

Adjusted earnings pe share grew to 54.Op for Reed Elsevier

PLC and to 0.99 for Reed Elsevier NV Reported earnings per

share grew to48 Bp for Reed Elsevie FL and to 0.91 for

Reed FlsevierNV

The Boards

In September Duncan Palrrrer Chief rranciol Officer offered his

resignat on from the Boards of Reed Elsevier This was result of

family circumstances which unexpectedly required him to return Ii

the US Duncan has tde an important ontribution to the

business and we wish him the bestforthefuture In January2016

we announced Nick Luffwould take over from Duncan Nick ha
beE Chief Financial Officer at Centnica plc the UK energygroup

since 2007 and prior to that was at PO the 155 100 logistics arrd

shipping group Nicks manyyears of experience as Chief Firrancial

Officer at FTSE 30 company and involvement in dual UK/US and

Netherlands based listings make him sn excellentfit for Reed

Elsever HewiDjoin the company in 2014

Following the introduction of new legislation in the Netherlands

and the approval of changes to the articles of ascociation of Reed

Elsevier NV by its shareholders the Dir ector adopted unitary

board structure in May2013 This further alignr the sIr ucture of the

Iwo parent rnnmpanies

During the year we also continued the process of progressively

refreshing the non executive elemcrrt of the Boards AttheAnncial

General Meetings in April number of hangeswere made Sr

David Reid and Mark Elliott retired as Non Executive Directors

after loyears service Lisx Hook who joined the Boards inApril

2006 became the Senior Independent Director Asp eviously

announced Wolffrart Hauser joined the Boards in Apr would like

to thank David and Mark for their rananyyear of advice arid widom
and welcome Wolfhartto Reed Elsevier

Corporate responsibility

Our focus on corporate responsibility remains source of str ength

for Reed Elsevier
fully support allour efforts to ensure the

highest levels of ethical managenrent We are mak ng consistent

progress against our corporate responsibility objectives and with

our commitment to inc rease the diversity of our Boards

Anthony Habgood

ha cm an

Anthony Habgood

Chirman
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Chief Executive Officers report
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2013pogress

In 2013 we remained focused on rnproc ing the business profile of

our assets and the quality of our earnings We did this primai ty

through organic investmenl

We ma ntained our positive operating financial momentum

throughout the year Allfive major business areas aga delivered

underl/ing revenue and
pr

otit growth We improved profitability

throug process ir novation and por tfolio developrrient

Bythe nd of 2013 81 ofourrevenueswere in ourtargeted

formats of electron and facetn face generating average

underlying revenue growth rates of 5/ to

During the year wc continued the reshz ping of our portfolio

making small numberof data conten and exhibition

acqLiioitior in highgrowth markets ar geographies We also

continL ed our disposal activity exiting businesses that are not

likelyto tr arrsforrn into the type of busir ess thatwe want to be in

or who do not see significantfuture value creation for Reed

Elsevie We also exited businesses wh re we have made

decision not to investfurther to pursue global leadership

05 tio her example we completed th disposalof our

empt% mew screening business from witnin sk Solutions and

exited additional
pr

nt magazines within Business Information

th strong bala ice sheet strong cash flow characteristics and

with av rage acquisition spend comfortably covered byfree

cash flow ter vidends we continued take pragmatic

approach to ensuring thatthevatue compounding with tho

businenstranslates into shareholderw lue As part of this we

ncreaxed oursharo buyback pragramne to 1600m 2013

Financial performance

Underlying revenue growth was or exclUding the effects of

biennial exhibition cycling Underlying operating profit grew

and adjusted earnings per share grew 7% at constant exchange

rates Despite continued organic investment in our business and

the completion of number of smallacquisitions our return on

nvested capital increasedto 12.1o.Atthe end of 2013 our net

debt/EBITDA ratio was times on pensions and lease adjufed

basis oi 1.6 times on an unadjusted basis both slightly low than

the prioryear and we remain in leverage range with which we

are vecy comfortable

Scientific Technical Medical achieved good volume growth in

primary research submissions and usage and in databases

tools across scientific tecfrnical medical markets Journal

quality as measured by 1w pact Factor oritirrued to nprove

Electronic revenues which now account for 12 of total revenues

grew strongly across all segments

All business segrrients in Rfsk Solutions achieved st rang growth

in 2013 Growth in the insurance segnn nt was driven by good take

up of new products and services expansion into adjacent market

verticals and volume growth in the care underwriting business

Business Services growth reflected strong demand far identity

verification and fraud detection solutions Growth
ii government

revenues reflected new product ales

In Business Information underlying revenLie growth accelerated

in 2013 reflecting continued good growth in data services and

modest growth elsewhere

In Legal underly ng revenue growth was maintained in 2013

despite subdued market conditions in the US and Europe

Electronic revenues continued to show good growtfi largely offset

by print declines The roll out of new product releases cant nued

with over 70% of US legal customers activated an the New exis

platform at period end and new product usage progressing well

Exhibitions maintained strong underly ng revenue growth of /1

excluding the effect of biennial show cycling While growth

Europe was rriadest the US Japan Br azil and other markets all

grew strongly

.6%

6%

106%

2010 20i1 2012 2013

20 2011 201c 2013
2012 ROiC restated far A519
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Elsevier tnurtched Clirica/Keyin 2012 providing physicians with

access ta/er ding Elsevier and thirdpar ty reference and

evidence based medical on ent in as nqle fully integrated site

Since Ia inch C/in/ca Keyhas grown rapdly and currontlyserves

over 1010 nsttuto as

In medical education Elsevier serv stc dents of medicine

nursing md allied atth protessions through print rid electronic

books aswellas electronic solutions Fe example Evolve art

on/me sute of solutions desioned to help students of nursing and

allied health profosr ions had over4m reg stered usors ri 2013

Elsevier database arid workflow produ ts provide range

of too/s nd so/Lit ons for profess onak ir the science

technical and med calfields Customers nclude mdemic

and corporate researchers rese arch ad mnsti atot sand

he al/h professionals

oracademk arid cc rporate resear hers significant products

ricluoe Scopus Roaxys and Knctve/ Scopes is the largest abstract

and citat on database of research literature in the world with over

dOm abs ract and bibliographic informat on records from more

than 20000 peer revicwedjo irnals and t000 international

pub/ishnr days ins wad ny vulutiuti tc
syttttielic ahernisrs

ntegrati age aemica reaction and compc und data searching with

synthesia planning

Knove/prov desa range of webbased productiv tytoolsfor

the engir eer ng comraun ty integrating technical information

with ana ytic arid sear to dIiver trusted answers md
dr veirnavat on

aerves academ cane governme at research

administrators through its Sc Va/sub of aroducts that help them

eva uate their itast tLrtions research performance determine

eab strategies nid mcrease int tLtt on effkic

Leveraging bibliome tric data such as citations from Scopus SciVa/

Spot/ight/ elps institutions and goverrtmentsto dent by their

dtstinctice research strengths evaluate performance and

tic ease the ocus of their research and oeveloprnent

nvestrne nts Sci Va/Funding ass sts rese rchers and nv/but onc in

identifyir grants th it are most relevant their research areas

Lot healt irate profeasiona Flsevier develops productc to deliver

patient spec i/ic solul ens at the point of are to improve patiert

outcome Its c/in cal solutions include Go/dStandard which

provides nitinaI infer mation drug inter ens to assist effective

treatrner and CR/cl Recocirce Center wttic provides data driven

framework to suppo murses uradentah ing procedures

Scientific technical trtedial infortamat on markets ave good

long term growth characte slice he importance ot research and

development to economic performance and competit ye positioning

is wel understood by governments academ institutions arid

corporat ens this is reflected in tIme long term growth in research

and development spend end in the number of cm earchers

worldwide Crow/ti in health market is avert byageitig populations

developed markets ris ng prosperity developing mar kets

arid the increasing focus tin mprovi ig edicaloutcomes rind

effciencv Gven that significant propnrhon of screntific recearah

and healthcare is funded directly or md ec/ly by govet nrmments

spe nding is inflLienced bygovernntental budgetary con derationc

The comrr itmetatto research and health provisic does however

remain high even in more difficult budgetary environ nents

Elseviers strategic goal is to lead the way in prey ng nfot mation

solutions that advance science tec hnology and ealth To achieve

this Elseviet creates solutions thc In c/led deep insight ate the

way its users wet and the outcomes/hey are seeking to achieve

strives for excellence neon ent serv cc and cxc ution constantly

adapts arid revi/alises its prr ductbusiness mode/s and

technology and leverages its insti utional skills assets and

resources to promote innovation and efficient

Elsevier sstr ategic pr ot ties are to cent niete to net ease content

volume and quality to expand cot tent coveragr building out

integrated solutions combining Elseviet third pa tyand customer

data to increase content
ettility using Srraar Cotater to citable

new msolutions to combine conte it wit analytics arid

technology focused on measurably imp ovng product city
and

out omesforr.ustomers and to continue to drive operatonal

eficicrcy arid ecct venea

ri
the primary reseat ch market Elsevier aims to grow volume

through new journal launches expansior of author tysjournalc

and growth from emer ging naarkets to en hance
petal by by bui ng

on our premiurnt brands and to add value to core platforms by

mplementing new capabilities sue as advanced

recommendations on 3cc meLd cctand social abe i/ion

through Mendeley

In c/in cal reference markets priorities are to expand content

coverage including cerising taigft qua/dy/hit part7 content for

C/mica/Key as well ac cc er com isme tagging/a bk ode
assets across products
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Strong voLume growth in primary research submissions and

usage and in databases tools across the scientihc technicaL

and medical segments Electronic revenues which now account

for 72% fthe total grew strongly across all segments Print

book sates and pharma promotion continued to decline

Underly revenue grew 24 and underlyrng ad usted operabng

proftsq ew31u

In
pr ma research growth article sucmissions and usage

emained strong acr oss the screntiflc te hnicatand medrcal

segmen id jourr at goat ty as measu md by Impact Factor

co nur to Improve Revonee growth was drrven by solid

subscrrptron renewuls and new sates othor pays or

authors fonder pays artrcle volumes ontrnued to grow

strongly frori sma base Good growth ri
screntrfic databases

toots and electronrc clrnical solutrons vas also supported by

strong sates

Prrnt book tes and pharma promotion conhnued to dectine

reflectrng combrnation otto mat migr ron arid structural

changes in tt pharmaceutrcal ndustry

Por tfolro development cont nued 2013 Drsposals included

Elsevier Busrness Intelhgence and number of srrrall print arid

pharma focused assets We supported our organIc growth

strategywith srrrall targeted acquisitions r3clud ng Mendeley

an online reference management and collaboratiomr solution

2014 Outlook

The customer envirorrment remains broadly urrchanqed on

last year witt vanat ons bygeographyand customer segn3ent

We expect continuod volume growth and strong demand for

electronic products and solutions and continued declines in print

book and pharma promotion evenues Overallwe expect another

year of modest underlying mevenLie growth in 2014
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man ged byt re LoxisNexis eqal Pr fee ionabu arese

hc egol roles wool bus ness so dist ibulee Risk Solutions

pr
oduc into Icq it market in thc US and internaLon cIty
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cIa crd cria
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man cgem nt idc itymanagert ent aud detect or crcdit risk

ii cc mc coompl once calit ow

your ustoi cc and anti money tauridoriri 1EAML prud cto The
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Identity Management
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LexisNexis RiskView
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Risk Solut or continues to locus on develop ng pipeline of new

solut on to drive growth in existing busir ess segments and

selected adjacent mar kets and geographies In 2813 this strategy

was rein orced witl number of focused am quisitions

In the Inc ura ace bus ness Risk Solution acquired Mapflow an

industry leading goographic risk assess nent technology

company baed in DubI Ireland Maptlc ws technology

combined with sk Solutions comprehensive data advanced

analytics suoercorr put rg platform HPCC Systems and linking

apabilities elp corrmerc at and home insurers bettor

understand propei ty tevec geographic cr1 risk to make more

nlormecl underwrit ng decisions

In Business Ser vices Risk Solutions acquired the remaining stake

in World orr pliancc leading providei cfcustomerarrd vendor

screening content to complement existing AML and compliance

solutions Risk Solu ions also acquired RSASecurilys consumer

Knowleoge Based Authentication technologyto drivefurther

innovaticin arid strengthen its leadership pos tion in identity

manage acent In Health Care the acquisition of Enclarity

supplerrentsthc existing identity arid fraud waste and abuse

solution with the most comprehensive provider infor mation

ova loblc The trans tion of MEDai from sevierto Risk Solutions

Health C-ar busnecs was announced er abling the combination of

MEDa clinical expertise th Risk Solu ions analytics data and

HPCCte hnologyto create leading clinic clanalytics solutons

ftc idenlity management and risk evalur tion solutions provided

by Risk Solutions utilise comprehensive database platforms of

publ rccords and proprietary infor mation with more than

petaby es of unique data which makes tthe largest database of

ts kind in the US market today LexisNexiAccurint is flagship

product powered bytheflPCCtechnolocy This market4eadirrg

techrolcgycnabcs Risk Solutioristo pro ide its cLstomers with

highly elevant search results swiftly and to ci eatc new low cost

solution gu ckly and efficien ly It is also increasingly used across

other Reed Elsev or markets such as cc al and Scierrtit

Technic Medical

In Fobru cry 2813 Risk Solutions comple ed the sale of its

Sc reenirig business This allows ittci increase its locus on

higher-c rowth segments leveraging its orc data technolcigy and

analytical capabilities The Screerung bu.oness presented limited

opportu aities to apply these capabilit es generate unique

cListomr varue sustained growth and superior mar ns

Risk Solutions operates rriarketswith strong ong term

underlying growth drivers including insurance Lirrderwriting

transactions insurancc heaithcare tax and entitlement fraud

credit defaults and financ altraud regulatorycompliarrce and due

diligence requirements surroundi
ag

customer enrolment and

security and priva.y corisidoratioris

In the insurance segment owth supported by ncreasing

transactional activity in the auto property and lift in cir ance

markets and the ncr easing adoption by insurance carriers of more

sophisticated data arid analytics iii the prospectiny Lindcrwrting

arid claims evaluation pi ocesses to assess underwriting risk

increase competitiveness and improve operating cost efficiency

Transactional activity is driven bygr owth in insura ace quoting

and policy switching as consumers seek better policy terms

This act vity is stimulated by increasing competition between

insurance companies high levelc of carrier adver icing and

sing levels of inter net quoting and policy nding

number olfactors support growth for sk solutions in the

financial services market including new cred toriginations

cor tinued high fraud losses stringent regulatory compliance

requirements and increasing arti money laundering fines In

receivables management demand is dr von mai dy by levels of

consumer debt arid the prospect of recover ng that debt which is

impacted by employment conditions in the US In corporate

markets demand is supported by growth in online i-eta sales and

continued high levels of credit card fraud Growth in goverrcmc it

markets is driven by the increasing use oldata and analytics to

combat cr irninalactivity fraud and tax evas on and to address

security issues The level and timing of demand in thi mar ket is

influenced by government fund ng and revenue considerations In

Health Care there arc numcrous growth drvene torfraud and

analytics solutions including the expansion of insurance coverage

underthe Affordable Care Act and the focus on cost containment

and better patient outcomes
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Adjusted op rating protit

AU business segments achieved strong growth in 2013 The

improvo ment in adjusted operating ma gin largeLy reflects the

impact of portfolio changes as underly ng cost growth was in

line with underlying revenue growth reflecting continued new

product developmenL

Underly ng revenues grew and under lyir adjusted operat ng

profits grew

Revenue growtf the insurance segmentwas dr vcn by good take

up of ne products md serve es across the insurance wor ktlow

expanri in into adjacent market ye rtrcalr and volume rowth in

the core underwriting buiness The exparrsion into nternahonal

mar ketr is progressing well althougf ti absotute revenue

rontr ibetion rernair srrral nlativc to Risk Solutions overall

Busirres Ser vices growth roflected ctrcrrg demand tor dent ty

authont cation and traud detechun solut errs across markets The

US mortgage retinancir market did slov down in tt second halt

as expected but the mpact ot this was rgety ottset by continued

good grnwtt elsewhere

New product sates drove strong owth irr gover nment revenues

forthevear sornewhattemeered bya st wdown ri federal

markets the fourth quarter

The 2013 results rctlectttre mpact of por tie io changes including

the disposal of the preemployment reening busir ess in he fir

half arrd some small acquisitions including Mapflow and

Enclarity Taken together portfolio changes had the etfe tot

reducing reported revenue but ncreas
rrg

the adjusted operating

prof mar gin with underlying cost growth hr oadly matchirrg

revenue growth

2014 Outlook

no outlooK tor the federal gover
rrrrrerrt

egir ci it and mci tguge

rehnancing market unce tarn but the fundamental
qr

owth

drivers of the Risk Solutions busir ess rerrrain strong We will

corrtrrrue to invest in new productc that leverage our lead ng

conte nt and analytics expert se and to extend our services in new

verticals and geographies Overallwe expect good under
lyrrrg

revenue growth across market segments

Em
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Ihe growing need to high quolity ndustry date and nformatron

and insSht driv ng
demand or onl 01 51 bsc nption dato so vices

and providing newopportunties

RBIs strategic goat to help bus ness pr
ofessionals ach eve

better outco nesw th information and dcc on upport ts

ndividuil markets Its areas of strategic focus aru further

grow ng the data services businesses rc structuring the

adver tHng deven por tfol and for usrn nther prndiicts on

paid content and drying turt icr organ utional off ct veness

Across the RBI port otio user and subsc ption revenues

now account for 78 of the total busines with the remain ng

22 derived from pr nt and online adver ising and lead

gonerat on RBI electr onic revenue streams now acm ount

foróO oftotatrevenue

Data set vices are typically sold directly on subscript on or

transactional basis Business magazine ate mainly distributed

on paid basis Adver tising revenues are sold di ortly or

through agente

RBVs products compete with rtumber of infot matio provider

on service and title by title basis including HG McGraw II

and Wolters Kluwer as well as many ni he and pr vately owne

competitors RBI ompetos foi on me advertising Oh other

business to businessweb ites arch engines and serial media

692
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New war eflow and analyticaltoots and cor tent sets are regularLy

introduced on exisAdvancr For example 2013 exisNex

Launcher MedMalNavigatoe workf Low tcotthat ntegrates

medical and legal research with case far assisting attorneys in

determ ng their co rse of action ALso exisNexis Launched new

moduLes tori exis Pr rchceAdvisor web based prachcal guidance

product tarlo ed for attorneys who handh transactional matters

Additionally LexisNex strengthened its core content offer rig

through the cquis tiorrs ot Sheshunofi ar AS Pratt and

ariatyhcalt tI from Oxford Univers ty
Press providing attorneys

wth enh rnc inforrratHn ent rip and ebnnkr fnrmats

In litigation
solut em LexisNexis Launched teweb enabled EarLy

Data Anlyzerwf ich enables user ste determine the nature and

amount of re evant data in Lwsuit at 1s source Location

AdditionaLLy exisNex sr eteased new version of Concordance

Evolution supporting the direct mport of Les fro LAW

Prefliscovery reduc
rig

time costs and storage needs by

treamLining electronic discovery workf low

LexisNeeis Business of LawSoftware Somutions provide Law

firms with practice rianagerrent soLutions incLuding time and

hill ng ssterns case manaocmerit cost ecovery and document

manage iient services

In August 2013 LcxcNexis MartindiLe ubbelland Internet

Brands announced the set up of ajoint ye nture hi nging together

Martindlc tll iwyer directory incLuding Lawyers corn with

Internet Bra ids onlin marketing services for Lawyers

In Intern itioiaL markets outs de the US exisNexis serves legaL

corpora government accounting and academic mar kets in

Europe Can 3da Afi ca and Asia Pacific with locaL and

nternat onal legaL reguLator and business nfor mation The

most sienificant businesses are in the Uk France AustraLia

Canada md Louth Africa

exkNcxis focuses on providing customers th leading

ceLtectic ns of content arid innovative online soLutions to help legal

and bus ness profm siona sr iake better decisions more

efficiently Penetration of orrline information service has grown

sLrongL and eLectrc nic solut ons nowaccountfordO3 of revenLie

outside he US

In the UK exisNexis isa Leading Legal information provider

offering an unrivaLled collection of primury and secondary

Legislation case Lew expert commontar and fornis arid

precedents Its extensive portfolio includes number of liar itaqe

brands Halsbury Tolleys and Bcitter won the Ihe content is

del vered through multiple Iormat from prim tto onli ic to mobile

appe arid embedded in customers workfLow

In 2013 LexisNexislaunchrcd additional modules for the UK

LexisPSL
Pr

oduct crete wt ich provides Lawyers single

destination forthe pract cat Legal infer iratiurr needewith di ect

tinks to the relevant cases legistatrurr pr
ecedvtrt to rrs

practical gcndance arid expert comriientary Sim tar practical

guidance ser ccc were Lacirrc hed in Canada South Africa

and Australia

In Frarrce LexieNexis lead ng online provider of information to

Lawyers notaries arid courts heritage braid JurisCiasseur arid

Leading author tative content is provided througt mu .tipte formats

lexisnex fr mob Ic and in print These content sources ar as

in the UK being combined with new cuntent anrd innovative

workftow tools to develop practical gu dance and
pr

ictice

marragement solutions In 2013 LexisNexis France continued to

enhance exis 360 the first serna itic search online tool combining

legal infon mation practical content arid results froni the web try

provid ng tailored solutions for the notary niarket

Following the success of Lexis for Microsoft Office ft MO in thre US

and Canadian mar kets an Austn alian version was launched in

2013 MO enables custonxrers to access exisNexis content arid

services via add ns/toolbanc within Mic oso Wend and Outloc

In 2013 LexisNex sLegal Pnofw sional strengthened its

posit one in Asia through acquisitions and enhanced
pr

oduct

created spec ificallyfor Legal profem ionals arrd practit oners

corporate counsels Legal esearchers and gover nm nt

institutions in mar kete including India China arrd Japan In irma

LexisNexis acquired LegalStudio Leading provider of model

corrtracts and practical guidance strengthening it position in

high qr owing Corporate and Intel ertual Property pnrctice area
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Cha geatconstali Change

Change currence undm
ng

-3% 4%

2% 1% 5%

2013 fina 3cIaL performance

Positive underlying revenue growth wa maintained in 2013

despite subdued market conditions in the US and Europe

Electronic revenues continued to show good growth largely

offset by pnnt declines

Underlyi revenueC grew 1% and underly ng operating profits

grew
5%

In the US and in our major European markets conditions remained

subdued with growth in online solutions argeLyoffset by

continued print declines Other internaticnal markets achieved

good groNth

The rollc ut of new product releases cont nued with 73% of US

legalcustomers activated ontho NewLexis platform at per od

end and new product usage progressing well

Ongoing process innovation and some initial decommissioning of

old infrastructure more than offset inflat on and higher

depreciation contributing to 0.7 percentage point margin

improve nent in 2013

The 2013 results reflect the impact of portfolio reshaping over

the last 18 months including the disposal of the US document

retrieval and filing business in late 2012 and other small print

assets early in 2013 In the second half of 2013 LexisNexis

MartindaleHubbell the US lawyer directory was spun out into

ajointventurewith
Internet Brands broadbased nternet

marketing firm

2014 Outlook

We will continue the roll out of our new technology platforms

and products in 2014 and will maintain our focus on process

improvement Ourcustomer markets remain subdued however

limiting the scope for underlying revenue growth

2013

Revenue 1567

Adjusted operating profit 233

no

2012

Cm

1610

234

fl
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Reed Exrirbitrons 51 ategic goat rat ndnr at in ann spond rune

customers evolving needs and obj ctives better thIn its

mmpeti ion hrough bet knrowledqe of its outomers arid the

market tlreyerve

Reed Fxh tron del vers platfor to for industry communities to

oonduo busine to network and ft tear througtr range of

roar ket-feading evendi dig owfh sc ctor espec rally in higher
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knowledge by developing new cv Is arid by building out

Icc-I nology platforms to ensure the rap deploymcrrtof nnova on

and best proof c-es ac the or ganrsatio Reed Exhibitions is
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partner hips and acquisitions in high growth tors arid

qeugraphiee asweltas bywithd owing frcrri markets arid

iriduatr es with tower long term qr owtl oapc Is
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Reed Exhibitions is committed to continually improving customer

solutions and experience By providing xariety of services

including its integrated web platform the company continues to

drive customer satisfaction Using customer insights Reed

Exhibitions has developed an innovative product offering which

enhances the value proposition for exhibhors by broadening their

options in terms ot the type and location olstand they take and the

timing of their commitment to the event

Irt 2013 Reed Exhibitions launched 37 new events These included

events which extertded the geographical footprint of the luxury

travet brand ILTM to Africa and the art brand Paris Photo to

Los Angeles Reed Exhibitions Japan responded again to customer

demand by replicating its Tokyobased World Smart Energy Week

in Osaka The Ul%based event Oceanology International was

successfully laLinched in China through collaborative effort

between the Chinese and UKteams Regional strategies remain

key element of building business in China and Brazil taking more

events to Chinas second tier cities and cloning eventsfrom

Sdo Paulo to Recife in Brazils fast developing north east Reed

Exhibitions now organises nearly 200 events in emerging markets

number of targeted acquisitions were completed during 2013

These included the Capsule portfolio of cantemporaryfashion

events located mainly in North AmericaPaolo

highend travelevont servicing premium buyers across Latin

America and Expo Ferretera the leading hardware event in

Mexico Elsewhere acquisitions were made to expand Reed

Exhibitions footprint in China and its glottal position in the

0MB

30

advanced materials sector Reed Exhibitions also entered into

partnership
with Thebe Exhibitions one of the leading events

companies in South Africa to form Thebe Reed Exhibitions which

will run number of events primarily in the traveland interior

design sectors

Business model distribution channels and competition

The substantial majority of Reed Exhibitions revenues are from

sales of exhibition space The balance includes conference fees

online and offline advertising sponsorship fees and for some

shows admission charges Exhibition space is sold directly or

through local agents where applicable Reed Exhibitions often

works in collaboration with trade associations which use the

events to promote accessfor members to domestic and export

markets and with governments for whom events can provide

important support to stimulate foreign investment and promote

regionaland national enterprise Increasingly Reed Exhibitions is

offering visitors and exhibitors the opportunity to interact before

and after the showthrough the use of online tools such as

directories and matchmaking

Reed Exhibitions is the global market leader in fragmented

industry holding less than 10% global market share Other

international exhibition organisers include UBM nforma OR and

some of the largerGerman Messe including Messe Frankfurt

Messe OUsseldorf and Messe Munich Competition also comes

from industrytrade associations and convention centre and

exhibition hall owners
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Rerd Et revrer Ar

The Reed Elsevier ode of Ethics aid Bcsiness Conduct The Code

Ldisseminatedtooveryernp oyee sett ngthestanlardfor our

corporate and ndividual cor duct ft coy rs topics such as fair

compehtior anti bribery cunfhcts of interest enrployment

practic and protectng ntellectual property ft also encour ages

the rep rting of vio ations and prohibit retaliation he Code

makes lear our co nrnitmentto human rights incorporating the

prinerp en of the Ur ted Nations Global Compact UNGC In

accordance with th UNs Gi ding Princ pIes on Business and

Human Rights we have cons idered where and how 0ve operate and

hive concluded thatfherc is low human rights risk in our reef

employmertactivitie for more orrrr ition on human
rigfrts see

Supply 2hain

All employees comolete trai iing on the ode both as part ottheir

new hira inc uct on and at regcitar ir ter its to update their

unders anding and ac knowli.dgemerrt cf ttre Code We also

provide mandatory orrline tea ning on anti bribery competition

laws protecting data and preventing wrrr kplace ha assrnent

supplenented by ir person raining for higher risk otes

We achieve 10000 corrrpletion rates for courses withirr six

months of issuance

In 2013 we remained ditigent in our ongoing effo ts to ensure

complic nec with appticable bribery lawn including he UK Bribery

Act and US Foreign Corrupt PracticesA through ntermediary

due diligence and ri onitorinq strict limi son gifts hospitahtyand

gr atuiti and employee awir eness eff rts among other steps

Also thi year we developed employee aining on irteltectual

property and using social media and en iarrced inte nal

investigatio procedures and training of invest gators for alltypes

of alleged employee sconduct We also translated our Record

ManagLmerrt Puuc.y Record Retent on Shedule one related

esourc en for non English speaking err ployees to help them

properli nage cc mpany records

As as iator to UNGC and its pr in iplen errcompn ng abour

errviron nent anti-c or rcrption as well human rigtrts we

demonotrated lead rship in 2013 byser ng on the UNGC Advisory

Group frrr the UK and the UNGC Supply Chain Advisory Group

We were also part of the UNGCs CEG tee Mandate Steer ng

Group aid represented the initiative on the board of the Alliance

for Water Stewardshp member of tfre UNGC Caring for

Climate Advisory Group we participates in the Caring for Climate

Busines Forurri irr Warsaw held dur nq the UN Climate Change

Confere rice COP 19 to support innovat on and collaboration on

climate action The UNGC judged our 20 Communication err

Progress required of signatories each ar to have atta ned

Advanced Level In the year we provided contentfor the UNGC

Lawyer as eademn video series and frc sted UNGC meetings

London rndNewYo

Imp 1cm entat ion

guidelines and tools

available in multiple

languages ongoing

coftabor ation with

business unitteams

Completed training of US

HR personnel data

privaeyand security

investigators and

Corporate Audit Services

representatives

2014 training of HR

epr eserrtatives outside

the US planned

Implement updated cor porate goverr ance policies

Conduct eview and refresh of the Reed Isevier Code of

Ethics arid Bus ness Conduct

Evaluate Reed Elsovier sE xpo arid trols Policy

and compliance effo ts

45

Progress

100 completion

achieved within six

rmronths of issuarrce

Translations completed

and dLseminated to

relevant employees

Acheve 100 coriipletion of all

computer based coo ph irrce

courses

Advance Record Management

Policy implementation and roll

out translations

Enhanced
trairrrrrg programme

for rrrternal investigators of

Code of Ethics arid Bcisines

Corrduct breaches
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Reed Elrevrer

Reported figures

Revenc

Oper1 ig prof

Prottbeto hx

Netpr tt

Net nagrn

Net borrow ng

Adjusted fgures

Operat ng pr fit

Opcr rtngraargr

oftb fc tax

Not prof

Not rr

Operot aj ash Pm

Op rati ag ash fLow ver or

turn eve ted cup

ri iidi Cd
Fi IF

Fr Fi

Urrdc
irrq ot 10 ur eRr ctirrc nvestrne rt ri

yt
rt

technology rtatforrn arid aunch
irrq

of produc nd

er vi per tty etc mt by or tinuod proc 01 improvo rnents

on wc re token ro our bu inc especi attn LegaL to

provi Co ifi on Total oper Jtinq roots rrictuding tho

impact torque rtrcr and spusa cr caned by3

The net pen on expe cx the net pension inanring

hargc wal 16lm 2012 L89m1 includirrq settte ent and

rot nor V1CC creditl uffbm 120t2 020r rcraintya isirg tr or

herief oh- gee tt UP wh will rod icc tutor Cst for

our US si 10150

tic aLt adlultc operati ag rn gin 29 wa .1

per cent age pr nts
igfrer

thon in the pr ar yr an lb Lido

per nt ape poir
benefit to margin from porttotir rhunqo sa

IL po rr or tape point benc fit trc na curn en ftc to

niece -t expen cv //m 23 2.02 If ml educt

rio retlect the beno ft tern deb fri in rq at tower rates

2013

1749

290%

1572

1197

198%

1703

97%

121%

ci

Adjusted ofrt hrfrrc taxwa 01 52m 2012 l472mI up

and up at onstarat rr rencrrs eftectinq ftc ncr ease

adjustc doper at rig profit arid to ver inter xpc rrse

53

Tie adjusted effective tax rate or adj isted prof hr to tax wal

23 Ac with the priory ar Ihe effe trve tax rat exclr doe

moserrrer do1 ad ri aid alit tiC1 elated

goodw and acqu red intangibLe asseft nd nr rid the berofit

of tax amor tis at orr wirer as arlabte on tho tems Ad uste

operating prot arid taxat on ar pros up fcr thee
tr eha

ott axes rrr jo tsr nturr

he appticatro aoft ix law arid
pr

acti ubjec to

uncertainty arid imour are prc vided oar ospor ttl

Oil cussrons with ax autt oritio etati it to ore hr der

tr ansactroras arid ott er matter are ongoing Althoe gh ttr

outcome of thece discu ion1 car not he prod cted
srqrarfrc

inrpaet on the micra postio rot Reed Etsevier expert

ftc adjusted nIt prof rttr tab toot arch dersoff 13
12012-01 l2lrrr is up arrd rio it orrstant cur rercre

1515
1626

1749
25.7 27.1

276 29M%

6035 61/

1376 P33

1196

r2 3%I

1110

184%

3072

51/I

332

88

/6

1t
83

560

Fltic

11
IF

Ft

ii
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Reed E1eever in rt ii

Adjuste ci operatine cash flow

ntere pa

lax pai

Acquis tion relatod/restructur ng ost

ree sh ow before dividends

Ord na ydiv dend

Free csh ow post div dccc

Net debt at January

cc cash flow poe divrdend

Net disposal price

qusr on

Sharer pur chase

Net pro oods tr orrr sha opt ions exerci cccl

Otherc

Cur ren ytranstat en

2813
Debt

Em

Net borrownqsat31 December 2013 were 172nr deer eace of

703 1603
scice 31 December 012 er ia or ty

ot ocr orrowing ore

1951 224
denominated US doll crc and tf str cngther ing of ste rhng

347 281
agarnet tI dollar since the start ol the year ns bed rrr slightly

30 23
Lower net bor rowrnqs whe anslated it year or rates Lxcludno

1131 07c curre ncy translation etfer La ret bor owings decrcae by 127w
549 521 Expressed rn US do lars net borrrwrnqs at 31 Deco nbc 2013 were

582 554
$0n Inc cc th the cr

Sr osc bor row ngs afte sir valLre ad utments at 31 ernbo

2013 amounted to 13 281 2012 13892m The farr value of

related derivative as Is was 77m 2012 112/ri flah balances

have been reduced to 32m 2012 64 mL er oac ig the

efficierrcy of our balance he

lhe effect ye interest ste or gro bor owirrgswa4 rn

down trorr the pr oryear As atJl December 2013 ter

taking into account riterost rate arid cu roncy dor vative tot

57 of Reed Elsev ore jross bo row ngworo at fixed ratec itl

weahted ge ccc ar inj 5F0 0fA 5F

The ratro of net debt to 12 months Ira hr EDIT LA ad usted

earnrngs before rrtrest tax deprecraho and am rtisat on as at

31 Dee ember 2013 wac 2.1 Decembo 2012 2.2x on pension

and lease adjusted basis Dn an unad1uc ted bas et debt to

ER TDAwa 1.6x31 Dccer iber 2012 Ix

Liqudty

Dur
rrg July 2013 Reed Els vrer comrr ittod ink ty

matu ing in June 2015 was ca icelled aid 1w th new

$2 000ni facrl ty riiaturmng rr July 2018 hrs tack up fae
ty

provides cc ty of funding for short or de suarr and

is undrawn

Irm March 2013 $309m of US dolL dono
rn

sted fixe tom ii

debt ii iturmng irr January 20 th
ci uporm of 12 wac

exchanged for $389rn of the 3.13 Icr rid cbt du in 022 and islr

In June 2013 $782rrr ofSw ss donom rrated lix rate te

debt due rn 2018 wa sued at coupor of

In December 201 $461rn of US tern debt matunng in Jrnu irJ

2014 was edeoo eel tak
rrg advantag erf the rke whe Ic ole

Reed sovror ha ample mq mdity arrd access to cbt ip Ic markots

pruv ng the ab
lityto repay or ref rrance borrew ngs as they nriatur

ar to fund ongoing operational roqu rrme ntc

663

476
532

55

Cad spent on acqe msitione was 221 20 Jlóni mnclLrdmng

deforre onsiderstior ofLzlrn 2012 30m on past acqums tone

Spend on venture cap ta nvestrr ents as 2012 Im

Iota cc nsideratior from disposal rancactroric closed in 20 was

331rn ir dud
rig

6m in respect freenold
pr opertres ho rret

cash cceived ir the ca from businos disposals after

ming rliffemnces and cepaiatron and ansachon costs war

19o 202 l6Ori Nettax paid nrc no tofd sooa swac

12 cry 2012 tax ree overed 26m

Share ropu eha bythe rent compc nies 20 were 600m
2012 250 witl further lOOm re urchasod ir 2014as at

26 ebr uary Pro eeds from the exer ice of share emptions wore

f125ri 2012 48rx

2813

Em

3127
582

195

231

6001

125

44
28

Li

3433

60

323

250

48

IS

107

3127Net debt at Deco ocr 3072

34o5
312

286 282

993

768

421 3_7

150
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ReEd EkevFer
rr

Reed Etsever PLC

Reported retpref

Adju ne proht

Reported ninjs share

Ad ucte ngser ha

Ord no vidend ha

572

633

488p

540p

24 6p

Reed ELseverNV

Repo ted net roth

Ad utc In pref

if pnr ted earnir per sCare to Ree LI cvi PLC

hare der wns48 8p 2012.44 8p for Reed Etsev ci NV

char el dci wa 91 2012 08 reflect ng the rr ovod

cad rig ICi form enc and dehrred ax crc drt

Adluted earnrngc pers arewere up at 54.Op 2012 4p end

CC 92 112 94 for Reed PLC and Reed Llovro

NV tree Ate nstant rates of cx errge the ted

earn nj per share if both ompar ic irr aced by

be cgua ci dtirr lIe eider ds pr p0 Lyth rospe tree Board

arc 17J per ch rr for Reed Etsov ci PLC and 374 per -h in

for Reid El ever NV ard 11
igtrer ospe trvetyaga ttf

or or rId vrd gives total dividend lo the year

24 60p 21 arid CO 53620 CL 467L up ano

pecticaiy Ito crc rn growth cc the equatis fAa

cl eider ds Air the earl er irrter dry ds ref cts ch xnoe sin

tho euro to ng cx tango rr cthi respect ye pr rye ir

Iv lend anrrourr orare it Iat

Growth 9%
50

094

Cm

655

707 89

Div dci cover ice do
adler ca mg per ar ar

tot il inter rr ar propo ed fir deride for th yea is 2x

L012 2x br Rcd El over PLC arid Ox 12 20x to

Reed Cl ovior NV Th eider po icy
trhe pirent rnp rids

subleet to currency cone dci Ar iri te grow mci bro id ii

lure lb blasted earrings per harc wtr rnarr tarn rca lend

covor defined as the un oft rim th or nu Ii Ic is

covered bythe adluted err ngs per ha of it Itwut

overthe ongcrte icr

During 2013 41.9ri Reed sevier PtCsharoc ii 25 2m Re

Ft evicr NV char in rio har ci Nere pure IC

31 Doeernber 2013 har cciii icccie fir Reed Ebev ci PLC

Reed evier NVr erti etyarm ur ti to 11o7 dir ii 709 /r

Afurther 6.On Reed Ekcvio P1 haro md ed Cl cv

NV hare rye be
epcur

cC ed iii ir ua Lot uar 14

O99 Growth 7%
23

Growth 8%
0167 0506

57

2013

Cm

o38

44 8i

Op

Repor td rning Arerc 091 Cl

Adjusto car rig per sb arc 099 CO 94

dinar vrdend pr ire 506 Cl

vi ii mi

ii IC

494

Growth 5%

2i il 2013
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Reed Eteevier

Over thi long ter rrr Reed EL revier reek to ma ntein ash ftow

corver or of 90 rtrigherand cred nretrics that are cons stont

th sohd investment grade end rab
ig

The type al cr edit

metrics or or et deft to EBIT DA on pensionr and Lease adjusted

ard one or adjurti base rd free carh fIr was per entage of

net debt

Reed El evier surer of free cast fLow ovrr the longe term

balance the dv dond pohcy selective acqoicrt one and share

repurchasee whilc retaining the balanc sheet st rgth to

ma ntai acer ss to cost effect ye source of borrowing

ifs bale nce of long terre debt short tern debt arrd committed

borrk la itresis managed to
pr

ovide reeurrtyoffundrngtakrng

into acer unt the cash genera on ycle ot ttre busrness and ftc

or certa ci and rn ng of acquisitori rpend Reed ELsev er

neintainrs arrge borrowing fac bes and di bt progr animes

from vane of soc rees to ford ts reqLr rements at short notr

and at en mpohbve rat Consistent tt the sign frcance of Reed

lsev Group plc US operahor the najor ty of debts

denomirrate rn US do tars he pol cy rs hat co nior than

US$1.bbrr of term debt issues should cia ore rn urry
12-month

yer oda id more ttran US$3 Obn anr36 reronth per od hi

idditic reirrirnum levels of ho romings ivith matLrrr Os over three

red frye rears are or rfied dsp rridnr go tIre Ii vel of rret debt and

free eas fIne Erom bme to bme Reed Elsev er may edeerr term

debt err ye repurcha outetandi ig de et in tEe open mar ket

pendi rg
market cond te ns

TI crew no chan jes to Rer Elsevier long ter rr approach to

capital or quidity rranagernerit during flee year

interest rate exposure management

Reed eviers nnteret rate expos ire anagement p01 cy aims to

rcdc re parue ft the combined bu Cr5r to

nterest ate at eff Anti oct Jo achieve ttrrs Reed Elsovier uses

hxed rat term debt rnteret rate cv ape forward rate agreements

and inter est ate optro is rrterest rate dir vative are use nly to

hedge or underLy ng risk arid nor of mar let poshons are held

After taking irrto ace unt irrterest rate and or enc der vatives

atl embe 2013 rrtemst experrso woo frxed on 57 of Reed

LI evier gross bor owirgsvvhirh had weighted average

rema rr
lifi of years

Foreign currency exposure management

lrarrslahon exposures se on the ea rings arid net assets Cf

business operations in co ntr ice other thar thoe of ad pare

corrrpany Some of It eec exposures an offset by denominating

borrow gs rn US dollarr Cur renry exposures urr tr anact or

denominated in foreign cur rency are reqcrired to bi hedged us rig

forward contracts In add tic recur ring transactions arid futuri

investrrrent exposures may be hedged advance of beconring

ontractuol TI tre se policy differs cording to the spec tic

rcumstancesof the individual busirre ses Highlypre dictable

tctjre ca5 ws my be vereJ for trans irti rpCrteo ft

occur dLrrrng the next 22 reiontlrs 50 rcioriths forth Scientific

el Medical ubscription businesses wittrin rn its

defined according to the per od be ore tf tr arrsactior is expected

to become contractua Cover takes the errr of for
pri cx hence

forward eirtracte

As at 31 Decerciber 20 he arnrount of cOst rndinq foreign

exchange cover agarrst ft tore tra isactions was Cl
ri

2012 C1.2bn

Credit risk

Reed Elsevie has credi exposure for tie tull pr incipa arnroun ot

cash arid astr equivalents held with individual coun erporti Ii

addition it has credit nir free tt otentiaI non formari by

counterparties to fin en ial mr tr or ierrt ttr credit sk nor cially

being restricted the amoLints of
arry

hr dge gai arid riot the

pr ncrpal amourrt being hedged Credit kr are cent oIled by

monitor ng th crc ft qua ity of iunter irtie
pnir ipally

licene cornmer cal in ke and investment ban is with String

lorng ter ncr edit rat nqs an th an ou it autat and
iq cv tti

each of thi mci

Reed El evier treasury pcrlnr es do ncrt al ow con entr etic ns oh

risk with md vidual counter par tire and limits gnficarit treasury

exposureswith ounterpart eswhrrh rc rated liwe the A3

byStandard Poors Moody sane tch At3l Decer bnr2OlJ

cash and ash equivalents totalled 32re ofwh ct 91 wa hr Id

with banks rated A-/A3 or lret ten

Duncan PaLmer

Chief nanc al Officer
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Reed Etc vier

Rrsk Descriptlrln and impact

ed cevier bus neesar pendcnton

ftc cont nued rmceptance by oureustorn

ir products idse vi es and the va uc

aced oithc Future torreetev ving

utomer neec scor La mp air demur fir no

product end con uentLy adv feet

ur revenu

Competition Our icsse ope ate in highLy competit cc

ii Rcr wh en con nuero ceorvi in rcp ne
tcrhnu ogic Un ehon ch ig rig

ft gislation rccjuf
it change the entr an

new coo petitor md other fa tore Lure

anticipate market tr end couLd impac the

conipet venerm of or products and service

arid om equortly ac ver ely affect our

revenue

Acqutstons We regu arty rr ace rr aLl acqu Li ir to

strerrgther our io Itwe un chIc to

gerrerate ftc anticipctd her efits urh

re-venue growL yr ergies and/or ecU

savir gs arm ociated ceith these sitions

the could adve sely affe eturri ir irrvested

ipital ar tirr irrc at condition

Descnpticn and impact

Our bu inerme are lependent etc trin

platfor rn arrd rretwnr primar ity th

iterne fords iver ot
Pr

odLi arid

rv fir cm cci he edver site Pn tnrt it

our etc fran del vi rv pt itfc rn or network

xpcr icr igrilt ir tailu terrupt in

or security hr oar

Orir businc cc mai ita rid tabrmes and

irrform it or or ne icleidirrg persona

or mat nra Breach scto ir da as cur tyor

fa lure to car ip jit rat rc ble Leg statr in or

egut ito or contra it equ ents could

damage our eput it on end xpc rm us to

torm or tior rd in med requtatio

Our orga iisat onatand oper atm iL

UI ucturi sure Lepe ident on out ur ed arid

ofte honedfunctio Poor per fc roan en

fi ftr of hird pa Li towhom we have

tsr ore act vit ii could adver effec

our businece perfo roan epotatinrr end

inc it on ti in

ftc imptemer tet ii arid ox critio rot our

st itegirn end hrm inss plari deperrd iou

ibitityto mo vote md rita

high quaLity plc We ir ipetc global yard

across businerm see rs tortatented

inrager rent aid sk ed ndivid its

liar ular ly therm th te Pr logy md dat

ir ytmc mpabmtmt Ar ab lift tore it

notvate or reta och pe pti cou

anversctyaftect ur iu one pertorreance

Mitigation

Wear ocused on tt one ds arid cc in in ie ul star re irrd

seek to provide contenta irinovativi tut ons that help tree

eve hefts cu re ai el nterr cl

ty

We continuousLy rave fti
if car tnesc or Ii rid mid

ci vices aria ft nfr cstr ucture supp it th ra

nto iur mar ket cv lv ng cuUorrier riced Li

app icatron of new techno ogm ire bLi nrm els or the

act ons of competitors cciii ights for OL rn ket

trategi arid ape ati iii poe

Acqui orm arc isa leevit un thef arnewor four rat

Urutegy wh ch emphasirm org iii div oprnent Wet we

formuLated pr oss for rev ew rig or Lit rig qen iti rr

for mar acjirg the post quicitian iritegi atior hi nec

underpinn ct witti err str teg in inc at arid etf iier ia We

lormty mor Ito the inte etmon ci mtorri or qu stir

Mitigation

We have ectabtished rc cc or rm ir the pro ii cf nu

techr utogy arm et lie etude the dcvelopmc rite brm cc

continuity ptanc tuding II ter ovcry air md ha

di very ystem to Us Li mn apt err tt

mani tert no igy Li lo

rye establic tic data pr vary and ur ity prog soiree We

test irid evaluate orir pr Uure tint mitt the ii

ensuring th persr ii data protected ic art rm corimp cc tl

relec ant Legistatic rem etoft nt cc ua mc erner

We se cot oureeridors tt car earn bti ron ra triaL cc

level that wc Insoty in ii Li ad
rig hroogh key per fc

md catc rm and targeted upptier lit We rave vcaope

ho ire cart ru typtanst edo dci
ipt or ir tU eve tot

inaoi ft to bya vi ide

We hay wet tobtishmd or lager rent oevotoprre arid ml nt

revie pr ogr an mes mon apabi ity noco aria

reriunie ation home arc La br ed to rttrar arid mo ivate LU

bestt tent ava labte atari appr ip at te clot Wi vcy

seek feedback tr en erripl ye
viii feed uit ont in

en ployee nqaqen ent ir cl vcn

61

Customer

acceptance of

products

Risk

TechnoLogy

faiLure

Data secunty

Supply chain

depends ncies

TaLent



uflNCh EW

ai rcrso ci id

-a ill irqest wmch beer

vf icUKthcU

ati ior ai

cia

ai ii ii

iii

ci rc

UI oi dr

fI.ar rax
hepj

rti tapyoRi.eI

ii ititi

itt McI oil

ctdr
titein

rd ibc.ctt

Jc
11 aia oft

toop itt

..t i.a UI osI

Lu iiU

tIt LI

ndtct ia

Ii Lc iii LI hour

It atc
ft

Ic di o.a if nc
act ak

agilar tbaon
it .1 tolaghtaiclc

Ic It idC tc

1t aidard ii

YJUl II
Ii

Ystap taos

hv of Sal ILI1I1 gncnt uor

schi and we .u On rnainI an appr pri alt dC
nndpt ii 91 Wi icy t1trq

qua en-ct egi in vati lIcja bit

IC rdcnt ic.tua dr r4j iitths rd 19

i.uc ipprop atc

Wti L.randc taxpc vt
aittc arid io 013 axl tao

por ed ayextcrntta .dv Wc ma ir

pr adogutwt Li at taxau ii 13

1311 in urunqth twe cmpyv th ax ji
atc

ResIl se iprc ht 3dm riqmei

nc.rc tt and oraqt wren ypoi cc

csrbcdo rage bBaa ftcapproa Ic

aanmcntofIana tin Ii di tc notc If

onrit ed ir inc 1.1

Matagata

heRc.dFI evcrCxe II lu aadBt ntcCo

ro dtoevc.r oyce rlasspo todby

anuic It icompa tct 3rfij flu cn

anti atet .ind hum ar ht aid ii our xc ipir

andpt captedti ai ot ii .e tab Ied

ircccat3r eportaig in face

tact iduct Cu ia upp arc rqtar dt

ii ci toir iç.pL rCoI nduc

Wc ar imittt1tcrc jt cceivrc nedi

urpitb lIitu19 lift 31

cTptyrg ctan.3 era aadtctioojae

rqiu1 iajcr upp or and atr.ac st n-cd

.mcobj iv ill c.ric LIRe

1L4t crbuu iee or antvuti ovart

ivurot TltiL gu to

lid

314 iQo cdbytheBari

diffi

an

62

ax

ru duvhc

hc

cvii

dl

er

it alt

ti

it

Ta

Ii

Elba

Enva na

pOor rpa

lv
u1c

tt

31 41 rodic

rt aytit

dat vat
hr uql rapr

rctoqc.s aiate

vi LiaIvr

si





Non xecutrve Drector

At pointed

NaNo dit

Othe appoin ient

Pat lOlt ients

1I

dl 1101

-if

Natlorii

Othe pp monte

EN

Si

01

Appoll ted

NatIonality

Othor ppcn rn- te

-r ac

IJ
f1

P3t 3ppC pt

Ix

11

nEt on Ibgood 671 WoOer uxel

\ppc

bIlly

nt

11

ap In 101

51101

11 11

Mar au er etc 54

Nil
RobertPolrt SN

II
11



Reed Etsevier I-

65

Appointed 201

Nationality Ft

Othei appointments Ft of FFnan Fal Of CF

of If Bon kFser cup

Past appointments ef nr OttF ci

f5rlFth Nq cwp cfr rn 20 Ft 20 0t

tFatWa OftFcer of FVefl p1

taVFnrjpF slvlield cnn Forfnil

iqen CF 11 tF FF Vi ft Flax rnFtt- ie

for 181e1

Appointed 2006

Nationality AC CF IF

Other appointments Pie odei nd Cd

LxCcutF cOil ero NeltaF lirdndaDFrE to

eli aidFiee

Past appointments Pie it taF Cd

Execut Ce Oft cra Our Rockrt
IF Beto etlat

ma FF0 deFi of AOL Br OFltbalFd PFCOrF FFT iF

Oeve1rer SOIVFI PF rtojoFn AOL wi

found nq pa IF Cl at ers lpFtal PaF IF

PrcvFrus 9LFFFCtOpe atFrqOttF OtiFFle

W1OF or 1ecorornur Fe it ins aid has servo

sen rr IdvisoF to ftc Fed ma CoFliriur at on

Coo 10 seFonCtFa FF1 ar andasn OF OUrF

TF COLFIe Fi CF lv iO fT hC

lF undatFoFi

Appointec

Nationality CF 1C iF

Otherappointinents OF OsFdent

EnteFpF fF1 Fl IF iI rp at ii

CF CL OF tIm FF1 11 of lFr etor sot he Bus rFe

COF CF otNewYor St te indttieP I1CF5O

tOF NewY Ff1 ty 71 ei cc OFF the ard

tees tFeS It LIF Fv tyotNeoYork

St oIFr LI cc ty
Per ci 1111 lyir 11FF

IF ILFtC iidtt NeaiY FLFI1II0 urFer

Past appo ntments Fl Fxer utFvc to

IC orot OF1 In1 Miy

Appointed 700

Nationality Out

Othei appointments MeFobeF of tO iupe so
Board ofA gOn NV T0FI Ton NV 1FF rFkt Fe

Fr esla idCornpFnl NV

Past appointments Cti
Fl tthe Fm it

Boi drfKPMO tt eNelier md and

ci ber fIt Mm
19 meF1t Comn teo tO

KPMO rlcrr atF ilb aFd FtFIFF Fot reFeeF

Fl 08 tiv nj Fled KPMG
IF

19/6 IF CF
cmb If liFt SCFpCrCF ory 11 tO en

Nedor iidNV

Board Committee Membership

SOlO FFaIFOF1 Os tt

iCc dl NV

11

dl in IF

Its NV

Vi FF1

ml rN
CF

II ml vlsi

Adrian mnah 56 Lisa Book 55
uIFsr en FtepeFFderltDFre toF

Linda Sar ford 61 Ben vai der Veer 62
NoFi Executv DF -t CF liFer ttfeAuitColsFnFtton
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Charmans troducton to corporate governance
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Reed Etsevle

Structure and corporate governance

69

Reed evrer wa created Janu ry 993 when Br ed

PLC anc Reed Elsevier NV contr buted tL repert vs

busins ss to two jorntly owr ed compan Reed Elsevror Group

plc UK regi-tered companywh owns the pub shrug and

inter mat on bus ne ccc and Elsov cr Reed rnarrce BV

Dutc gister ed company wh oh owns he hnanc ng chv ties

Reed Elevier PLC nd Reed 5ev N9 have retairred their

separat legal and ational dent ties an tare pubhcly Id

compan cc Bc ed Lies er P1 see curit scare rstcd London

ar Ne York and ecd Elsevrcr NVs securities arc sted in

Amster darr and NewYork Following hc merger of eir

respectivs busrnce es Reed er PLC id Reed E-lsevier NV

enis rc rrrto Governing Agrcenrent to gulate their rclaironshrp

ir ctud rr the econo eric rrrter ests of the porires and the

compos tron of their Boards and thc sent Reed lsev or Group plc

and of El cv er Reec nanre BV

Equabsation arranqements

Res sevrer Pt nd Reed NV each old 50 interest

in Reed F-Ic evier Cr sup plc Reed ELevic PLC hold 39

nter st Elsevier Reed nance BVwit Reed Llsevier NV

holding 1S nt reet Reed Isevier PLC addrtionally holds

rrdir cct equity ir terest ir Reed vier NV eKecting the

ar rarrgc ncr ts nte ci irrto Lretwee tfrs wc corrrparries at tire

timc of then erger cvi ir detormirred the ego Swat on ratio

wher
hj ens Reed FIss vier NV di iar hare in broad te

rntcndec to cor icr guivaler econo nrc aterests to 538 Reed

Llsevier PL ordirra char cc The equal sat on ratio is subiect to

ctrangc to lect share splits and si nilar events that affect tire

rrurr her of outtand ng ordinary either Rec Elscv cr

PLC Fec Flscvior NV

UrrdcrtLc ego lisat on arrangements ed Elsevie PLC

shareho ders have 52.9 economic ir rest in ftc Rs ed El evier

comb busir eses and Reed Flscvrcr NV strar eholder other

th in Rcsd lscvic PLC have 473 eccnornic interest in the

Reed FLevis combned bus acsses Holders otord nary shares

in Reed PLC and Reed Llscv cr NV enjoy substantially

ego valent drvrdcrrd and capital ghL with repect to tfrcir

ordina shares

he Boa both cod Elsevier P1 arrd Reed er NV have

agreed other than in special ircurnctarr cc to ecommend

equivanc it yrc es divderids irclud wr hr cspccttu tire div derrd

on Reed Isevier PLC ordirrary strare ti associated UK tax

credit wee tIre qualisation ratio 7ccd ccvi PLC

ordna yshar pay dividends in terlirrg and colic tto UKi ix

lawwith respect to vidend and apital ght Rcs Eleev er NV

ordinary share pays divider ds cure and ssnbjs tto Dutch tax

lawwith respect to dividend rd
rpital rights he exehangs rate

creed br earl div derrd calculation isths spol eu o/stcrl nq

exchange rate veraged over pe iod of five corrses tivs

business rye cornrncnc rag cm ire tentl brie rres day heir

the announrer rein of thc proposed vidend

Compliance with codes of best practice

The Boards of Reed PLC and Rec El cvir NV havc

mplcmcnicd standard of corpor aft gover rrarr arrd di ur

policies applrcab to ornparnic listed the is ck cxchang sot

tire UK the Netherlands and the US he site this is that

standard applying to or will where
ri

it in co ci rIsc hr

observed by the other

The Boards ci Reed Flscv cr PLC arid Reed evier NVsuppor

the principles and
Pr

ovisions rico in gover rr arrc cent

in ike JK Cci pu ne Gcer mmr Codas use the Fir

Reporting Cour cd irr Scptcrnbo UK Code arid tho

contained in the Dutch Ccrrpo ate Govcrnar od sued in

December 2008 the Dutch Codc

his report and the compliance stats meni set out betcrw nrc rn ndc

irr relation to the UK Code 11
pr irreiple arid pw vi ic is ct in

the LIK Code arid the Dsrtch ide have applied tlrroughout Gre

fir arrcralyear nded 31 Dc ember 2013 cd cc vier PLC ml is

has its pr ary list
rig

err the London Stock ango has

omplicd Cii oLighoc ths year it the IlK Code cd sevier NV

which has is primary listing entire NYSI Euronc xi Ar icr dare

Stock xchangc has also complied thro rghout the year thUr

UK Code and subject to hunted Cxc options as sxpLi red ntle

Reed Llscvier NV Rcpcnri of the Brard on pages 179 or 180 ha

appl edihe bcsipna cc proviiorsoiti Dutch Lode Ti cway ri

which Reed Elsevie PLC Reed Elscv er NV ave pplid the

main princ pIes otUre UK Code are dcser ib bs low or fur tier

niormationr entire plic ation oiihc Dut Cooc by Reed Flssvier

NV see the Cor porate Governance Siatenrerrl of Reed Elsev er NV

published err tire Reed cvncr wcbsrtc www.r ccdftsevier con

Business modeL

As required by ovision Cl on mc UK Cod pages/to ft

describe the business arid the proqrcs riradc in 201 against Reed

Elsevrerslorg-term hr si res prior ties aimed at dcl ver rig

better outcomes for our cu atomer arid creating valur fcrr Reed

Elsevier arrd char eholders

REFrO EL5EVIrSR GROUF PLC

ii r-
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R..dFts.vi.r tie

There schdutc of matter nsrvdtitheBoaids and

pp ow deteg tcd author e4to ccl ef Executivi Otf at md
othei set rexecutvs Itereism irsea atuno th rotec

thaCnirnanandthcthieflxecutv Offi wh ha ectoit

irwrti

ih 1rds fRccc cevierPLC Reed cv or NV Reed Etsc ci

GroupIcandE ccvier ReedFinan eBbea hcomp-se ibatance

of Inc tivi and Nc Lxc.cu ye to swho br ii widc range

of sk It and exper nce to the detitaat onc of th Board The

aid otRtdLtc vier PLCandRecdlt c.viu NVi wewthe

deper 01 th Non Lxe utivo tors evEry year based ot

tt rter oi indcpendencesetoutint UKCode lheUKtdc

does not cone der the Chai man be independent due to

unque tehetas ii rpcrfl governat Notwti ttndingths

thoniHagxdncttho rdepender crtcrimco tamed nthe

UK Cod wi cn hewa app amnte.d nirman in 2009 he Boardr

consderat No Ic utveDte torsoheithanthc.Charmanjto

be indepenc nt of nanagemc.nt and em from any bu or

ttt atic nsh pwh ch cc uld matc na ntcrferc with their

ab ityt xerc ceirdepcndcnt udgemeit

IheBe rdsofkeedE evier PLCamdRce4Lt wet NVhavc

ippontdLisalloa toac.taCsenc.rlmd sdertD tor.wt

aviilab etc meet tP institutiona sh hotdcr sand ass tin

Ic ol rgc.cnc rncin aseswhereatterna veil in at ate

dcc.r i.e inappr opr ate The Sen or ndcj ende Director atso

cads tt annuat asscssrrent of tho penfo nance of the Cha mar

of RE edt Is vies P1 and Reed Else vier IV pro ilewh ci

csthskittc ir dexpe en of th Non Ex.c itve

Directo Rc.cdE sever PlC dRee Itsever NViset

outoiç3gc 68andi.3ava lab eontteRedEIsevu vebc Ic

wwwrccdctsevcr on

1dLt.es%rDLJ dIss.vMI rhadr .ritar

ttc cit oapp ntindivdua ctc.tI.erespe tive Boardsi

crd rcewtt iprovieiorsoftnear br fisn iatonct

these npan Cubic to Il us na ndivid Id ray be appo nted to

ti dcii Reed Elscvier PLC. Reed Etsevicr NVorRc cd

revel Greuppl unsssre ommarde bythejo Nom naticnc

Comm ttec Men ber of the Comm ttce ab am wi en their wn

re ip ntment ri ing considered

agr era iute Icttrs fappointmn sp et at

Non ExacutiveD re tcrsofRcdE sevk PLCrdRced
NVprovdeti at ndividuaLswLtservef ranintiatte met Proc

ye arc ad are typic ttyxpee.ted to serve two three year terms

atthoug lifE Boat may nv teen md lua to set vc for an

3d lit ai alp ricdofthreyc.rs

There aoe.t ye irtic of assoc atian of Reed tsev er PLC and

Reed LI vi NV prov deth..t Dir eetc shou be ubject to

rctirem nt it ca tverythrtyea sanlarethnabtetc make

theme ye avai ib efcrre 4ect onbyshan hm dcrcct

subsequent Annual G..ner at Matings atwith tan ng thc

piovi icn ofUcarlee ofasaociaton .theBoa dc potcy

tocomp vw tither commem dat is co ita ned ntt UK Code1

anda ID ctorwi cekre elect on sharePotdercarnuatv

Board changn

Chaigecdmimngthcy am thee npoiticnothb ird aiRed

ElsevicrPtC.RecdEs crNVamdRc dlt3 yr Caroupp ire

sctomt nthetabeonpige

Marki ttai diii David Ftc drelircdlromtheBa of Reed

Etsever NVandR dLtevierPLCfc tawnglh con tusicr ftlc

Annu Gcnenl Mc.etir gs Apr it 201 Wolfhart Hauser was

eie dtotieBoardcinApri 201.3ardc icceed dM Piti

Chairman of the Ren uner ation Carim ttee Hoo cue eedec

Sii DividRe dasth Seriorlrd pendertD recta pr 213

mac crdircewtttheUKCod it Dir etor wt re ieorr tic

Bcardsof Re El cvies NV and Reed sier IC the

respec tive Annual at Meet ig md beine tigibl .tI vw
offer themsetvc forte et etic Ba cc rn the mer made

bytheCorporateGeve tin cC rimitte tte.q if at

performance and effe eness of each nd vidua eking

re ete.etiun the Bc ard havc ac spIed are orir or daticr ft

the Nom nat oncCortmmtcethat cthe Dmrcctoi be

propo edforre ct toratttr2LI4Ai ua Ocreri etrqol

tP respect ye omp any

IriSepteniiei ul Dun ai .tiiiui yaveimut titi iCagr itu

asCh ef inam cia OHm crc fe live as at 255c.pte ber 2014

su tier earl erdate Reed Etscv er ma Ic .ieinite

IhsNommnationsCamn ttcemet dat ext ir ar

consuttan yto aduet igor out ea ci pro ess eo ajun cm

witi theBoardst idertfyautabteca ddatet su eeedMr

Fat met rot owungthe on usmonof he.car or ace ardoi he

mecommenditm no th unatiorsC nnmttc theBo rds

annaun od nb uaqlOI4.the pp racntofN Luff Chef

inane atOfficertotc eFfe tmvcatad tc tobc ccnfmrnuedbuti

expc tedtobenoliter han 15D en bm 2C

NcILuffha4beenChm fFmnancia Oftcc.ro Ccitt apt thUKs

biggest eonaumer energy roup e/ 107 It at ewa
atPO tirTSEIOOtog Ii suits mppnggroupa wela
affmt ml de mparme.3.mnulngPOPr cc ia mrdR

Nedtloyd.Wh teat PO h1 warke dfo yeas un virmetyol

senonfinan cm-c Ics in mdmngChcfrmrancia Off of Pepi rt

corrpanytercevei year FemsaNor FxecutmveDr ref Lloyd

Bank ngGroupplea dares met Non ecutmvD re tort fOmne mQ

GrouppleandRoya ONedtboydNV hi rstelassdegre

in mather at cc fror the Ui vr tyofOxf md qua iii JK

ChartemedAc o.mrt.mnt

In aceor dan with he art Icc of as oc atmon of Reed Llsevmcr

CDmrcctorc arerorm lycubjecttoc ccl en tysl 35 ho demc at

thefmrstAnnuatGeneralMcet ngfo tow ng aemrappointme itby

the Board Notw thstandmnq It dat of Nick mff appo nI

remains to be confirmed harehctders ailt to asked iec

Mm luff at the Reed Isev erAn mu ml 6cr era Meet nqs in

ApruI2Ol4.Subjeettc hmsctectmon atthoAnnua Gen ri

Mr Luff will to appo nted te the Board of Re cdl evuem oup

due course
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Reed Ewevier

In accor dan with he pr ncipLes good corporate govornar thofo Lowing Comm ttecs iv boen tabfi hod by the cope tve

Boar do ALL of the Conrmittec havo wr it on to ms of refo errce whir horo pubhshc on the Rood Efsevier web to

wwwrpede ovro om Mer rbor0h of ear Comm ttec and attendance dur ng the yr ir or set out bo ow

Bo0rds of Reed EL evror PLC Reed tsevie NVond Rced Etsovier Group p1 hove estabtrshcd Audit Comrnitte ho on rn ttee

comprr or Ly ndepo lent Non Exurut ye Directors Tho Con mittecs crc chaired by Ben von dcr Vecr recor oftie Aod

Committoc ttrn ut thei rr Lo act video diii ing lb ac ippeer en pegec 9h

Bor van de Vow IC mmttee Chairm in

Adr ian or at

Sir Div rt Re
IA1 21

to rot oric of or ic lit ommittec ir espoct of Pro finonr ng ac tivtiec arc corned out bytho hope sor Ron of EL Roe

iarrrrB1

he Boo of Rued LLsw or Coup pLc ha ostabtistred Remurreration Comm ttoc which icr osponibL fur co rsidor no the

ron one it on of tho utrve Dr ct rrs and th Ch0ir man ho Cow nrrttoo cn mpriso onLy Nor Exc cut ye Director and chaire by

Wotfhar Hausorwho succeeded Mark Liott as Cha rr ran ri Apr 12013 Dirc ctor Remuneration Repor wl ic hm boon appr ovod by

the Boor ols of Reod vior Group plc od ELscvier PLC and Rced Etsevier NV rppears orn pages 78to 94 report serves

dis Losure of the Directors Rorirurrer0hc PoLicy ond AnnuaL Remunera on Report which contoin tho era uncrot orr Ptfne rcctor

rn their ir for ests tI chores of tic two parr nt romp inies Reed LLsevier PL arid Rem FLc vic NV

WoLff or Hauser Cm mittee Chairman Air
iL

201

Nor EL otr IA ii

Anthori Hat gor

Lisa Hook

Robert oLet

Sir Davir Rei
Apr 12013
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Reed Etrevier

Parent compaffles

ft Bo rdsofRccc sv PICa Rredt 1sv crNVexerc so

dep dent uprr sory roles ever the ic ivit or systems of

inter cor tie of red or Gr rup Ic arid Fiery er Reed

nar BV he Boirds of Re ed PLC md Br ed

NV have cc ide pt ccl edulo of netter wh ct re requ red to

bo broLi jht 10th ar de in on In ret iti er to ed List vie Group

p1 and isevier Re Finance BV the Bc ards ot Reed sevier Pt

and Reed evici NV ieer ye strate gv irrd Pc ir 1100

budget in re cc ocr cgular reports ii the opor at ens inc ng

the tr ur and ft nanagomerit ccliv cc of the two

ompar ic Major isactions propc ed by the Bo rdc of Reed

Fisevier Di cup plc Licevici Reed Finer BV quire th

Pr ive if the Boa if hofF Re cI cv PLC arid Reed

no or NV

The Re El cvi FL arid Reed ccv or NVAud Ccremitt

rr oct crier eguler basic fore cw II sytcm ii Icr nal control

ar risk mnagerec nt of Reed eaier
rip Ic and cc vIe

Reed iiiir cc BV

Operah ig companies

It Boa do Reed Elscv Group sr cop insible for the system

ntenreicir rIo leRc dE es ci piblishingerd fermatior

bu nec ewl iard ofFt cv Reed Finer cc BVare

cc poii ble or the sy tcm inter alco it rest oft ic

fir an jroup act vi The Board ofR ed Fl evic Cr iup plc

ardEl eveiRccdFnanceBVircaserrsponstofi ievcwiiig

th coffer tic ne of their cyst in of rte na centre

If Bi Re scvier Group plc aid LIs cc Reed Fine

BV cccli rnp einenl dan or going ocess fir dent fy

iluali iq icr her ng arid rr anagiig the more gni Peril sks

faced bythe ire live businesses ft cc prccesscs have beer

reughecittlicycar or dcd 31 Dccc rnber 2013 and upt
tli da fIFe ap rovals of It Anni ii Ripe arid ianc

State rr nit 2013

Reed Etrevier Group pLc

Reed Grout plc hi an cot ihlisl cd Iran wnr of

pro edci ea ar ito nal controls wirb vii eh the reariagci iernt of

cart bu inc pci
rod tc corr ply Gro buanriesci care

qu roe to iaintair system of inter nal onlr ol which

appropr e1 the riatcir candor ale of the nr activitie arid address

ml
grill

cant ci at onal md finan ial sks th it they face

Board of Reed Flsev er Group plc is adc ptcd schedule of

matter tat are rcqui ed lobe brocghtt tfor dccis en

Reed cv en Group In isa Code of EtI icc arid Bu icss

Conduct th ml proc dose guide for ach cv ig
its buirioss gOal and

cpu re off crc an employee ste bchai in mn open honest

eth cal ird incipied narnnic The Code mlso outl rio confidential

procedu oriabhnq ci ployee eperl in coece ahor

ompl ancc or about Reed El evier fin nc id repor ing

or acti Cooe eubfthe on Ihe Reed web Ic

wwro reedcl eviem.c iii

Era lid cii rita id itt edandeva uatd onaj rek phi

iitroi rpiacot maiagtho cii ft mndthcleo rsdia

sk accepted Ri anagem cm md ci Ii rocel re ar

crebedd ft into the oper al woof lh bce ness iudc ihr

ionilor
rig ofprogre reas ci rep in ettl ft inc to

riienagerm ent md board itt ntio 10 prin ipa firir

Reed El ovier are etc ut ni paci Ito h2

ajor isk far gil Reed cv rc pp bcn.ane mm

gc Li yr ported to arid ansdci ed by Board AudI

oremiltee Will lh nyc cmc nt if bu nauc ic

arid the ccnfra fur ction the isk eiar dgern nt arid or Io

procedures nncui elhat Re Fl ccc an ig id
Lb ires

ri ks dIe cI vely and ir oordinared re mn the bus ess

th clar lyon the spec Pvc rep lilies ir ci

nnterdepcndcnc es Lit gal oi arid oth legal gu etc ye aft

in nianagsd by ga mc tons Lur rio ar

lheRecdFlseve Cr in tier vesigrnIin

i.e poi Is on the den cat oi an iranag Tent in ciii ii

and evicwstt ese report The PlC rein ft so rec

regular cpcin
Is fr ins bol lien nd an Text na iud br on

inle ira control iiid isk eriaue ic ii ci iltor Ii iT ion

do Per roqci nedatlhe idofthof riinial ml rev coo Ic

effe live nessof rI ni oilrols driknniiijers nt rid

report its finding on dclii basi 10 he ma
ig

reer of

Reod LIre vic ip plc report ar sc niinm od ed

part the imici ml vi ffcc tivenes sub ii tIed Ih id

Corereillee fReed ec Ci ocio .1 ft Lh iii ma lh cli

Con tee eporl Ic the Bomr in is iiI icr nil

mm alt roar

Etsever Reed Frnance BV

Fhcvien nar cc BV as lab po cyoc Ire

arceppiodloa lEl cierReec nan DV or fi inc .If

re pe liv Rein Is of LI vi Red Finance BV1 ave id

chodulcs realte tha rep red Lb ugh 110 ci fc

de on Proceourcc pie or iTO lIon op the ic liv tie

lhI once gi oup lud ng cornpreherisiv asu yr epo tine

sysic re lie or alfectir Ihe fir once
pm dip

iv ii

denlilne and eva ualed arid ar oh Ito reg Ii cciev TI

onti ols in place In nage It esc hr ccl do

risk cepted ire on ii ty bylhe arT

Annual revew

As parlof lb ar id pro cdcimo the Aud IC mc ilte ml

Boards of Reed El ove PLC Rec IF Ice on NV Re Fl evie

Group plc and Flsve Rood an BV rev ewll lfectivei

of the ny ieee of Ic rn control and in eianaoens en thu
mg

In

last Iii amic year Fe objoclnve Ihese sysic ream mgo

rallier lInen chmnatc the rink of ImP to cc lu nec

obcclivcs Accordingly Il cy can oily Pr de cinab iO 01

absoleite assurarmre ag iii eialcr nil mn stalciiic

Boards have cor fir rrnr ubjocttolh aLC ye Ilial is mrdr

linac reporting sk the repsclivc rnsk rear aper lent amid

contn ol yslom pr
vnd ro ommab is innanc oehm ci iten

iriaccci acm sni Ic nd ave fcincliomic mper ly dum umg lIme ye
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Reed ELever

77

Report of the Nominations Committee

his or has be prep 3red bythejo ft Nom natFons

Commdtee of Reed sovier PLC and Re LtsevFcr NV ard has

been approc ed by ftc rc spe ye Dr ard

Rote of the Committee

the
pr erpat role the Conrrnrttee to provide ass starrce to the

Boardc at Reed Elsovier Pt Reed Else ocr NV and Rood Elsevrer

Group by idcnttyrng rndrvrduats quat ed to become Drre tore

and ecummer dFrrg tc the Boards 30 ap 3oir tr rent rf ct

rrd vrdu 1s The responsrbitrtres of the mmrtfe care set out in

wrrttcn or me of mc by table cvww roodo s0\ For romb

arrd nebide

to develop and rgreo the des red pr ohIo for potentral

or d0tes for Board me rnberhrp

rr consuttatronw th exter nalsearcf consultants agree

tI speerfrcatrr for the recr tmert of new drroctors whrc

provrdes forma am tr nspa ent rocedure for the

set Irm and aopo ntment of new rectors tr the Boar ds

to cornmerrd to the Boards the apporrtnrent 3ndrdates

subject whore appropr rate to the 3provat of straretrolders

of Reeu Flsevrer PLC ann Roe Iseorer NV

FyI to rcornmerrd the Boor do Director to servo orr Board

Cor rrrr tees hay ng regard Ic hoer rtcr tor 5cr cc err

each co aimitte asset out rn the ter is of reterence for such

conrmittees ar to ecommend rrrernhers to sr rye as the

rc of those committ 33 3d

lv to make ecom aaendatrorrs to the Be ards or rotatron to the

Let or or re do tFon Drrector at the Annu General

Meetrnos of Ret ELsevror PLC and Reed Flsevror NV

Committee membership

he Corr rr it cc corr pr see only Norr Ext cut ye DFrertor and is

cfrarr od ayAnthony Habgood he other aerxroers ar LF Hook

and Ber van icr Veer The Cornmrtteo rr tfFve times during

the year

Composition of the Boards and Committees

Dur nq the year tao mac are Cf fc cu for the Corx ast cower

the apporrrtm nt of Non utrve Dire tor

the appo ntnrerrt Son or Inde pe ident Direr to rn p1 tee of

ft Day ReFdwho retrredfromthe Board rr 2113

the appoirrtme nt ofa Tha or of tIre Rcrxre rat on

Committee rn ace of Ma brett ao ret red ft rxr tire Ho ad
rnAprrl20l3

tho appo ntmorrt of Clot at tf to rd

Duncan Palmer whr gave notr of Ir 05 grr
3torr rr

September 2013 and

progress agair sf Reed Flsevr sasj rratron al rr 3rd op

th pore ontago of women or ft Boards

he Comm flee soeksto ensure that tfre Boards md their

Conrmrttees compr so ar aopropr rate baton of krl

exper ence Fndcpe nderrcc know edge of Rood lsevror0

busrrrossos and rs ty includ
rrg gen br and dor3g .0 tako

into aceourrt the outcome of Boar ova uaton ro nfornaat FOl

on Board ovabuatrorr an be too 3d on oaoe7

he Committee has established form goru ar3d

transparent roc odor for tIre re urfmc nI 31 andrd ate to the

Boards and recon3rr3erldatroras by tre Comm cc are made or ft

basrs of candidates rner it agarrast objective en rh rr and due

regard for the henefrft of versrty The or3rrxnitfee retained

recrurtmerrf consultants pee rlrsrng
in enror non cxc ut vn

apporr3lrrrentsto carry out scar he for Nun Executrve Drr odor

ar3d new Chief Frrran at Dffrcer Spor3cer Stuarl wa rctarr eel

con 3edfronvvith the earcLr fora Lx cut ye cc for Spe

Stuart ar3 rnde er dent executive ar Ir em suIting fri with rio

ottrsr coorroctrorito fteeo Else ftornmrrteeoreed elm

witfa tfae consultants and foLlowrrrg rigorous pr
oces of

interviews and assossrarents recomrrre ded to tIre Ho 05 ttre

appointment of Woithart Hauser as Nor xecut ye ret for

and NFck Luff as Ch ft in ncral Gffice be Hoards
aop ovod

these re commendatrrarrs

lr3
light of the rctrreme nI ef Mark 3rrd Sir DavFd Reid the

Cornrr Ff100 cinder took rev ow ert the roles arrd orasrbil Ire of

tIre Non cutive rector Following the re vi the

Committee ecor amcrrdcd to the Board the
aj

r3trrrorrt is

Hook asthe Serrior Independent Direeto arrd Wo ffaarl Rouser

tfre Chairmara of the Ren3urae atror Con rr lIce if eB tar

appr oved tb ee roe orerne or3datior3s

In response to tho put Ii at on of 30 Day Review Wonrcn

Boards rn 201 the Boark anrrounred rat onal go0k
that by 2013 the Reed Ekevre NV Hoard would be eonrt rrsod of

30 rwomnen ardtf Ret LisovierPt and we old ror rel

of 22 women Following the Ar raual Gerrer at Meet rrg held in

Apr 12013 the Boards meIft eso go rls 31 Lornmrtt wr

coiatir3ue to monr orfho erposilion 011 Boar ds
ja

el

aspir atrona goals wfrrle taking irate account the benefits

vor sit1 rs qemre raid

Dotails of Reor Lsevrer appr oac to ver Fly lie ora

its wor kforce ea abe foun in 113 Cur poralo Responsibility epor

on page 46

Is



NMC
18

Dir ectors Remuneration Report
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Reed Etevcer

out thL ecton the cc rnp or or cc cncratr or pci for Directors wh ch ub to ohm old cppc ci ci fyi omIt

the Re cdi sevre Pt oa Per Meet nqto br held 24Aprrl 2014

RemunaraNon policy table Executive Jirectors

Al footr olectc thet ytab rear lefcc rdonpcgt 82

Purpose and Link to strategy

tore tend rota the bee xec rye taHnt qlob ot to ex cote our trategre ob eel ye appropriate

Operatwn

Pa ar cc tor cot eetor arc nd eviewe onno ctty by the Remoccerat ci rr mitt the Cor cmrttc th anoc

ty cat ytak ccq 11cc Jar ua In cx cphr nate err tancro the Con ncrttec cay rr freo erIC hot
rcj

Ia

crcon deccd

Ic cxc otrve orate and so tarred va oe to the cc xcpany irr terms of skill xperrcrr and over at cont rbotrc cc

Corrtco it vercc with cor rparcreswhr ccc omparabte in respect of industry rze te rnation pe anr cc ptex ty Fxamp
of pe rrrl ide Thomson Routers WPP Pearsorc John Wiley Wolfer Plower xper an Mr Pr Hr cd

he cami any sq ad ines for sa arre for al ernp oyeec for the year

orth cot two years Cxc Lit ye rerto salary in reac cc hay been per annon

Maximu ii value

Oar yr erea cc to He utrve Directors cc wrrhrr the ange of mere aces for th wcder nploye opul ct or ye th orrcmrt cc

ca cc etmon to cxc ed Il to like cc irtof md omdoa cumotinres sLid as ch cge esp crc ly rca cc rc ate

corp
cx ty of tire booircc nftatcor or ignmer ft cci irket level

Perforrrance framework

Recovery of sums paid

Ne provr ocr

Purpose and Link to strategy

Ret rer cc nt ptarcs are part of emo cc tic rr packages dr signed tore oct mcI ret mm tire est xe ye talent at appr opc atc

Operation

Do policy to offer ro
ecpetit ye ong Icr sosta at defined cr tr ibotcorc pt cns Any arccccont ahave mpat ib inc war rr

HMRCS crc coal ml ovanc cc cc UK It Ice paid aslc or wi the object to ccx and or at or ity
Ic do on Ir cc Loin

err ccrcc cnc cxc otivos ccc take ca ntcad of or ntrrbrctrorcc

21cc UK fined henc tochocore is etc ced Ic new hic Continoc membe hip of toga dot ccc net ocher cc req iire arm rat

rrcc ea Ic rrctrilcot on or cc tr pat or fees from at mencberc who rye cho cc to switch def cc tr Co ccc ptar if cnyl nc

the Ci cccx he or cc ierrn encfit csron arr arcgercent ac ruing TUrf of fir year cc crrab ccc
rrcgs

lb osc

alarylfcr eaclc year raced for par ty arsl oLero wiLt rcor cal etrrcrcccrrl age of 60 TI PLO crctr boles aL opt the

ccherc cc arcc rrg cap In lrrce yr th alt UK firrcd benefit set mc mcncbers ftc CEOs crctr bert orwwi cc ms to Ic oc Apr 70

ar then ay bc Il er each yearto rat of 11 ccc A1 20171cc oddition the Cl cur ron pay pcrt rip 10cc fee qo rt

amoLirctofi has lory cc excess office scheme ac rcrngc cap Dr Apr 2014 mrrd each Apr rttlcereafter thic wi trrc Ly of

LIce acrcc orct hi bate atary cccx coo of the sclcerne earnings cap

Maximuri value

ef red ben it he ccc croalof 301 of cc cry for evcryyr of sorvice plo am cx cc rd cfsa

Defined carctr but crc crc rr aximo cc ccc cp cn cc dr rbLct ccc of 30 sa cry per arccccccor eqorv ol ccl rr er

Performance framework

Recover of sums paid

No provnrorr
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Reed Etsvier

81

Purpose and Link to strategy

The rnul ye ir ncent ye pH is or ethe men component of Executive rector iy Th yare des gr to
pr

ovide lorrg to ncerrtrvc

for Ext itive Do ectur to achreve ft ke per term jrr asurer that uppor the romparry otr ti gy nd ti alrqn the et tt

harefo dcrs TI EitPon ou ages irinuilpereorral nvostrt ent
rr

Reed shores

Why performance measures are chosen and howtargets are set

Our str egro focus on tr ar sformi ig th core business ft rough organic nvcfment in itt build out of new oducte to adjar ret

ar kets and geogr apt es supplemented by selective portto ro arqusifrons arrd vcstn ent perfor rnanro measures ri ft

multi ye ir rriccrit ye ire ohoen to supp ir hrs str ito gy byfocusrng on retu ri on capital rofurn to sh ir eholder and sust rrnd

earnrng gr wth

ir gets th egard to
pr evieu ro suIts and interrral arid exter nalforecats fcr the

per forriiance per root fir arc do igred tc

pr
ovrde xceptronal eward Icr exception at pertorm nec whrlrt low ng reasonable expe tat on that eward at the lowe red of the

ale is 0tta nable itject to robust pert ir rnanre

Operahon

Anrruofly Execut ye rectors niayu tc

anarrourfecualfotierrAlPtirgetfo

rnvestrrro nt in Reed fsevrer sher es In

eturrr ft ey re ye matching awa

which ye subje to

perfo tea ice mo is rred over three

finu iria years

contir ned eniplo nrc nf arid

retention offho ur der tying rrivestn ent

Dry dend qu valerrt accrued dLrrrnq the

pertor rrrrin period ore payable in res

of the motchi ig char ttict veH

VeH rig tiny be aecH ifed or ha ige

ofcontro

Maximum vaLue

to ftp ofth arii unt nyc tort

Performance framework

Tho perfer men measures earnings

perstraro EPS or return on nveted

capital RDIC we gh ed equal yund

asses cc indeperide itly such that payo it

can be re erved unde either ie of the

ri easure

the rn riimurii payout zero

crier aur pas out at thresh Id arid

the ft er dies not pay out at all the

over at payout 2a If both riieasur

pay out at ttircst ci the evera payoLit

is 50

Payonr in ne with expectations is

videri equivalerito arc not tc into

count ir he above ayoLit ftxels

Cornrrrit cdi cretior applies

inuat awards of rformarie sha es

witti wtinq sniblerf

pe formanco measu ed over thrc

fi rio cia years

nnhriud empio mt ad
mc etinrg shareholdirig requirement

Executive Dir ecfers are equ red ft nefa

the of yr sted shares for period if of

feast rTiontti after release

dcnd equ vofent ocr rued during the

perfor mance period are payablo ri repe
of the icr for manic shares tti if vecf

Vo ng may be accelerated on angc

of corn rot

ie iii ix muni grant anyyenr is rip
to

of base salary ft tho COD and up

to 200 of bae salaryfor other

Exocu ive Dir ectors

The pot for nec measures ire etafrv

Tot1l Shareholder Return TSR bPS and

RDIC weightcd equally and assesed

rndeoendent such that oaveut can bo

rece vd under any erie offhe measure

or for TSR in respect of enc of the ttirec

ceriiparator groups

Them nirnum payor zero

If ft rneasLrre with the lowet payout at

thr hold pays nut at fhr eshold arid ft

of tiers do not pay cit at all th overal

payout is If ich thc mea umes

pays out at fhr eshold the over ill pay Lit

532

Pacut lire with xp etafc

Divide id equivalo nts are riot taken rite

account ir ft above payout levels

Annual aw of iiar ket vaft ptron

hat vest blcct ft
Tier

fomanc

moasu ed over ft tee finan year and

ten airi cx ablt subj ef to con riucd

crept yme if Lint fh ten ft anni or

of gront

Vesting ma be dec ated on ha iqc

of ce itr ol

lEe reaxirniu
gn

irif in or up to

250 ofbasesatoryforthCkDanct tip

to 200 of base sal rry to othe

xeeut yr Di ecte

hr veetinq of opt errs subj ft PS

rorea uredvcr th cc years

The riiiniraium payout zero

iycrut
at thr rId pm fo iance

Payout in inc vitti ext fit cii

or irn tto iicrot applies

Recovery of sums paid

Claw back applies

Cornn ttee discmi tion app es

Ctav ba app es Claw ba ppiie
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Reed Etsver Pt

Remunera ion outcomes in different performance scenanos

The Committee considrr the lcvel of reriruncrat on that may be

oaid in the context ot th performance del vered and value added

for oh areholder The chart is ar iltust abort ef how ftc CEOs

egular anr ual muner ation could vay tin icr different

performan ceenaro The salary benefit and pens on levels

ire the sue in all three scenarios and ate on 20 salary

the 2013 bc iefits figure from the Single loLl Figure taft and the

2013 pensicn disclosur consistentwith prior disclo ure Annua

md mLiltr yai incentives HIP and ESOSI areb ased on the

pot cytabfeand 2014slary Giventheone effnatureofthe REGP

see page 82 for feir ther detai sI potential to at payouts 2015

ire not rem ctcd this cr art tie per torm0r cc assumptions

which ft ye aecrr used arc as follows Mm mam means oAIP

payout and ma rr-ultLyear incentivm vesting In rrew th

xpectatior err rrrs AlP payout at 100 of Lary vest ng at

of the award Li vesting at 50 of the award and

cLing at 80 of the award Max mum means AlP payoLit at 150

af salary an multi yea incentiv vesting at 101 ofthe awards

No share price moveme ntis assumed and vidend equ valents

payable in spc ct afth HIP and LOP are rrct included or options

vating in lire th exp tations valuation factor of 20 of the face

value of the awar dat grant has been applied TI isis our nternul

tIe rOan .imption fn opt nn based on the eych
arrga app ed

to participa rts
ri

ESOS below Board levetwlio can choose options

tiaras at ratio of err opt ens vestina at max mum higher

valuation fa tar tore fl tthe hie her pertar rrmancc hievementl of

of the cc mlue of tIre award at gra rt ha beerr applied TIns is in

nc with the report on pay arid performance publistred irr March 2013

bythe Finan alRcpor ting Coune an iidep nder UK regulator

We have not mcluded ae CEO role as Dune an PaLmer is

leav ng thee omoany in 2014 His alary regular ongoing benef ts

xc luding rn location expe isesl id perrsron evilt continue in lirre th

013 levels .ee ngte otal Figure tab on mage 86 until los

aving date As tiers no el gmble tar rated AlP in respect of

Standard package on recruitment

employed in 2014 arid his HIP arid ESOS awaros nyc

lapsed his remuner ation for 21114 is riot var able ac ordirig to

per for mann Deirrcarn Palmer seie eessor II
rr

the company ml

date whie is of II to be deter nir ed

Approach to recruitment remuneration Executive Directors

Wlren agreeing the coe panents eta remune ration package on ftc

appoirrtment of new Executive Dir ector or an nt nat pramotiar

the Banrd the Curnrn ttee would sk dIM paekaye tI

the remuneratiorr policy Lated in the pal cyt rb floweve an an

internal promotionfothe Board amy existing contrsctua obligatia is

and comrmritments cray orrtir ue to be Irormoc red even riot

consistent with the
pr

eva ling pale For example if the md vidua

member of the legacy defirred benefit pe sian plan

Corramittee will consider tIme pe is on arrangements ir the context

of the package as wlrote arnd may allow continued mr ticipatior

Ihe Committees general pr ire pIe en recr Iment to otter

conipetitive remune mtiern package to attract high cal br

candidates fr am global talent pool The va cia connp000nts ar

the company approach are follows

To offer rera errierat on in rre with pa icy able liriclud ng the tsl taki ag into accoceit the
Pr inciples set out above

Compensation for forfeited entitlements

he Corrmmi tee nay rTm ke aw mrds arid aayo ents an ig an external candetale to compensate hiram or her far entitleme nts fai fehed on

aving the
pr

cv ous eroplaya If sench dcci ian is made the Committee will attemptta reflect
pr

cv aus ent tlemcrmts closely

assib usi ag variety of tools eluding cash share av ar and options Claw back provisions II mpply where appropriate If

ecessar yt ifa tate ma grant cit awa dx tOo Committc may rely an the one per son exerr ptiarr ri the UK Li ting Rules

Retocaton allowances and expenses

he type and size of relace an allowances anrd experrses will be deterririned byt specifi cir umstaaces of there recr emit

Sharehotdmg requirement

Executi rector arc subject to shiar molding req jirenments These area mirmimeiro of 300 afannuat base sa ary far It CLO and

00 atannuatlrase ataryfar the CR0 0neminirmg or prarmatian to the Board Exeeutve Dir ectars are given pared of time to berm up to

ttnenr requ re nmeit

Policy on payments for loss of offce

Ii line with tic companys penticy these conmtr acts the cx sting Execentnve rector see rntamn 12 month lice period

Thee nrcur mtarm es in nmclr am Executive Directo iploynnent ter rnmnated Ilaftect the Corn omttees terni nrmatnan ef any payment

fur toss olaf ice but pacts to mpply he
pr in pIes autlirred

rn
the tabl an tIme next page The Caere ittee aserves thorn tht Lu depart

am thee rmne pIes where appropriate in ght at anytaxatnan requirements to which ftc coo parry or the Execut cc Ore tar senblccl

nc ud ng ithoent Iimtatia section 409A the US Internal Revenene Caoe or otter lega obligations

ResIn cted shrre weregn antedta Llemnmean Patrr are his recruitnaeritin 2Ol2ascampensatmantorfarf itad enlitlemontsfrarnm hi farmer emp cyrn

hmmsaward Ii as been pro rated far ervce to thn date of notice of resignatnanwmtfn the resultthat74047P ordinary shar esarnd al 318 NV

cm dmraa ysha esw Ilvestcmrn Ieavirng.Asthe pro ated shareswnllanlybe released
enpan hnsyetta be determined leaving dale ratherthia ithe

anigmnalxesti mg dates nsh adjustmentmay pandla ifnequnrcdlo ensenrethatthevalue of tIme pro aledawmrd received an leavirmg

cpu valenmttoth atwhie would bnave been eceim cd undcrthe or gnnalarrangenments Dividend
open nlents an the stnare nill be paid arm vest mg

83
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Reed Sic vier Pr

NonExpcutive Directors

Remune ration policy table NonExecutive Directors

Purpose and Iinkto strategy

lo enabl Reed Ice ic torn urt Non xecutrve ector with the rrght tori ince of per son ii skit at exper er onto irak are
ajc

nor tr be lion to the No erds and Committe ot dual fted gobai bus ness

Operation

Rood Eis vie Clrarrrr an Receives an aqg eq ite annuatfee witi no additronalfees e.g Commrttc Chair an to epe of Reed

sevi PLC and Reed Else or Group Committee deter mimics on the cdv of the Seni rr indepe ndent Director the cur ir

fee ir respet of Red Elsevior NV he immittee nrakes roeomr rendahon on the cdv cot lhr Serr or ridependerrt Dir cctor to tbt

Boar Oot Reed Liuev NV ion Oeterre ines ftc Cu iirmans tee

Ot/rerNorr ecufiw Durcfors Rece Ar rn aggreg ito anr uaI fee in respectof their mererbersh tire Boar of Reed Llsecicr p1
Reid

Elsev er NV arid Reed fleecier Gro lic Additiona eec are payable to the Senior independent Directo and Corn mittee ha men

Pirrce in rary 201 ees are also ayable for ne cry her sh of Board Committees in tutu otter dance fees may be lid Thc Boards

dotermi ii tf level itfoes sriblectto ap Ancable law

Lees may be reviowo annLraily althougi irr pract cc they have changed on lessfr equent basis When ewing tees con ader atierr

cnn to tie me or imitrnon equ red ftc compir xity of the role and the calibre of the ndividu it Cc mpar ativo roar kef data ats

rev ewed thi prima sourer for wi ich the practice of F- 1SF 30 companies with refererico al thr NYSE Fur or ext Ar islcrdan

Al Xi inriex rid US sled corrrpan cc

Maximum value

ftc tee paid to the Charmari and the Ncn Executive Drrertors are ri respect of their membe slips otti Boards of Re kevie PLC
Reed El evier NVard Reed Cisevier Or or plc Ihe shareholders of Rood Elsevier PLC arid Reed Elsevier Groc plr have approv

max mu oar riual feel mit of C500000 ar C700000 respectively additionalfees for moo berft of or cha ng Board

Commit ees arid as um ng additional enpons bilities such acting Sen or lndeperrdent Director allotwhi hare rn rile ttc

ryrax mu rrrit Thc aharehi Iders if Re Elsevier NV have approved maximum anrrualfee of C630 000 for ft tec her by

Reed EIevier NV The aggreoate ar ual cc hr ito thereto approximatetyf 7m

Purpose and Link to strategy

lo or ovic cc stern ir berretits at arr aopr Jpriate cost

OperaNci

Other bernefi for in Execut ye Dir ecti are rev ewed periodic alt arid
renay

nclude
pr vate di al cc yen refu rre par ati Ii

cots ecretarial be net ts and car benet rn ludirrg where appropri ite the tax on suctr benef

Maximu ii value

Ti crc is iO escr ib maxim urn are oun

Consideration of empLoyment conditons elsewhere

in the company

When the Comrrrittee reviews the xecutive Di tors sa arir

anr ually it takes rto account tie ompar yr guidelines for

salares for all employees fcr the for thcoriing year Wc do not

currently use any other ren uncratior cornpa ison ietr ice wh ri

determinirag the quantum arrd stru tur ect Directors pay We

not think it in appropriate to consult with errrployeos in conriectio

with our policy on rectors emune its

Service contracts and letters of appont nent

There ar no further obligations in the Directors serv cc contracts

aid lette ot appo ntrrrsntwl ich ar riot atherwise disclosed

this Rcpc rtwh ch cO Id giver seto remuneration rymentor

los of oft cc payment All rectors serv cc con tr cts and letters

of app irrfrne it are ava lablc for inspect 01 at the company

registered office Th Executive Director ervice contracts do

rot have fix expir date

wI Oei Nrra

Approach to recruitment remuneration

Non-Executive Dwectors

ollowi
ng re runtrnenf new Non Execc cc rector wn be

entitled to fees and cther beni fts in acc dance wth the

compane sr emuneratnon policy No additional remuner ation is

paid on crcitment However arry reaso iablc cxi crises incurred

during tf recruntrne nr procous will bore imbursed

Policy on payments for loss of office Non-Executive Directors

Imr crdchtnr to unpa accrued fees the Ncn Executive Direc tors

are em tnt ed ta receive mine onths fees fur loss of office it their

apponnntniicrnt is for ru nated before Ii errd of its tom in

Consderaton of shareholder views

Our prdctnce is to con suit sh ir eh Hens arid on der freir dow
when fomncnlating orchang our puli Eon example inc irly

2013 we rnnnculted with neTher c1 char uhold inc oranea

wntfr the proposaisfo mew LIIP and tfic renewal of If ESOS
Tire feedback helped shapc the design of the plan

Prior commitments

Committee reserves thc ijhtt make any remcnnierution or loss

of office payments it the ten me wero agrc pm
orb an nd vidu

being appointed as Director or pr or to the approval of the policy
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Rd Etsvier rt 87

Multi vs crc eer five

Awcrds were qr anted to rik nderthe RIP and th May20 The Committee ceased thi ci form cc maser ee

for these awardc cr thi out ome sun cc be tow

B/P 2Cr /3cycle purl rmur cc outcome

betow4 pa
p.o

6.5 pa

pa or above

101 belowlD p.o

pa orahove

SingLe Total Figure of Remuneration NonExecutive Dwectors audited

Ar thou hgood

Mark ott until April20

Wotfha Houser from 25 April 20

Adrian lenrr ch

Lisa Ho

Mar ku ear icr Lel

Robert otet

rDovd Reid unti 25 Apr it 2013

nd Sonford fror Decer rber 2012

Benvcr den Veer

ri

dt

stH cEte

Cr

iv rid

ret

Chair rnrr

Non xc cut vu Dire tory

Senior Ii dependent Dir to

Cl cirma ol

And Comrrritec

Romur 1r otiorc Cornrc ttec

6550 000

250

665058

165 ff00

I.80A62

155005

665000

121 250

65000

193221

Annufee2O13

550000

65000/1180000

20000

125 000/1130000

1689 cfl900

12 2o

165058

165500

462

155 085

65500

1217

166001

1937

50
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Reed Etevrer

11/P 20 ry le
2015 30/c

Vesting dcpender or three epa etc er forrnance easur

equalweighfi TSR nieas ire ar FF5 neasuro and ROIL

ma.ur

The hr SR romp ir ator groups Stcrl ng Euro and US Dollar

Ic the factthat Sc sevier cc ceses equ ty capital markets

tt rougt hrce exchanoe London Ams erd im and NewYor

three urn ncy oies Rem Ets vier TSR perfornirance

rrieacure separ abLy apa net each oroer ator croon arid earl

rank njac rrevcdwi produce paycut any respect of

on third of the TSR me isur the
pr opo on 7f the TSR measurc

thatve wilt be the sure oftt three payouts

ach oripar ator gr mp romp sc ippre xiii atcty 40 comparues

elected on tie tolloNinj basis br the 20 511 Pc
ye

Ic

tat the ywei in ire event mci ket in lee are the lar gest ted

compan cc on the rclcvant exchanges at the nd otthe ycar

betor the star of the per torn an pe riod the 1SF 00 for

the St
rig group AEX NYSE Err onext and the ankfeirt

Stock iange the Leiro grou ar the SP 50 for the

US Dc Li group

hi certain companies were then excluded

ii se with ma rity doe est river us as they do riot reflect

the global nate re of Reed Isevier rustorier bae
the ci ngagee ii extr active industr cv as they ore exposcd

to ommodty See and

fin incralservi es companies as thsy ye ad tferent risk1

rewarc profile

thc mci ring cor ipanieswere then nked by rear ket

apitalisal ion and for each comparate group thc 20

omparries above arid below Rocd Flsevierwer taken

di relcvnt listed global peers operate bus nesses similar to

tho fReed lsevier but riot ott erwi ncleided were added

Payments to past Directors and payments for toss of office

audited

There havc been no paymer ts to past rectors ci payments for

loss of office in 2013

89

Tt to iw tireets md vestnu mpnIv iii ow sr ds nr mntei

in 201

8/8201 5c dc

ii

I-

below4 cc below 11.2

11.2

rp ji
ii

ii

ii

7a 6.5 117

lOT pa oramove 12 orabovc

below clew 11

33 11.2

52.5 .45

65 ill

75 I19
85 pa 2.2

92.5 10 pa 1245

00 II p.a or above 12.7 abovc

ill

1wi mc

Bcluwrrrcdian

30 Mcdra

00
Uppcr que tile

liii

VI ii

iso idi

ci

1w

belov4 pm

33 p.a

80
p.m

ItO .orabove

ii i-i

iE ji ci ii

Ci
RI-OP rnatchingawa Us

As osed in prey oeis ret ort ne is depe mdent on three

eperate per fermance roe ur cs of cqualwcigl ii met TSR

measeire an smeaseire arid ROIL easeire

E3clew median

30 Mi diari

100 Upp0u tii5

l1f IIiI im

iiii
me uij iI in

ii

below bclow

60 p.a 107

100 13 p.a or above ahoy

Fm 11 ici ii

CII

ExternaL appointments

The Lomomittee believe that he exuericrice gained by rhowing

Execut ye Director sti rye Non Lxccutrve Direct on the boa

of other omganieation is of benefit to Recd Fleevie .Accordingy

Exo utive Directors may sub/ecf to the approval the Cha mar

and the CEO or the Clrairrmman
emily ftc case of tt CEO ser yr

Non Dir ector on borrds of
ip

to two no assoe dci

cow panic ofwf ich only one maybe mm
mjo rem mparmyi arid they

may retaim remuncratron ir icing roil su Ii appe intrnc

Duncan Palmer Non Excceitive or if Oshkoslr

Co per ation arid received/ce of 6314 or 2013
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Read ElsevIel

Erik Engstrom continued
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Reed Etsevier

Performance graphs and CEO historic ay table tcontinueW

The bl botow sh ws the hi ire CEO
iy ver ix year per iod 2008 has been inrtuded to sbov the 20 ifl 2009 was

trarinitic year with three CEO ncumbertn

181

An iu it incentive pa Cr 30

ofmrxnum

Mu ti yeai ir eentivc venting 100

an of maximum

CEO Iota Dr tc Civ Code 6oJ

basis

CEO tote Conni fer wth 767

prior dine osurel

NewU4basis Ic
rig vii

Dutch iiivilCode basisi ii

Consistentwith prror disclosure ii iabic

iiay 5o ivr iiril\1ri rib 10
Ii 2ir H1 riPE- rd II

to Ii ci rq ii
ii

ii

ill ii

Compar son of charge in CEO paywith ciange in employee pay

the table below ho N5 the perceritrge of ange in remuneration

atary benefits and annual ii cenlive fix 2012112013 for the

CEO cots par lb the average employ

Satary

15

Relative importance of spend on pay

ilie tollowi
rg tabte etc oul the total cix ployco costn for aL

cix ptoye en welt he amounts poid vidond vi

share re urrhases

Employee cc ts 75 1845

Sb lie me jut bases 600 250 1/0

mpleme ntation of remuneration policy in 2014

Salary The Committ has avsar dod sal iry increas of 2.5 to

Erik Eg tromwhicb meanslhatfronr January2014 his salary

ro eto 103 Lwi bin the guide ne ag eed ror

employe ir Reed El eviers moot ign cant locations ob lty

br 2014 the ewan inc reane to Dun Palmer sallry

Aix lire operation orthe AlP ri 201o en air inc sari eas in 21 lo

th the xre tion of the introduction of ol iw back provisions

Annoa fi ian altar oct arid KPO no disclosod as tI Roard

believ hal those cornmei evilly five and that disclosing

them semi gve comr petilors an or fair in ighr into our strategic

re rtion and annualexecution pta in Ih Iii gets arc denigned to

halleng ng relative to tfre20 execut on plan

7a 65 pa
00 paixiabve

IT/P 204 /6 eye Ic

Vesting vi dependent 01 tI lee sepat ate rform isrea ores

of equalwcigliting TSR ire asc an El me ue end

ROIC measure

93

CEO Sr Cr np Sir Ci
spit

Ian Erik Erik Erik Er

Dcv Dlv Smth Engstroin Enutrom Lngtroix Er gsti ox Er gtrorT

Ann Jili ed hasesa cry 18 901 1000 1001 1121 107

CEO lot New 1.1K basis
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16

j1
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2o

50
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Reed Etc evter c1

Report of the Audit Committees

95

Th ore part as beorr prepared by the Audit Committee of

Reed cv er Pt and Reed Isevier NV in conjunct on with th

Audit Gory mittee of ed tsevier Group Ithe Cor irnittees

and has een approved bythe respective Boards It
pr

ovrdes air

overvievi of the rnernb rship responsibi trcs and activrt cs of

the urn rr ttees The functiorrs of an cud omm tier in respect

of the financ ng act vit cc are ar re lout aythe Supe visor

Guard of ed nan BV The oed Ltsevrer PLC and

Rood Lb evrer NV Ac Committecfutfi the roles frorn the

perspec ice jf the par nt or rpanre ar both Corr ii flee

hew cer use ohr to to od lb ci of the Rood

Group pt
Audit Corr rrrittee and the Elsee er Reed mince BV

Supe ory Board this re pert

Membership

The ors mittees cur rprise at leasttb roe rrdeperrder

Non Exe rut ye Dire Gors The members af each of the

Committe us that served during the year are Ben var der Veer

Chairm en of the Co nm tHesL Sir David Geid unti April2013

Adrian Henrrah and Linda Sanford Adrian Hennah UK chartered

acrourtant and Ber van der Veer registered cc countarrt in tire

Ne tlrerl nds are ro isidered to haves or ificant recent and

me evant na icial exocrience

RespansibiDties

herr
ri

ole arid responsibilities of the lomn ulcer are to as ist

the respect yr Be erds rr fultilling
their ocersight responsibilitree

regard ng

the egr ty of Reed inter rrr and narrc at

staferrrerrts and por trrrg irocess

risk ruin gc rrien and nte net cml id the effe tivenes

of the inte nat acid br sand

tfie eflectverres0 performance and ratifications of the

exter ialaudrtors urcludrrrg monitorrr the irrdepndence

and ec icily

The Corn ii lIce ret or tIe the respective Boar on their

actrv tie rder trfying anymabter respr clef which theyronside

that act error improvement is nw ded aric making

recumrn nd one tothe stepsto be tisen

feeler ry sot eference of each ALrdr Cors mit tee are reviewed

arirru Ily and copy each is aubtis redo the Reed lsev er

aiobcite icwv.r code iie rr

Committee meetings

The Co flees me five times dur rig 2013 The Aud Committee

mc tirig are typic at ittended byttre Cf of Es crtrv Offr er the

Chief in ial Otf cur the Reed Els ci Group plc group financi rI

rnritr oIler th Reed sevier Group cci ief legal off cer and

di ctor crf inter na edit id audit partne from the exter mral

auditor Addrtror ally in 2013 senio repr ecentat vec of the

extem nal euditor of lsevrer Reed iarice BV attend the
deity

and ebr rary meet go oftb par enc cow panyAudit Comryrittees

Financial reporting

In discharging fherr cope rbrlrt Cs ri rcsç ect of ie 2013 IC rim

arid frranc al statem ents tIe Co rr ttees have

reviewed and drs usscd area or grrrfrc ant idgeme it in the

Pr eparation of the financia statements ri hiding rip
rr

ttre car yrrrg ilcies of goodwill and ntangible cc etc tfre

judgements in cs ect as et ar nova eras dat to tb

assumption underlying the va crc user cc latro

in ludumrg ocrnt rites are longterm grcwth

aescrupt on The Cornr ttaoo eived mid discsed

report fromi ti Reed Elseviar Group p1 gr ocup fir ir

controller on them thodo ogy and the bars of the

assurriptio is used

ii cap talrsatror of mt rnally ncr at intang bh assets tIre

capitalisation of oHs related toll develupnerrt of new

prodcrcts end bus ness infractructcrre tog thor wrtfc II

usefcrl econom live appl ed to lb er eulting as el

requires the exercise of judge went The Comni tte

received report from the Rued bevici GruuFr plc funar ac

controller err the ariiocint mputali ed aid cse II yes

selecfed for major projects

ii uncer tarn tax pus lions asessing potent at abr tie

icr numerous
crr

rsdrctrons icc omplex md wqurr

jcrdge riient ir mak ng tax determinat ens he ornmittemi

received and discussed repor tot urn the Reed Elsev ci

Group plc head of oup tax.t on on he potential habitue

ide ntrfred and est ates applied

he Cumrsruttees ilso received detailed wi rtterr irrd ye rhal

reports from the exterr al eudutars on th cc malt rs be

Con mrttees were mush will the cxp ar it in uv ded 3rd

oncccrsrons reacneu

reviewed the cr tic al account ng hr in tromp rarr en If

appl able accucrrrtrng ot cnd rd arid other Ii

reqcrrremnents and rc erved reg tar crpdate re nc ri

accounting and re gulatc dcv hopme it

onsrdered whether the rrncral repor taken as hole wa

fair balanced arid crrrde tarndi rhe

Rsk management and nternaL controls

Witi especttu their over ghr of sk ma iagc ierrt irid rrter

cantas lb0 Cenn t0w vC

ccc ved arid disrcrsse hr e3utar reCromt sumnram is rig
the

status if Reed Flsevrem risk man iqer nt act view iid the

rid
rigs

from nte nal cud review id the ir on iqme cd

with managers nt Areas of focus 2013 irrcluded

nranagermrent of rrrvesfrnemrf programmer regcuLt

conrplr cnr arid review crf information erur inc crding thr

managememrt of dali pm va bcro nec conl nu ty planning and

con niued compliance with the euurr menls of Section 404 ef

the US irbanes Gxhey Act hat ng to he ducu ic itat omr er

testing of intemnilrontrcrhs ever frnancr il cpu ng

eviewed arid ippmoved ti nter nat ic drt pliri fa 2112 rid

monitored cxc erbium imrchudiriq uroumc mi in pe of

ree ommendaticrr made

mes rewect the me socrmc tern of mete ence arid eff ci ver ess

if the Reed Llsevue Gmocrp plc sk manager rent aid iritemnal

cud It ir ctroris
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Combined ncome statement
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Reed Etsevjei- Annual Reports and FinanciaL Statements 2013
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Combinedstatement of cash flows

FOR THE EAR ENDED DECEMBER 2013 2012

Note Em

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations ii 1943 1.847

Interest paid 200 231
Interest received

Tax paid 362
Net cash from operating activities 1386 1407

Cash Lows from investing activities

Acquisitions
11 221 316

Purchases of property plant and equipment 57 70
Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 251 263
Purchase of investments 10
Proceedsfrom disposals of property plantand equipment

Gross proceeds from business disposals 311 235

Payments on business disposals 116 82
Dividends received from joint ventures 22 20

Net cash used in investing activities 316 476

Cash fLows from financing activities

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 549 521 rn

Distributions to non-controlling interests

Increase/decrease in shortterm bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 169 434
Issuanceoftermdebt

184 592

Repayment of term debt 915 437
Repayment of finance leases 10
Disposalof non-controlling interests

Repurchase of ordinary shares 600 250
Proceedson issueofordinaryshares 125 48

Net cash used in financing activities 1602 1003

Decrease in cash and cash equivaLents 11 532 72

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents

Atstartofyear 641 726

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 532 72
Exchange translation differences 23 13
Atendofyear 132 641
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COMBINED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Combinedstatement of financial position

ASAT.3 DETEMBEN
2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Non-current assets

Goodwill
14 4576 4545

Intangibleassets
15 3124 3275

Investments in joint ventures
16 125 100

Otherinvestments
16 92 79

Property plant and equipment
17 237 264

Deferredtaxassets
19 442 79

Derivative financial instruments
64 138

8660 8480

Current assets

Inventoriesand pre-publication costs
20 142 159

Trade and other receivables
21 1416 1380

Derivative financial instruments
124 57

Cash and cash equivalents

11 132 641

1814 2237

AssetsheLdforSale
22 21 297

Totatassets
10495 11014

Current LiabiLities

Tradeandotherpayables
23 2595 2544

DerivativefinancialinstrumentS
11

Borrowings
24 648 730

Taxation

588 603

Provisions

26 17 30

3852 3918

Non-current LiabiLities

Derivative financial instruments
13

Borrowings
24 2633 3162

Deferred tax liabilities

19 1076 919

Net pension obligations

379 466

Provisions

26 116 139

4217 4686

Liabilities associated with assets held for saLe
22 96

Total LiabiLities
8072 8700

Netassets
2423 2314

CapitaL and reserves

Combined share capitals

27 224 223

Combined share premiums
27 2887 2727

Combined shares held in treasury
27 1464 899

Translation reserve
137 23

Othercombined reserves
28 880 252

Combined shareholders equity
2390 2280

Non-controlling interests
33 34

TotaLequity
2423 2314
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Combinedstatement of changes in equity

Combined Combined Combined Other Combined Non-

share share sharesheld Translation combined shareholders controlling Totat

capitals premiums intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Balanceat January2012 223 2723 6631 88 199 2172 25 2197

Totalcomprehensive income

fortheyear 136 930 794 799

Dividendspaid 13 521 521 525

Issue of ordinary shares net of

expenses 47 48 48

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 250 250 250

Increase in share based

remuneration reserve 31 31 31

Settlementofshareawards

Acquisitions

IJisposalof non-controlling

interests

Exchange differences on

translation of capital and

reserves 43 25 12

Balance at January2013 223 2727 8991 23 252 2280 34 2314

Totalcomprehensive income

fortheyear 88 1174 1086 1091

Dividendspaid 13 549 1549 16 1555

Issue of ordinary shares net of

expenses 124 125 125

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 600 1600 600

Increase in share based

remuneration reserve

netoftax 48 48 48

Settlement of share awards 40 140

Exchange differences on

translation of capital and

reserves 36 26

BaLance at 31 December2013 224 2887 1464 137 880 2390 33 2423
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies

The Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatementsare prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

tIFRS as adopted bythe European Union and as issued bythe

InternationalAccounting Standards Board ASB The combined

financialstatements are prepared on going concern basis

as explained on page 76

The Reed Elsevieraccounting policies under IFRS are set

out below

Basis of preparation

The equalisation agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV has the effect that their shareholders can be regarded

as having the interests of single economic group The Reed

Elseviercombined financialstatements the combined financial

statements represent the combined interests of both sets of

shareholders and encompassthe businesses of Reed Elsevier

Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVand their respective

subsidiaries associates and joint ventures togetherwith the two

parent companies Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV the

combined businesses

In preparing the combined financialstatements subsidiaries of

Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV are

accounted for underthe acquisition method and investments in

associates and jointventures are accounted for underthe equity

method Alltransactions and balances between the combined

businesses are eliminated

On acquisition ofa subsidiary or interest in an associate orjoint

venture fairvalues reflecting conditions atthe date of acquisition

are attributed to the net assets including identifiable intangible

assets acquired This includes those adjustments made to bring

accounting policies into line with those of the combined

businesses The results of subsidiaries sold oracquired are

included in the combined financialstatements upto orfrom the

date that control passes from orto the combined businesses

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the combined

businesses are identified separatelyfrom combined

shareholders equity Non-controlling interests consist of the

amount of those interests at the date of the original acquisition

and the non-controlling share of changes in equity since the

date of acquisition

These financial statements form part of the statutory information

to be provided by Reed Elsevier NV but are not for legal entity

and do not include allthe information required to be disclosed bya

company in its financialstatements under the UK Companies Act

2006 orthe Dutch CivilCode.Additional information is given in the

AnnualReportsand FinancialStatementsoftheparent

companies set out on pages
155 to 199 list of principal

businesses is set out on page 211

Foreign exchange transLation

The combined financialstatements are presented in pounds

sterling Additional information providing translation into euros

of the primary Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatements and

selected notes is presented on pages 142 to 154

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of

exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each

statement of financial position date monetary assets and

liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated atthe rate prevailing on the statement offinancial

position date Exchange differences arising are recorded in the

income statement other than where hedge accounting applies as

set out below

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at

exchange rates prevailing on the statement offinancial position

date Income and expense items and cash flows of foreign

operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the

period Significant individual items of income and expense and

cash flows in foreign operations are translated at the rate

prevailing on the date of transaction Exchange differences arising

are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

translation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Reed Elsevier uses derivativefinancialinstruments primarily

forward contracts to hedge its exposure to certain foreign

exchange risks Details of Reed Elseviers accounting policies in

respect of derivative financial instruments are set out below

Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales less anticipated

returns on transactions completed by performance excluding

customer sales taxes

Revenues are recognised for the various categories of turnover

as follows subscriptions on periodic despatch of subscribed

product or rateably over the period of the subscription where

performance is not measurable by despatch transactional

on despatch or occurrence of the transaction and advertising

on publication or over the period of online display

Where sales consist of two or more independent components

whose value can be reliably measured revenue is recognised on

each component as it is completed by performance based on

attribution of relative value

EmpLoyee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other

post-retirement employee benefits is determined using the

projected unit credit method and charged in the income statement

as an operating expense based on actuarialassumptions

reflecting market conditions at the beginning of the financialyear

Actuarialgains and losses are recognised infullinthe statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they occur

Past service costsare recognised immediatelyattheearlierof

when plan amendments or curtailments occur and when related

restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised

Settlements are recognised when they occur

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are

included in the statement of financial position at the present value

of scheme liabilities less the fairvalue of scheme assets Where

schemes are in surplus i.e assets exceed Liabilities the net

pension assets are separately included in the statement of

financial position Any net pension asset is limited to the extent that

the asset is recoverable through reductions in future contributions

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other

employee benefits is charged in the income statementas incurred



Reed ELsevier AnnuaL Reports and FinanciatStatements 2013

Share based remuneration

The fairvalue of share based remuneration is determined at the

date of grant and recognised as an expense in the income

statement on straight line basis overthe vesting period taking

accountof the estimated numberof sharesthatare expectedto

vest Market based performance criteria are taken into account

when determiningthefairvalue atthe date of grant Non-market

based performance criteria are taken into account when

estimating the number of shares expected to vest The fairvalue of

share based remuneration is determined byuseofa binomialor

Monte Carlo simulation modelas appropriate All Reed Elseviers

share based remuneration is equity settled

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition

construction orproduction ofan assetthattakesa substantial

period of time to bring to use are capitalised All other interest

on borrowings is expensed as incurred The cost of issuing

borrowings is generally expensed over the period of borrowing

so asto produce constant periodic rate of charge

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current and

deferred tax are charged or credited in the income statement

except to the extent that the tax arises from transaction or event

which is recognised in the same ora different period outside profit

or Loss either in other comprehensive income directly in equity or

through business combination in which case the tax appears in

the same statement asthetransaction that gave rise to it

Currenttax isthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or

recoverable based on the profit for the period as adjusted for items

that are nottaxable or not deductible and is calculated using tax

rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the

date of the statement offinancial position Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect

to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to

interpretation Provisions are established where appropriate on

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amountsinthestatementoffinancialposition Deferredtaxis

calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and which

are expected to applywhen the related deferred tax asset is

realised or the deferred tax liability is settled

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognisedfor alltaxable

temporary differences but not recognised for taxable temporary

differencesarising on investments in subsidiaries associatesand

jointventureswhere the reversal of thetemporarydifference can

be controlled and it is probable that the difference will not reverse

in theforeseeablefuture Deferred tax liabilities are not

recognised on temporary differences that arise from goodwill

which is not deductible fortax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that

taxable profitswill be available against which the deductible

temporarydifferences can be utilised and reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extentthat it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of

temporary differences that arise on initial recognition of assets

and liabilities acquired other than in business combination

Deferred tax is not discounted

GoodwiLL

On the acquisition of subsidiary or business the purchase

consideration is allocated between the net tangible and intangible

assets on fairvalue basis with any excess purchase

consideration representing goodwill Goodwill arising on

acquisitions also includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax

liabilities recognised in respect of acquired intangible assets

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment

when there isan indicatorthat the asset may be impaired and at

least annually Any impairment is recognised immediately in the

income statementand not subsequently reversed

On disposalofa subsidiary or business the attributable amount

of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or Loss

on disposal

IntangibLe assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combination are

stated in the statement of financial position attheirfairvalue asat

the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation Internally

generated intangible assets are stated in the statement of

financial position at the directly attributable cost of creation of the

asset less accumulated amortisation

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations

comprise market related assets e.g trademarks imprints

brands customer related assets e.g subscription bases

customerlists customerrelationships editorialcontent

software and systems e.g application infrastructure product

delivery platforms in process research and development

contract based assets e.g publishing rights exhibition rights

supply contracts and other intangible assets Internally

generated intangible assets typically comprise software and

systems development where an identifiable asset is created that is

probable to generate future economic benefits

Intangible assets otherthan brands and imprints determined to

have indefinite lives are amortised on straight line basis over

their estimated useful lives The estimated useful lives of

intangible assets with finite lives are as follows market and

customer related assets to 40 years content software and

other acquired intangible assets to 20 years and internally

developed intangible assets 3to 10 years Brands and imprints

determined to have indefinite lives are not amortised and are

subject to impairment review at least annually

Property pLant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated in the statement of

financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation No

depreciation is provided on freehold land Freehold buildings and

long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives up to

maximum of 50 years Short leases are written off over the duration

of the lease Depreciation is provided on otherassetson straight

line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows leasehold

improvements shorter of life of lease and 10 years plant 3to 20

years office furniture fixtures and fittings 5to 10 years computer

systems communication networks and equipment 3to years
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z4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies

Investments

Investments otherthan investments in joint arrangements and

associates are stated in the statementoffinancialposition atfair

value Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are

classified as held fortrading with changes in fairvalue reported in

disposals and other non operating items in the income statement

ALlother investments are classified as available for sale with

changes in fairvalue recognised directly in equity until the

investment is disposed ofor is determined to be impaired atwhich

time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is

brought into the net profit or loss forthe period All items

recognised in the income statement relating to investments other

than investments in joint arrangements and associates are

reported as disposals and other non operating items

Availablefor sale investments and venture capital investments

held fortrading represent investments in listed and unlisted

securities The fairvalue of listed securities is determined based

on quoted market prices and of unlisted securities on

managements estimate of fairvalue based on standard valuation

techniques including marketcomparisons and discounts offuture

cash flows having regard to maximising the use of observable

inputs and adjusting for risk Advice from valuation experts is used

as appropriate

All jointarrarigements are classified as jointventures because

Reed Elsevier shares joint controland has rightstothe netassets

of the arrangements Investments in joint ventures and associates

are accounted for underthe equity method and stated in the

statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-

acquisition changes in Reed Elseviers share of net assets less

any impairment in value

Impairment

At each statement offinancial position date the carrying amounts

of tangible and intangible assets and goodwillare reviewed to

determinewhetherthere is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss If anysuch indication exists the

recoverable amount which is the higher of value in use and fair

value less costs to sell of the asset is estimated in orderto

determinethe extent if any of the impairment loss Wherethe

asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from

otherassets.value in use estimates are made based on the cash

flows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for

impairment at leastannuallyand wheneverthere is any indication

thatthe asset may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is

estimated to be lessthan its net carrying amount the net carrying

amount of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its

recoverable amount Impairment lossesare recognised

immediately in the income statement in administration and

other expenses

Inventories and pre-pubtication costs

Inventoriesand pre-publication costs are stated atthe lowerof

cost including appropriate attributable overhead and estimated

net realisable value Pre-publication costs representing costs

incurred in the origination of content priorto publication are

expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile over

the estimated economic lives of the related products generally up

to five years

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations

similarto those attaching to owned assets are classified as assets

held underfinance leases and capitalised within property plant

and equipment or software and the corresponding liability
to pay

rentals is shown net of interest in the statement offinancial

position as obligations underfinance Leases The capitalised value

of the assets is depreciated on straight line basis overthe

shorter of the periods of the leases orthe usefullives of the assets

concerned The interest element of the lease payments is

allocated so asto produce constant periodic rate of charge

Operating Lease rentals are charged to the income statement on

straight line basis overthe period of the leases Rentalincome

from operating leases is recognised on straight line basis over

the term of the relevant lease

Cash and cash equivaLents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances calldeposits

and othershort term highly liquid investments and are held in the

statement of financial position atfairvalue

Assets heLd for saLe

Assets of businesses thatare available for immediate sale in their

current condition and forwhich sales process is considered

highly probable to complete are classified as assets held for sale

and are carried at the lower of carrying value and fairvalue less

costs to sell Fairvalue is based on anticipated disposal proceeds

typically derived from firm or indicative offers from potential

acquirers Non-currentassets are not amortised ordepreciated

following their classification as held for sale Liabilities of

businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the

statement offinancial position

FinanciaL instruments

Financial instruments comprise investments otherthan

investments in jointventures orassociates trade receivables

cash and cash equivalents payables and accruals borrowings

and derivative financial instruments

Investments other than investments in joint ventures and

associates are classified as either held for trading or available for

sale as described above These investments are typically

classified as either Level or in the IFRS13 fairvalue hierarchy

The fairvalue of such investments is based on either quoted

market prices or other observable market inputs

Trade receivables are carried in the statement offinancial position

at invoiced value Less allowance for estimated irrecoverable

amounts Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the

ageing of trade receivables experience and circumstance

Borrowings and payables are recorded initially atfairvalue and

subsequently carried atamortised cost otherthan fixed rate

borrowings in designated hedging relationshipsforwhich the

carrying amount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is

subsequently adjusted forthe gain or loss attributable to the

hedged risk

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate

and foreign exchange risks Changes in the fairvalue of derivative

financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges

offuture cash flows are recognised net of tax directly in equity in
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the hedge reserve If hedged firm comrnitmentorforecasted

transaction results in the recognition of non financialassetor

liability then at the time that the asset or liability is recognised

the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously

been recognised in equityare included in the initial measurement

of the asset or liability For hedges that do not result in the

recognition of an asset ora liability
amounts deferred in equityare

recognised in the income statement in the same period in which

the hedged item affects net profit or loss Any ineffective portion of

hedges is recognised immediately in the income statement

Derivative financial instrumentsthat are not designated as

hedging instruments are classified as held fortrading and

recorded in the statement of financial position at fairvalue with

changes in fairvalue recognised in the income statement

Where an effective hedge is in place against changes in the fair

value of fixed rate borrowings the hedged borrowings are

adjusted for changes in fairvalue attributable to the risk being

hedged with corresponding income or expense included in the

income statementwithin finance costs The offsetting gains or

losses from remeasuring the fairvalue of the related derivatives

are also recognised in the income statementwithin finance costs

When the related derivative expires is sold or terminated or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting the cumulative change in

fairvalue of the hedged borrowing is amortised in the income

statement overthe period to maturity of the borrowing using the

effective interest method

The fairvalues of interest rate swaps interest rate options

forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts

represent the replacement costs calculated using observable

market rates of interest and exchange Thefairvalue of long term

borrowings is calculated by discounting expected future cash

flows at observable market rates These instruments are

accordingly classified as Level2 in the IFRSl3fairvalue hierarchy

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when hedging

instrument expires or is sold terminated or exercised or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time any cumulative

gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is

either retained in equity untilthe firm commitment orforecasted

transaction occurs or where hedged transaction is no longer

expected to occur is immediately credited or expensed in the

income statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when present obligation exists as

result of past event the obligation is reasonably estimable and

it is probable that settlement will be required Provisions are

measured atthe best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date

Shares heLd in treasury

Shares of Reed ElsevierPLCand Reed ElsevierNVthatare

repurchased by the respective parent companies and not

cancelled are classified as shares held in treasury The

consideration paid including directlyattributable costs is

recognised as deduction from equity Shares of the parent

companies that are purchased bythe Reed Elsevier Group plc

Employee Benef it Trust are also classified as shares held in

treasury with the cost recognised as deduction from equity

CriticaLjudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The most significant accounting policies in determining the

financial condition and results of the Reed Elseviercombined

businesses and those requiringthe mostsubjective orcomplex

judgement relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible

assets capitalisation of development spend and taxation

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets

On acquisition ofa subsidiary or business the purchase

consideration is allocated between the net tangible and intangible

assets otherthan goodwillon fairvalue basis with any excess

purchase consideration representing goodwill Thevaluation of

acquired intangible assets representsthe estimated economic

value in use using standard valuation methodologies including as

appropriate discounted cash flow relieffrom royaltyand

comparable markettransactions Acquired intangible assets are

capitalised and amortised systematically overtheirestimated

useful lives subject to impairment review

Appropriate amortisation periodsare selected based on

assessments of the longevity of the brands and imprints the

strength and stability of customer relationships the market

positions of the acquired assets and the technologicaland

competitive risks that theyface Certain intangible assets in

relation to acquired science and medical publishing businesses

have been determined to have indefinite lives The longevity of

these assets is evidenced by their long established and well

regarded brands and imprints and their characteristically stable

market positions

The carrying amounts of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible

assets in each business are reviewed for impairment at least

annualLy The carrying amounts of allother intangible assets are

reviewed where there are indications of possible impairment An

impairment review involves comparison of the carrying value of

the asset with estimated values in use based on latest

managementcashflowprojections Keyareasofjudgementin

estimating the values in use of businesses are the growth in cash

flows over forecast period of up to five years the long term

growth rateassumedthereafterandthediscountrateappliedto

the forecast cash flows

The discount rates used are based on the Reed Elsevier weighted

average cost of capital adjusted to reflect risk premium specific

to each business The pre-tax discount rates applied are 11.1% for

ScientificTechnical Medical 11.6%forRiskSoLutions

11.5-12.8% for Business Information 10.9-12.5% for Legaland

9.5-13.0% for Exhibitions The nominal long term growth rates

which are based on historicalgrowth rates and the growth

prospects for businesses is 3% There were no charges for

impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill in 2013

2012 nil

Asensitivity analysis has been performed based on changes in key

assumptions considered to be reasonably possible by

management an increase in the discount rate of 0.5% decrease

in the compound annualgrowth rate for adjusted operating cash

flow in the five-year forecast period of 2.0% and decrease in

perpetuity growth rates of 0.5% The sensitivity analysis shows

that impairment charges resulting from these scenarios

individuallywould be less than 5m Further information is

provided in note l4to the combined financialstatements
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Accounting policies

Development spend

Development spend embraces investment in new products and

other initiatives ranging from the building of online delivery

platforms to launch costs of new services to building new

infrastructure applications Launch costs and otherongoing

operating expenses of new products and services are expensed

as incurred The costs of building product applications platforms

and infrastructure are capitalised as intangible assets where the

investment they represent has demonstrable value and the

technicaland commercialfeasibility is assured Costs eligible for

capitalisation must be incremental clearly identified and directly

attributable to particular project The resulting assets are

amortised overtheir estimated useful lives Impairment reviews

are carried out at least annually Judgement is required in the

assessment of the potentialvalue of development project the

identification of costs eligible for capitalisation and the selection

of appropriate asset lives

Taxation

Reed Elsevier is subject to tax in numerous jurisdictions giving

rise to complex tax issues that require management to exercise

judgement in making tax determinations While Reed Elsevier is

confidentthattax returns are appropriately prepared and filed

amounts are provided in respect of uncertain tax positions that

reflect the risk with respect to tax matters under active discussion

with tax authorities orwhich are otherwise considered to involve

uncertainty Amounts are provided using the best estimate of tax

expected to be paid based on qualitative assessment of all

relevant factors However it is possible that at some future date

liabilities may be adjusted as result of audits by taxing

authorities Discussionswithtaxauthoritiesrelatingtocross

bordertransactions and other matters are ongoing Although the

outcome of these discussions cannot be predicted no significant

impact on the financial position of Reed Elsevieris expected

In addition estimation of income taxes includes assessments of

the recoverability of deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are

only recognised to the extentthattheyare considered recoverable

based on existing tax laws and forecasts offuturetaxable profits

againstwhich the underlying tax deductions can be utilised The

recoverability of these assets is reassessed at the end of each

reporting period and changes in recognition of deferred tax

assetswill affect the tax liability in the period of that

reassessment

Othersignificant accounting policies

The accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition

pre-publication costs property provisioning and pensions are

also significant in determining the financial condition and results

of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses although the

application of these policies is more straightforward

Revenue recognition policies while an area of managementfocus

are generally straightforward in application as the timing of

product or service delivery and customer acceptance forthe

various revenue types can be readily determined Allowances for

product returns are deducted from revenues based on historical

return rates Where sales consist of two or more components

that operate independently revenue is recognised as each

component is completed by performance based on attribution

of relative value

Pre-publicationcostsincurred in the creation of content priorto

production and publication are typicallydeferred and expensed

over their estimated useful lives based on sales profiles Such

costs typically comprise direct internal labour costs and

externally commissioned editorial and other fees Estimated

usefullives generally do not exceed five years Annual reviews are

carried out to assess the recoverability of carrying amounts

Reed Elsevier has exposures to sub lease shortfalls in respect of

certain property leases for periods up to 2024 Provisions are

recognised for net liabilities expected to arise on these exposures

Estimation of the provisions requires judgement in respect of

future head lease costs sub lease income and the length of

vacancy periods The charge for property provisions was nil

2012 f62m relating to surplus propertyarising on the

restructuring sale and closure of Business Information

businesses and includes expected losses on sub leases entered

into during 2013 and an estimate of vacancy periods and future

market conditions Further information is provided in note 26 to

the combined financial statements

Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes involves

judgement about uncertain events including the life expectancy

of the members salaryand pension increases inflation and the

rate atwhich the future pension payments are discounted

Estimatesforthesefactorsare used in determining the pension

cost and liabilities reported in the financial statements These

best estimates offuture developments are made in conjunction

with independent actuaries Each scheme is subject to periodic

review by independent actuaries Details of key assumptions

and sensitivity analysis is provided in note to the combined

financialstatements

Standards and amendments effective forthe year

With effect from January2013 IAS19 Employee Benefits

revised interalia changes the methodology used in the

calculation of the net pension financing credit or charge in relation

to defined benefit pension schemes Underthe revised standard

pension asset returns included within the net pension financing

credit orcharge are calculated by reference to the discount rate of

high quality corporate bonds being also the discount rate applied

in the calculation of pension obligations and are no longer based

on the expected returns on scheme assets The effect isto reduce

the asset returns recognised in the income statement

Adoption of IAS19 revised has had no impact on Reed Elseviers

combined statement of financial position and statement of cash

flows The net pension financing credit orcharge is now presented

within netfinance costs in Reed Elseviers combined income

statement ratherthan within operating profit as previously

reported Given thatthe revised standard may introduce greater

volatility to the income statement the net pension financing credit

or charge has been excluded from the adjusted figures used by

Reed Elsevier as additional performance measures

As required underthe revised standard comparative figures have

been restated Fortheyearended 31 December2012 operating

profits are25m towerand netfinance costs are Climhigherthan

previously reported On an adjusted basis profit before tax is

25m lower
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With effect from January2013 Reed Elsevieradopted IAS1

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

amendments to IAS1 The standard amends the grouping of

items presented in the statement of comprehensive income into

items that may be reclassified to the profit or toss in future

period and items that wilt never be reclassified

With effect from January2013 Reed Elsevieralso adopted

IFRS1O Consolidated Financial Statements IFRS11 Joint

Arrangements IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

and IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement in addition to amendments

to 1AS27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and

1AS28 Investments in Associates Adoption of these new

accounting standards and amendments has not had significant

impact on Reed Elseviers accounting poLicies or reporting With

the exception of IFRS13 these standards and amendments have

been early adopted for the purposes of Reed Elseviers application

of IFRSas adopted bythe EU

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

New accounting standards and amendments and their expected

impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of Reed

Elsevier are set out below

IFRS9 Financial Instruments effective forthe 2015 financial

year The standard replaces the existing classification and

measurement requirements in lAS39forfinancialassets by

requiring entities to classifythem as being measured either at

amortised cost orfairvalue depending on the business modeland

contractualcashflowcharacteristics of the asset Forfinancial

liabilities IFRS9 requires an entity choosing to measure liability

atfairvatueto present the portion of the change in its fairvalue

due to changes in the entitys own credit risk in the other

comprehensive income ratherthan the income statement

Adoption of the standard is not expected to have significant

impact on the measurement presentation or disclosure of

financial assets and liabilities in the combined financial

statements

CD

Amendments to 1AS36 Impairment of Assets effective for the

2Ol4financialyear These amendments require disclosure of the

recoverable amounts forthe assets or CGUs forwhich an

impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the

reporting period and are effective retrospectively Adoption of the

standard is not expected to have significant impact on disclosure

in the combined financialstatements

Additionally numberof amendments and interpretations have

been issued which are not expected to have any significant impact

on Reed Elseviers accounting policies and reporting
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Segment analysis

Reed Elseviers reported segments are based on the internal reporting structure and financial information provided to the Chief

Executive Officerand Boards

Reed Elsevier is world leading provider of professional
information solutions organised asfive business segments Scientific

Technical Medical providing information and toolsto help its customers improve scientific and healthcare outcomes Risk Solutions

providing tools that combine proprietary public and third-party information with advanced technology and analytics Business

Information providing data services information and marketing soLutionsto business professionals Legal providing legal tax

regulatory news business information to legal corporate government accounting and academic markets and Exhibitions

organising exhibitions and conferences

Adjusted operating profit isthe key segmental profit measure used by Reed Elsevier in assessing performance Adjusted operating

profit is reconciled to operating profit in note 10ANir Revenue Operatingprofit AdjustedoperatlngprOfit

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Em

Scientific Technical Medical 2126 2063 742 706 826 780

RiskSolutions
933 926 312 281 414 392

Business Information
547 663 71 76 107 119

Legal
1567 1610 139 146 238 234

Exhibitions
862 854 161 171 213 210

Sub-total
6035 6116 1425 1380 1798 1735

Corporate costs
49 47 49J 47

TotaL 6035 6116 1376 1333 1749 1688

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of E29m 2012 24m included in operating profit comprises 6m 2012 2m relating to Legal

and E23m 2012 f22m relating to Exhibitions

ANALY1SuF vENUb EGR4PH LoRii 2013 2012

Cm Em

NorthAmerica
3103 3122

United Kingdom
985 966

The Netherlands
656 611

RestofEurope
698 788

Rest of world
593 629

TotaL
6035 6116

ANAL iF FiFi-NUE 1GRAI ALAPRFI 2013 2012

Cm Em

North America
3082 3154

United Kingdom
443 442

The Netherlands
166 165

Restof Europe
1074 1176

Restofworld
1270 1179

TotaL
6035 6116
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Seqment anal.ysis contini ed

ANALYSII OF REVENUE BY FORMAl 2013 2012

Cm Em

Electronic 3971 3896

Print 1168 1.305

Facetoface 896 915

TotaL 6035 6116

ANALYSI1 OF REVENUE BY TYPE 2013 2012

Cm Em

Subscriptions 3112 2978

Transactional 2683 2788

Advertising 240 350

TotaL 6035 6116

ANALYSO BY BUSINESS SE GMENT Expenditureon CapitaL Amortisation

acquired goodwiltand expenditure of acquired Depreciation and

intangibLe assets additions intangible assets otheramortisation

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Scientific Technical MedicaL 50 120 93 106 76 68 95 82

RiskSolutions 164 15 25 21 97 109 22 23

Businesslnformation 18 17 31 37 10 14

Legal 15 80 170 173 74 83 108 92

Exhibitions 56 178 15 25 40 32 14 16

TotaL 290 393 321 342 318 329 249 227

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets Amortisation of

acquired intangible assets includesamounts in respect ofjointventures of Elm 2012 Elm in Exhibitions Otherthan the depreciation

and amortisation above non cash items include E31m 2012 E31m relating to the recognition of share based remuneration comprising

E6m 2012 f5m in Scientific Technical Medical E3m 2012 nil in Risk Solutions E2m 2012 E3m in Business Information

E6m 2012 E7m in Legal E4m 2012 E4m in Exhibitionsand LiOm 2012 12m in Corporate

ANALYSIS OF N0N-cUROENTASSErS BYGIIOGRI PHIcALL0cArI0N 2013 2012

Cm Cm

NorthAmerica 6291 6514

United Kingdom 584 524

TheNetherlands 125 120

Restof Europe 753 729

Rest of world 401 376

TotaL 8154 8263

Non-current assets bygeographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax and derivative financial instruments



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

NOTESTOTHECOMBINEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2013

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging/crediting the following

Restated

2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Staff costs

Wagesandsalaries
1.508 1543

Socialsecuritycosts
175 187

Pensions
61 89

Share based remuneration
31 26

TotaL staff costs 1.775 1845

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisationofacquired intangibleassets
15 317 328

Share of jointventures amortisation of acquired intangible assets

Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 15 160 151

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
17 89 76

TotaL depreciation and amortisation
567 556

Other expenses and income

Pre-publication costs inventory expenses
and other cost of sales 2118 2139

Operating lease rentals expense
108 112

Operating lease rentals income tiW 10

The amortisation of acquired intangible assets is included within administration and other expenses

Auditors remuneration

2013 2012

Cm Em

Auditors remuneration

PayabLe to the auditors of the parent companies
0.6 0.5

PayabLe to the auditors of the operating and financing businesses 4.3 4.4

For audit services
4.9 4.9

Audit related assurance services
0.4 0.7

Taxservices
1.8 0.8

Due diligence and other transaction related services
0.3

Fornonauditservices
2.2 1.8

TotaL auditors remuneration
7.1 6.7

Amounts payable to the auditors of the operating and financing businesses include amounts for the reviewand testing of internal

controls overfinancialreporting in accordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act Non audit services performed in the Netherlands or by

Deloitte B.V are limited to audit related assurance services Reed Elseviers policy on auditor independence is set out in the Report of the

Audit Committees on page 96
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CD

CD

Personne

NUMBER PEOPLE EML9YED At31 December Averageduringtheyear

2013 2012 2013 2012

Businesssegment

Scientific Technical Medical 6700 7000 6900 7000

RiskSolutions 3300 4100 3500 4000

Business Information 3900 4800 4200 5200

Legal 10000 10400 10400 10400

Exhibitions 3400 3200 3300 3000

Sub-total 27300 29500 28300 29600

Corporate/shared functions 900 900 900 900

TotaL 28200 30400 29200 30.500

GeographicaL Location

North America 13900 15700 14800 15900

United Kingdom 4100 4100 4100 4200

TheNetherlands 1600 1600 1600 1.600

Restof Europe 2800 3600 3100 3700

Restofworld 5800 5400 5600 5100

TotaL 28200 30400 29200 30500

Persicin schemes

number of pension schemes are operated around the world Historically the major schemes have been of the defined benef it type with

assets held in separate trustee administered funds The largest defined benefit schemes are in the UK the US and the Netherlands

The UKscheme isafinalsalaryscheme and is closedto new hires Members accrue portion of theirfinal pensionable earnings based

on the numberof years of service The US scheme isa cash balance scheme and is closed to new hires Members earn pay credits

dependent on age and years of service which are added to an account balance that accrues interest ata minimum rate of 4% perannum
The Netherlands scheme is careeraverage salary scheme and remains open to new hires Members accrue portion of their current

salary ata rate calculated to enable them to reach pension level based ontheiraverage salary

Each of the major defined benefit schemes is administered by separate fund that is legally separated from Reed Elsevier The trustees

of the pension funds in the UKand the Netherlandsand plan fiduciaries of the US scheme are required by lawto act in the interest of the

funds beneficiaries In the UK and in the Netherlands the trustees of the pension fund are responsible forthe investment policy with

regardtothe assets of thefund The boards of trustees consistof an equatnumberof Reed Elsevierappointed and member nominated

directors In the US the fiduciarydutiesfor the scheme are allocated between committees which are staffed by senior employees of

Reed Elsevier the investment committee has the primary responsibility for the investment and management of plan assets

The funding of Reed Elseviers major schemes ref lects the different rules within each jurisdiction

In the UKthe leveloffunding is determined bystatutorytriennialactuarialvaluations in accordancewith pensions legisLation Where the

schemefalls below 100%funded status Reed Elsevierandthe schemetrustees mustagree on howthe deficit isto be remedied The UK

Pensions Regulator has significant powers and sets out in codes and guidance the parameters for scheme funding

The US scheme has an annualstatutoryvaluation which forms the basis forestablishing the employercontribution each yearsubjectto

ERISA and IRS minimums Should the statutory funded status fall to below 100% the US Pensions Protection Act requires the deficit to

be rectified with additional contributions overa 7year period

Inthe Netherlandsthe schemefunding levelis determined byan annualactuarialvaluation as prescribed bythe Dutch PensionAct

If the funding level falls belowthe statutory minimum short term recovery plan is negotiated between the plan trustees and filed with

the Dutch Central Bank DCB An evaluation of the recovery plan is required to be filed at the DCB annually

Total regular employer contributions to defined benefit pension schemes in respect of 2014 are expected to be approximately 46m



FINANCIALSTATEMENTSANDOTHER INFORMATION

NOTESTOTHECOMBINEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financiaL statements

fortheyearended 31 December2013

Pension schemes continued

The pension expense recognised within operating expense is

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Defined benefit pension expense
14 43

Defined contribution pension expense
47 46

TotaL
61 89

The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major

scheme as follows

Restated

2013 2012

UK US NL TotaL UK US N4L Total

Cm Cm Em Cm Em Em Em Em

Service cost 29 29 15 73 27 28 63

Settlement past service and curtailment

credits 51 159 119 20

Definedbenefitpensionexpense 29 22 14 26 43

Net interest on net defined benefit obligation
19 11

NetdefinedbenefitpensionexpenSe 35 13 11 33 31 16 54

Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within netfinance costs in the income statement Service cost

including settlements past service credits and curtailments is presented within operating expenses

Settlements and past service credits in 2013 principally relate to plan design changes and the transfer out of certain deferred members

in the US scheme and reduction in accrued benefits in respect of the scheme in the Netherlands Settlements and curtailments

recognised in 2012 were result of changes to plan design arid staff reductions

The significantvaluation assumptions determined for each major scheme in conjunction with the respective independentactuaries are

presented below The net defined benefit pension expense for each year is based on the assumptions and scheme valuations set at

31 Decemberof the prioryear

2013 2012

As at 31 December UK US NI UK US NL

Discount rate 4.60% 5.05% 3.60% 4.65% 4.25% 3.50%

Inflation 3.25% 3.00% 2.00% 2.85% 3.00% 2.00%

Discount rates are set by reference to AA corporate bond yields

Mortalityassumptions make allowanceforfuture improvements in longevityand have been determined byreferenceto applicable

mortality statistics The average life expectancy assumptions are set out below

2013 2012

MaLeaverageLifeexpectancyat3l December UK US NI UK US NL

Membercurrentlyaged60years
90 86 86 90 84 86

Membercurrentlyaged45years
92 83 87 92 83 87

2013 2012

FemaLeaverageLifeexpectancyat3l December UK US NI UK US NL

Membercurrentlyaged60years
89 86 89 89 86 89

Membercurrentlyaged45years
91 85 89 91 85 89
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Pension schemes continued

113

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start and end of the

yearand the movements during the yearwere as follows

2654 9221 696 4272 2479 858 539 3876
29 29 15 73 127 281 63

124

92 145 145 382
Actuarial loss/gain arising from

experienceassumptions 10 51 15 18 32
Contributionsbyemptoyees 11 11
Benefitspaidt 94 93 19 206 89 112 15 216

Exchangetranslationdifferences 10 17 40 14 54

Atendofyear 2882 762 716 4360 2654 922 696 4272

Fair value of scheme assets

At start of year

Interest income on plan assets

Return on assets excluding amounts

included in interest income

Contributions by employer

Contributions by employees

2516 710 580 3806

116 32 21 169

33 14

726 537 3634

37 31 187

Netdefinedbenefitobtigation 191 86 102 3791 138 212 116 466

included in benefits paid are settlements of E52m 2012 E75m

As at 31 December20l3the defined benefit obligations comprise 4200m 2012 E4112m in relation to funded schemes and 160m
2012 E160m in relation to unfunded schemes

Theweighted average duration of defined benefitscheme liabilitiesfor2Ol3 and 2012 is l9years in the UK l6years in the US and

21 years in the Netherlands Deferred tax assets of 104m 2012 153m are recognised in respect of the pension scheme deficits

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are set out below

Gains and losses arising during the year

Experience losses on scheme liabilities

Experience gains on scheme assets

Actuarial gains/Posses arising on the presentvalue of scheme liabilities due to changes in

discount rates

inflation 171

UK US NL Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm

Restated

2013 2012

Defined benefit obligation

At start of year

Service cost

Settlement past service and curtailment

credits

Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Actuarial loss/gain on financial

assumptions

UK US NL Total

Em Em Em Em

51 59

122 41 25 188

173 86 18 69

01

19 20

44 30 198

111

36

2371

119

Benefitspaidt 94 93 19 206 89 112 15 216
Exchangetranslationdifferences 10 14 32 15 47

Atendofyear 2691 676 614 3981 2516 710 580 3806

114 45 53 23 121

83 63 38 15 116

11 11

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

32
114 121

78 552

otheractuarialassumptions 24 96

40 293
Net cumulative losses at start of year 515 222
Net cumuLative Losses at end of year 475 515

74



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

N0TESTOTHEC0MBINEDFINANC1ALSTATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2013

Pnon scheri es cGntlnuecl

The majorcategories and fairvalues of scheme assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows

FM 2013 2012

UK US NL Total UK US NL Total

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em Em

Equities 1351 174 222 1747 1207 409 169 1785

Governmentbonds 1089 68 358 1515 1088 16/1 376 1628

Corporatebonds
411 411 88 88

Cash 87 91 106 107

Other 164 19 34 217 115 48 35 198

TotaL 2691 676 614 3981 2.516 710 580 3806

The actual return on scheme assetsfortheyearended 31 December20l3was f283m 2012 E308m

Assets and obligations associated with the schemes are sensitive to changes in the market values of assets and the market related

assumptions used to value scheme liabilities In particular adverse changes to asset values discount rates or inflation could increase

future pension costsand funding requirements

Typically Reed Elseviers schemes are exposed to investment risks whereby actual returns on plan assets may be below those rates

used to determine the defined benef it obligations and interest rate risks whereby scheme deficits may increase if bond yields in the UK

US and the Netherlands decline and are notoffset by returns in government and corporate bond portfolios The schemes are also

exposed to other risks such as unanticipated future increases in member mortality patterns inflation and future salaries all

potentially leading to an increase in scheme liabilitiesparticularlyin the Netherlandswhich is the only major scheme which remains

open to new members

Investment policies of each scheme are intended to ensure continuous payment of defined benefit pensions in the shortterm and long

term Efforts are made to limit risks on marketable securities by adopting investment policiesthatdiversifyassets across geographies

and among equities government and corporate bonds and cash Assetallocations are dependent on variety of factors including the

duration of scheme liabilities and the statutoryfunded status of the plan

All equities and government and corporate bonds have quoted prices in active markets The majority of other assets are investments in

property funds which have quoted prices in active markets

Sensitivity anaLysis

The valuation of Reed Elseviers pension scheme liabilities involves significant actuarial assumptions being the life expectancy of

the members inflation and the rate at which the future pension payments are discounted Differences arising from actualexperience

or future changes in assumptions may materially affect future pension charges In particular changes in assumptions for discount

rates inflation and life expectancies that are reasonably possible would have the following approximate effects on the defined benefit

pension obligations

Increase/decrease of 0.25% in discount rate
191

Increase/decrease of O.25% in the expected inflation rate
113

Increase/decrease of one year in assumed life expectancy
108

The above analysis has been calculated on the same basis used to determine the defined benefit obligation recognised in the statement

offinancial position There has been no change in the methods used to preparethe analysis compared with prioryears This sensitivity

analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in the above

assumptionswould occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated
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Share based remuneratc

Reed Elsevier provides number of share based remuneration schemes to Directors and employees The principalshare based

remuneration schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes OS the Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP the Reed Elsevier Growth

Plan REGP the Retention Share Plan RSP and the Bonus Investment Plan BIP Share options granted under ESOS and LTIP are

exercisable afterthree years and upto tenyearsfrom the date of grant ata price equivalent to the market value of the respective shares

at the date of grant Conditional shares granted under ESOS LTIP RSP and BIP are exercisable afterthree years for nil consideration if

conditions are met Conditionalshares granted under REGP are exercisable for nilconsideration if conditions are met after three and

five years Other awards principally relate to all employee share based saving schemes in the UKand the Netherlands

Share based remuneration awards are otherthan upon retirement or in exceptional circumstances subject to the condition that the

employee remains in employment at the time of exercise

Conditionalshares granted under LTIP REGP RSPand BIP between 2010 and 2013 are subject to the achievement of growth targets of

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed ElsevierNVadjusted earnings pershare measured atconstantexchange rates aswellasthe achievement

ofa targeted percentage return on invested capitalof Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV LTlPgrants in 2011 2012 and 2013 and

REGP grants are alsovariabte subjectto the achievement ofa totalshareholder return performance target

Theweighted averagefairvalue peraward is based onfullvesting on achievementof non market related performance conditionsand

stochastic modelsfor market related components The conditionalshares and option awards are recognised in the income statement

overthe vesting period being between three and five years on the basis of expected performance against the non market related

conditionswiththefairvalue related to market related components unchanging Furtherdetails of performance conditions are given in

the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 78 to 94

-REGP 322 6.49 450 9.34

-BIP 987 7.40 615 10.69

Total conditionaL shares 3181 6.63 2367 9.51

2012 GRAN FS In
respect

of in respect of

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

averagefair averagefair

Numberof value
per Numberof value per

shares award shares award

000 000

Share options

ESOS 1801 0.90 1263 1.20

Other 702 1.04 293 0.95

TotaLshareoptions 2503 0.94 1556 1.15

Conditional shares

-ESOS 797

-LTIP

4.60 560 6.41

.807 4.45 1144 6.13

RSP 256 6.00 7.82

BIP 1542 5.20 696 7.41

Totalconditionatshares 4402 4.83 2405 6.57

115

2013 PA TS In respect of

Reed Etsevier PLC

ordinaryshares

In respect of

Reed ELsevierNV

ordinaryshares

Weighted

average fair

Numberof vaLue per

shares award

000

CD

CD

T1

CD

CD

CD

Conditional shares

-ESOS

LTIP

-RSP

Share options

ESOS 1521 1.12 1058 1.52

Other 645 1.29 257 1.10

TotaLshareoptions 2166 1.17 1315 1.44

Weighted

average fair

Numberof value per

shares award

000

524 6.51

1338 6.14

10 7.35

365 9.28

930 8.90

10.65
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share based remuneration continued

The main assumptions used to determinethe fairvalues which have been established with advice from and data provided by

independent actuaries are set out below

DURiNG THEYE Inrespectof Inrespectof

Reed Etsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

2013 2012 2013 2012

Weighted average share price at date of grant

ESOS 7.35 5.19 12.53 9.07

7.35 5.25 12.54 8.91

RSP 7.35 6.00 12.53 9.65

-BIP
7.39 5.20 12.53 9.15

-REGP 7.76 13.15

-Other
7.45 5.49 11.89 9.63

Expected share price volatility
28% 30% 28% 30%

Expected option life
4years years 4years years

ExpecteddividendyieLd
4.1% 3.9% 4.7% 4.5%

Riskfree interest rate
0.5% 0.8% 0.4% 0.9%

Expected lapse rate
2-5% 2-5% 2-4% 2-4%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic data in respect of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier

NV ordinary share prices Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical exercise patterns in respect of Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options

The share based remuneration awards outstanding as at3l December2013 in respect of both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

ordinary shares are set out below

In respect of In respect of

Reed Etsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

Numberof average Numberof average

shares under exercise shares under exercise

option price option price

000 pencel 000 Cl

Outstanding at January2012
29540 534 21641 10.99

Granted
2503 497 1556 9.19

Exercised
6694 497 1913 9.36

Forfeited
1022 498 581 9.33

Expired
4992 592 5121 12.34

Outstanding at January2013
19335 529 15582 10.63

Granted
2166 694 1315 12.41

Exercised
9102 542 7628 10.72

Forfeited
112 535 167 11.30

Expired
560 537 1462 11.30

Outstanding at 31 December2013 11727 549 8640 10.77

Exercisableat3l December2012 12573 553 12329 11.12

ExercisabLeat3l December2013 5150 537 5535 11.09
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Share based remuneratk continued

CONDITIGNAL HARES
Inrespectof Inrespectof

Reed ELsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Numberof shares Numberof shares

000 000

Outstanding at January2012 13896 8267

Granted 4402 2405

Vested 391

Forfeited/lapsed 5885 t3575

Outstanding atl January2013 11812 6706

Granted 3181 2367

Vested 3256 1966
Forfeited/lapsed 1395 9231

Outstanding at 31 December2013 10342 6184

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and vesting of conditional shares during 2013 was 76lp

2012 593p for Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares and 13.15 2012 10.43 for Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares

PANG OF EXEItCISE PR FOR OJT STAblING HAItE OPTIONS 2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of remaining Number of remaining

sharesunder period untiL shares under period until

option expiry option expiry

000 yearsl 000 years

Reed Etsevier PLC ordinary shares pence
401-450 1772 1.9 1925 2.8

451-500 1161 4.2 4415 3.5

501-550 5284 5.6 8981 5.7

551-600 695 3.9 189 5.4

601-650 1338 4.0 3825 4.8

701-750 1462 9.4

801-850 10 9.6

851-900 9.9

901-950 9.0

TotaL 11727 5.1 19.335 4.7

Reed Etsevier NV ordinary shares euro

7.01-8.00 41 5.0 58 6.1

8.01-9.00 1834 6.8 2736 7.7

9.01-10.00 1813 7.2 3142 6.9

10.01-11.00 619 1.4 2697 1.6

11.01-12.00 1670 2.3 3982 2.6

12.01-13.00 1864 7.1 1806 5.1

13.01-14.00 134 4.7 118 4.1

14.01-15.00 663 3.1 1043 4.1

15.01-16.00 9.9

TotaL 8640 5.4 15582 4.6

Share options are expected upon exerciseto be met principallybythe issue of newordinaryshares but mayalso be metfromshares held

by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benef it Trust EST see note 27 Conditionalshares will be met from shares held bythe EBT
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Net finance costs

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Interest on short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper
11 27

Interestontermdebt
168 196

Interest on obligations underfinance leases 11

Total borrowing costs
180 224

Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 119 11

Finance costs
206 243

Interest on bank deposits

Gains on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges

Finance income
10 16

Netfinancecosts
196 227

Finance costs include E3m 2012 E16m transferredfromthe hedge reserve netgain of Elm 2012 E2m loss on interest rate

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was recognised directly in equity in the hedge reserveto be recognised in future periods

Disposals anc other non operating items

2013 2012

Cm Em

19
Revaluation of held for trading investments

Property provisions on disposed businesses
60

Gain on disposalof businesses and assets held forsale 11 86

Net gains on disposaLs and other non operating items
16 45

LlxatIcri

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Current tax

United Kingdom
50 73

The Netherlands
80 68

Restofworld
222 12

Total current tax charge
352 153

Deferred tax
271 51

Taxexpense
81 102

The increase in the deferred tax credit in 2013 principally relates to the alignment of certain business assets with theirglobal

management structure It does not affect cash tax paid of E362m in 2013 The decrease in UK current tax in 2013 reflects the settlement

of prioryear tax matters



Reed Etsevier Annuat Reports end FinanciaL Statements 2013

11

CD

Taxto continued

The net tax expense charged on profit before tax differs from the theoreticalamount that would arise using the weighted average of tax rates

applicable to accounting profits and losses of the consolidated entities as follows

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Profitbeforetax 1196 1151

Tax at average applicable rates 280 244

Tax on share of results ofjointventures 10

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and US state taxes 38 30
Non-taxable costs of share based remuneration

Non-deductible/non-taxable disposal related gains and losses 22 69

Tax losses of the period not recognised

Recognition and utilisation of tax losses that arose in prioryears

Exceptional prioryeartax credit 96

Deferred tax credit on the alignment of business assets 221

Otheradjustments in respect of prior periods 24

Deferred tax effect of changes in tax rates t1

Taxexpense 81 102

Theweighted average applicabletax rate fortheyearwas 23% 2012 restated 21% This increase is caused bya change in the relative

profitabilityof Reed Elsevierentities in the countries in which theyoperate partiallyoffset bythe impact of the reduction in the tax rate of the

United Kingdom see below

During 2013 Reed Elsevieraligned certain business assets with theirglobal management structure Asa result of this alignment the tax

deductible value of these assets was updated to market value As at3l December 2013 Reed Elsevier has recognised deferred tax credit

oft22lm in respect of these assets which has been excluded from adjusted earnings

During 2012 Reed Elsevierresolved numberof significant prioryeartax matters and reassessed its exposureto othertax mattersacross

the jurisdictions in which Reed Elsevieroperates Asa resultof this reassessment currenttaxliabititieswere reduced byE96m to reflectthe

lower cash tax expected to be payable

The following tax has been recognised directly in equityduring the year

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Tax on items that WiLL not be recLassified to profit or Loss

Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pensions schemes 24 91

Tax credit on otheritems

24 96

Tax on items that may be recLassified to profit or Loss

Tax on fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 15 19

15 19

Net tax debit/credit recognised in other comprehensive income 39 77

Tax credit on share based remuneration recognised directly in equity 20

number of changes tothe UK corporation tax system including reductions of the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% with effect

from April 2014 and from 21% to 20%with effectfrom April2015 were substantivelyenacted on July2013 Reed Elsevierhastherefore

remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period at 20%which has resulted in recognition of deferred

tax debit of 4m in the income statement



FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION
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Notes to the combined financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

10 Adjusted figures

Reed Elsevier uses adjusted figures as additional performance measures Adjusted operating profit excludes amortisation of acquired

intangible assets acquisition related costs and the share of taxes in jointventures Acquisition related costs relateto acquisition

integration transaction related fees and those elements of deferred and contingent consideration required to be expensed under IFRS

Adjusted profit before tax also excludes disposal related and other non operating items and the netfinancing charge or credit on defined

benefit pension schemes The adjusted tax charge excludesthetax effect of these adjusting items exceptional tax credits 2012 only

and movements on deferred tax assets and liabilities related to goodwilland acquired intangible assets It includes the benefit of tax

amortisation where available on goodwilland acquired intangible assets Adjusted operating cash flow is measured after net capital

expenditure and dividends from joint ventures but before payments in relation to prioryear exceptional restructuring programmes and

acquisition related costs Adjusted figures are derived as follows

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Operating profit
1376 1333

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
318 329

Acquisition related costs
43 21

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures
12

Adjusted operating profit
1749 1688

Profitbeforetax
1196 1151

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
318 329

Acquisition related costs
43 21

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures
12

Netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 19 11

Disposals and other non operating items
16

Adjusted profit before tax
1572 1472

Taxcharge
81 102

Adjustments

Deferred tax movements on goodwilland acquired intangible assets

Tax on acquisition related costs
12

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures
12

Tax on netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 31

Tax on disposals and other non operating items
34 58

Otherdeferred tax creditsfrom intangible assetse 300 84

Exceptional prioryeartax credit
96

Adjustedtaxcharge
370 346

Net profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1110 1044

Adjustments post tax

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
325 336

Acquisition related costs
31 16

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 13

Disposals and other non operating items
18 103

Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets
300 84

Exceptional prioryear tax credit
96

Adjusted net profit attributabLe to parent companies sharehoLders 1197 1121

Cash generated from operations
1943 1847

Dividends received from joint ventures
22 20

Purchases of property plant and equipment
57 70

Proceedsfrom disposals of property plantand equipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 251 263

Payments in relation to exceptional restructuring costs
12 25

Payments in relation to acquisition related costs
28 37

Adjusted operating cash fLow
1703 1603

movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualifyfor tax amortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure
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RECONCI JATION OF OPERATING PROFIT BEFORJ JOINT VENTCRES TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Operating profit before joint ventures 1347 1309

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 317 328

Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 160 151

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 89 76

Share based remuneration 31 31

TotaL non cash items 597 586

Decrease in inventories and pre-publication costs 10 21

Decrease in receivables

Decrease in payables 16 73
Increase inworking capitaL 48
Cash generated from operations 1847

CASH FLOWON ACQUISI rIONS 2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Purchase of businesses 12 194 276
Investment injointventures 10
Deferred payments relating to prioryear acquisitions 21 30
TotaL 221 316

RECONCIE IATIItN OF NE BORROWINGS ReLated

Cash and derivative

cash financiaL

equivaLents Borrowings instruments 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm Em

Atstartofyear 641 3892 124 3127 3433

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 532 532 72
Net movement in short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 155 141 169 434

ssuanceoftermdebt 184 1841 592
Repaymentoftermdebt 915 915 437

Repaymentoffinanceleases 10 10

ChangeinnetborrowingsresuttingfromcashfLows 532 586 14 40 211

Inceptionoffinanceleases 12 12 13
Fairvalue and otheradjustments to borrowings and related derivatives 32 33
Exchangetranslationdifferences 23 28 107

Atendofyear 132 3281 77 3072 3127

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents loan capital finance leases promissory notes bank and other loans derivative

flnancialinstruments that are used to hedge the fairvalue of fixed rate borrowings and payable/receivable balances in respect of cash

collateral received/paid
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for the year ended 31 December 2013

12 Acqus ions

During theyeara numberof acquisitionswere madeforatotalconsideration of E239m 2012 E341m aftertaking accountofnetcash

acquired of 2012 12m The netassets of the businessesacquired are incorporated attheirfairvaluetothe combined

businesses Provisionalfairvalues of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below

Fair Fair

value value

2013 2012

Em Em

GoodwilL
157 165

Intangibleassets
133 229

Property plant equipment

Current assets
21

Current liabilities
21 61

Borrowings

Current tax

Deferredtax
39 16

Net assets acquired
239 341

Consideration aftertaking account of 14m 2012 12m net cash acquired
239 341

Less consideration deferred to future years
36 23

Less acquisition date fairvaLue of equity interest
42

NetcashfLow
194 276

Goodwill being the excess of the consideration overthe net tangible and intangible assets acquired represents benefits which do not

quatifyfor recognition as intangible assets including the ability of business to generate higher returns than individualassets skilled

workforces acquisition synergies that are specificto Reed ELsevier and high barriersto market entry In addition goodwillarises on the

recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets forwhich amortisation does not qualifyfortax deductions

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises Finalfairvalues

wilibe incorporated inthe 20l4combinedfinancialstatements Therewere no significantadjustmentstothe provisionalfairvalues
of

prioryearacquisitions established in 2012

The businesses acquired in 2013 contributed to revenue increased adjusted operating profit byf8m increased adjusted net profit

byE8m decreased net profit bylm and contributed net cash outf low of from operating activities forthe part year under Reed

Elsevier ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs Had the businesses been acquired at the beginning of the

year on pro forma basis the Reed Elsevier revenues adjusted operating profit adjusted net profit attributable to parent companies

shareholdersand net profit attributable to parent companies shareholders fortheyearwould have been E1751m 1199m

and E1112m respectively before taking account of acquisition financing costs

13 Equity dividends

DRDiNR DiVi CAREDlN fE YESR
2013 2012

Cm Em

Reed Elsevier PLC
278 264

Reed Elsevier NV
273 259

TotaL
551 523

Ordinarydividends declared in theyear in amounts perordinaryshare comprise 20l2finaldividend of 17p and 2013 interim dividend

of 6.65p giving total of 23.65p 2012 2l.9p for Reed Elsevier PLC and 2012 finaldividend of 0337 and 2013 interim dividend of

0132 giving totalof 0469 2012 0.456 for Reed Elsevier NV

The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed final dividend of l7.95p 2012 l7p The directors of Reed Elsevier NV have proposed

final dividend of The total cost offunding the proposed finaldividends is expected to be 422m forwhich no

liability has been recognised at the statement offinancial position date
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13 EquLy dv dends contrnt ed

O1UINARY FAUANDPRQPOSED TING1UFHE 2013 2012

Cm Em

Reed Elsevier PLC 286 273

Reed Elsevier NV 291 262

TotaL 577 535

Dividends paid to Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders are otherthan in special circumstances equalised at the gross
level inclusive of the UKtax credit of 10% received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders The cost of funding the Reed Elsevier PLC

dividends is therefore similarto that of Reed Elsevier NV

CD

CD

1L GoodwiU

2013 2012

Cm Em

Atstartofyear 4545 4729

Acquisitions 157 165

Disposals/reclassified as held forsale 461 1152

Exchange translation differences 80 1197

At end of year 4576 4545

The carrying amount of goodwill isaftercumulative amortisation of E1154m 12012 1180mwhichwas charged priorto the adoption of

IFRS and 9m 12012 C20m of subsequent impairment charges recorded in prioryears

Impairment review

Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed at least annually based on cash generating units

CGUs ACGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inf lows that are largely independent of the cash inflows

from other groups of assets Goodwill impairment testing is performed on the basis of 25 CGUs 1201222 CGUs CGUs which are not

individually significant have been aggregated for presentation purposes Typically acquisitions are fully integrated into existing

business units and the goodwillarising is allocated to the CGUs or groups of CGUsthat are expected to benefitfrom the synergies
of the acquisition

The carrying value of goodwill recorded in the major groups of CGUs is set out below

GOODWL 2013 2012

Cm Em

Scientific Technical Medical 1051 1026

RiskSolutions 1604 1559

Business Information 374 408

Legal 1121 1.150

Exhibitions 426 402

TotaL 4576 4545

Reed Etseviers goodwill impairment testing methodology assumptions and sensitivity analysis are disclosed within criticaljudgements

and keysources of estimation uncertaintyon pages 105 and 106
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15 ntanqIbeasets

Total Internally

Market and Content acquired developed

customer software intangible intangible

related and other assets assets Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Cost

At January2012
2802 3263 6065 1422 7487

Acquisitions
201 27 228 229

Additions
261 261

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale
56 97 153 114 267

Exchange translation differences 131 103 234 53 287

At January2013
2816 3090 5906 1517 7423

Acquisitions
49 84 133 133

Additions
251 251

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 55 216 271 127 298

Exchange translation differences 65 16 81 24 1051

At31 December2013 2745 2942 5687 1717 7404

AccumuLated amortisation

AtlJanuary2Ol2
744 2422 3166 827 3993

Chargefortheyear
173 155 328 151 479

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale
11 89 100 79 179

Exchangetranslationdifferences
36 80 116 29 145

AtlJanuary2Ol3
870 2408 3278 870 4148

Chargefortheyear
178 139 317 160 477

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 55 216 271 22 293

Exchangetranslationdifferences
26 15 141 11 52

At31 December2013 967 2316 3283 997 4280

Net book amount

At31 December2012 1946 682 2628 647 3275

At31 December2013 1778 626 2404 720 3124

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets e.g trademarks imprints brands

customer related assets e.g subscription bases customer lists customer relationships and content software and other intangible

assets e.g editorial content software and product delivery systems other publishing rights exhibition rights and supply contracts

Included in content software and otheracquired intangible assetsare assetswith net bookvalue of 353m 2012 E431mthatarose on

acquisitions completed priorto the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets Internally

developed intangible assets typically comprise software and systems developmentwhere an identifiable asset is created that is

probable to generate future economic benefits

Included in market and customer related intangible assets are 347m 2012 354m of brands and imprints relating to Scientific

Technical Medicaldetermined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions

Indefinite lived intangibles are tested for impairmentat leastannually using the same value in use assumptions as set out in critical

judgementsand keysourcesof estimation uncertaintyon pages lO5and 106

Also included in market and customer related intangible assets are 952m 2012 1037m of customer relationship assets arising on

the acquisition of ChoicePoint in 2008with remaining usefuleconomic life of approximately l5years
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CD

CD

2013 2012

Cm Em

Investments in joint ventures 125 100

Availableforsaleinvestments

Venture capital investments held fortrading 90 76

TotaL 217 179

The value of venture capitalinvestments held for trading determined by reference to quoted market prices amounted to f12m

2012 E27m The value of otherventure capitalinvestments and available for sale investments has been determined by reference

to other observable market inputs

An analysis of changes in the carrying value of investments in jointventures is set out below

2013 2012

Cm Em

Atstartofyear 100 124

Share of results ofjoint ventures 29 24

Dividends received from joint ventures
221 20

Disposalsandtransfers f3J 33j

Additions 21 10

Exchange translation differences

Atendofyear 125 100

The principaljoint ventures at 31 December2013 are exhibition joint ventures within Exhibitions and GiuffrŁ and Martindale within Legal

Summarised aggregate information in respect of jointventures and Reed Elseviers share is set out below

Totatjointventures Reed Elseviershare

2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Em

Revenue 225 187 110 91

Netprofitfortheyear 57 45 29 24

Totalassets 246 227 117 104

Totalliabilities 134 126 64 59

Netassets 112 101 53 45

Goodwill 72 55

TotaL 125 100

Reed Elseviers combined othercomprehensive income includes nil 2012 nil relating tojointventures
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17 Prpery plant ano equipment

2013 2012

Land and Fixturesand Land and Fixtures and

buiLdings equipment TotaL buildings equipment Total

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Cost

Atstartofyear
218 537 755 238 582 820

Acquisitions

Capitalexpenditure
66 70 10 70 80

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale
341 142 21 97 118

Exchangetranslationdifferences
14 111 15 28

Atendofyear
210 558 768 218 537 755

AccumuLated depreciation

Atstartofyear
116 375 491 118 414 532

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 321 38 99

Chargefortheyear
80 89 68 76

Exchangetranslationdifferences
11 13 18

Atendofyear
117 414 531 116 375 491

Netbookamount 93 144 237 102 162 264

No depreciation is provided on freehold land of f14m 2012 E15m The net book amount of property plant and equipment at

31 December2013 inctudesEl7m 2012 Elim in respect of assets held underfinance leases relating to fixturesand equipment

18 Fnancialnt1l.ments

Details of the objectives policies and strategies pursued by Reed Elsevierin relation tofinancialinstrumentsand capital management

are set out on pages 58 and 59 of the Financial Review The main financial risks faced by Reed Elsevierare liquidity risk market risk

comprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk and credit risk Financial instruments are used tofinancethe Reed Elsevier

businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks Reed Elseviers businesses do not enter into speculative derivative

transactions Details of financial instruments subjectto liquidity market and credit risks are described below

Liquidity risk

Reed Elsevier maintains range of borrowing facilities and debt programmestofund its requirements at short notice and at

competitive rates The remaining contractual maturitiesfor borrowings and derivative financial instruments are shown in the table

below Thetable shows undiscounted principaland interest cash flows and includes contractualgross cash flows to be exchanged as

part of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where there is legal right of set-off

ContractuaL cash fLow

Carrying Within Morethan

amount lyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total

At31 December2013 Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings 2931 1497 243 524 4201 264 1909 3857

Floating rate borrowings 350 288 61 352

Derivative financiaL LiabiLities

Interestratederivatives
17 12

Cross currency interest rate swaps 16 1180 15 71 1931 388

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1031 402 222 1655

Derivative financiaL assets

Interestratederivatives 19 13 11 31

Crosscurrencyinterestrateswaps
70 247 189 443

Forwardforeignexchangecontracts
99 1082 431 233 1746

TotaL 13110 654 2651 510 425 2721 1918 4044
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Contractuai cash tlow

Carrying Within Morethan

amount year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total

At31 December2012 Em Em Em Em Em Em Em Em

Borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings 3695 803 797 251 530 428 1940 4749
Floating rate borrowings 197 132 63 200

Derivative financial LiabiLities

Interest rate derivatives

Crosscurrencyinterestrateswaps 166 180 346
Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 1382 442 1194 2018

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate derivatives 47 35 13 12 75

Cross currency interest rate swaps 93 202 243 445

Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 55 1400 460 202 2062

Total 3708 849 704 294 521 423 1948 4739

The carrying amount of derivativefinancial liabilities comprises ElOm 2012 nit in relation to fairvalue hedges E7m 2012 E7m in

relation to cash flow hedges and nit 2012 E4m not designated as hedging instruments The carrying amount of derivative financial

assets comprises E84m 2012 E124m in relation tofairvatue hedges E88m 2012 f46m in relation to cash flow hedges and E29m

2012 E25m not designated as hedging instruments less E13m 2012 nit of cash collateral received from swap counterpartieswhich

has been offset against the related derivative financial assets see Credit risk below The expected cash flows in respect of the cash

collateral have been included in the tables above togetherwith the cash flows for the related cross currency interest rate swaps

At31 December2013 Reed Elsevierhad accessto $2000m committed bankfacility maturing in July2018 which was undrawn

The bankfacility togetherwith certain private placements are subjectto financial covenants typicalto Reed Elseviers size and financial

strength Reed Elsevier had significant headroomwithinthese covenantsfortheyearended 31 December2013 There are nofinancial

covenants in any outstanding public bonds

Aftertaking account of the maturityof committed bankfacilities that back shortterm borrowings at3l December2013 and after
utilising

available cash resources no borrowings mature within two years 2012 nil no borrowings mature in the third year2012 27% 50% in

the fourth and fifthyears 201223% 42% in the sixth to tenthyears 201239% and 8% beyond the tenthyear 201211%

Market risk

Reed Etseviers primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements Derivatives are used to hedge or

reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such risks exist Derivatives used by

Reed Elsevierfor hedging particular risk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources The impact of

market risks on net post employment benefit obligations and taxation is excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

Reed Elseviers interest rate exposure management policy is aimed at reducing the exposure of the combined businesses to changes in

interest rates

At31 December2013 57% of gross borrowingswere eitherfixed rate orhad beenfixedthrough the use of interest rate swapsforward
rate agreements and options 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result in an estimated decrease in net finance costs of

E12m 2012 f8m based on the composition otfinancialinstruments including cash cash equivalents bank loans and commercial

paper borrowingsat3l December20l3.A 100 basis point rise in interest rateswould result in an estimated increase in netfinance costs

of E12m 2012 E8m

The impact on net equity ofatheoreticalchange in interest rates as at3l December2013 is restricted to the change in carrying value of

floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in designated cash flow hedge relationship and undesignated interest rate

derivatives A100 basis point reduction in interest rateswould result in an estimated reduction in netequityof nil2012 Elmand
100 basis point increase in interest rateswould increase net equity byan estimated Elm 2012 E2m The impact ofa change in interest

rates on the carrying value of fixed rate borrowings in designated fairvatue hedge relationship would be offset by the change in

carrying value of the related interest rate derivative Fixed rate borrowings not in designated hedging relationship are carried at

amortised cost
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18 Hnanca intruments continued

Foreign exchange rate risk

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and netassets of business operations in countries with currencies otherthan sterling most

particularly in respect of the US businesses Some of these exposures are offset by denominating borrowings in US dollars see note 24

Atheoreticalweakening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at3l December2Ol3would decrease the carrying value of net assets

excluding net borrowings byE500m 2012 495m Thiswould be offset to degree bya decrease in net borrowings of 246m 2012

E286m strengthening of allcurrencies by 100 against sterling at3l December 2013 would increase the carrying value of net assets

excluding net borrowings byfI500m 2012 495m and increase net borrowings byE246m 2012 286

retranslation of the combined businesses net profitforthe yearassuming 10%weakening of allforeign currencies againststerling

but excluding transactionalexposures would reduce net profit byE92m 2012 80m A10% strengthening of allforeign currencies

against sterling on this basiswould increase net prof itfortheyearby E92m 2012 80m

Credit risk

Reed Elsevierseeksto limit interest rate and foreign exchange risks described above by the use of financialinstruments and asa result

hasa credit risk from the potential non performance by the counterparties to these financialinstruments which are unsecured

The amount of this credit risk is normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principalamount being hedged

Reed Elsevier also has credit exposure to counterparties forthe full principalamount of cash and cash equivalents Credit risks are

controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with

strong long term credit ratings and the amounts outstanding with each of them

In certain situations Reed Elsevier enters into credit support arrangements with derivative counterparties to mitigatethe credit

exposures arising from hedge gains on the related financialinstruments Under these arrangements Reed Elsevier receives or pays

cash collateral equalto the mark to market valuation of the related derivative asset orliability on monthly settlement dates

At 31 December2013 E13m 2012 nil of cash collateral had been received and the resulting payable balance was offset against the

related derivative assets of 12m 2012 nil in the statement of financial position

Reed Elsevierhastreasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individualcounterparties and do not allow

significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lowerthan A-/A3 by Standard Poors Moodys and Fitch

Reed Elsevieralso has credit riskwith respect to trade receivables due from its customers that include nationaland state governments

academic institutions and large and small enterprises including lawfirms book stores and wholesalers The concentration of credit

riskfrom trade receivables is limited due to the large and broad customer base Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the

business units where they arise Where appropriate business units seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and

through management of credit terms Allowance is made for bad and doubtfuldebts based on managements assessment of the risk

taking into account the ageing profile experience and circumstance The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the

carrying amount of each financialasset including derivative financialinstruments recorded in the statement of financial position

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due but forwhich no allowance has been made Past due up

to one month 156m 2012 f148m past due twoto three months 76m 2012 58m past due fourto six months E26m 2012 14m and

past due greaterthan six months 7m 2012 Elm Examples of trade receivables which are past due but forwhich no allowance has

been made include those receivables where there is no concern overthe creditworthiness of the customerand where the history of

dealingswith the customer indicate the amountwill be settled
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Hedge accounting

The hedging relationships that are designated under 1AS39 Financial Instruments are described below

FairvaLue hedges

Reed Elsevier has entered into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swapsto hedge the exposure to changes in the fair

value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which could affect the income statement Interest

rate derivatives including cross currency interest rate swapswith principalamountof 1104m 2012 1502mwere in place at

31 December2013 swapping fixed rate term debt issues denominated in US dollars USD1 sterling euros and Swiss francs CHF to

floating rate USD sterling euro and USC debt respectivelyforthewhole orpartoftheirterm

The gains and losses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fairvalue hedgeswhich are included in the income

statementforthe two years ended 31 December20l3were as follows

GAiNS/IL ISSE ON BOiROWiNGS Fairvaiue FairvaLue

AND RELTED DERiVATkES January movement Dx- Exchange January movement Exchange 31 December

2012 gain/Loss designated gain/toss 2013 gain/Lossl gain/Itoss 2013

Em Em Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

USDdebt

Related interest rate swaps

GBPdebt 30 36 17 19
Related nterest rate swaps 30 36 17 19

EURdebt 13

Related interest rate swaps 13

CHFdebt 84 80 14 65
Related CHF to USD cross

currency interest rate

swaps 84 80 14 65

Total USO GBP EURand CHF

debt 123 14 124 50 74
Total related interest rate

derivatives 123 14 124 50 74

Netgain

Allfairvalue hedgeswere highlyeffectivethroughout the twoyears ended 31 December2013

Gross borrowingsasat3l December2013 included E31m 2012 E37m in relation tofairvalue adjustments to borrowings previously

designated in fairvalue hedge relationshipwhichwere de-designated in 2008 The related derivatives were closed out on

de-designation with cash inflowof 62m 5m 2012 E5m of thesefairvalueadjustmentswere amortised intheyearas reduction

to finance costs

Gross borrowings included nil 2012 2m in relation to fairvalue adjustments to borrowings previously designated in fairvalue hedging

relationshipwhichwere de-designated during 2012 2m 2012 7m of these fairvalueadjustmentswere amortised in theyearasa

reduction to finance costs
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18 Financial.instrumentscontiflUeCl

Cash Low hedges

Reed Elsevier enters into two types of cash flow hedge

Debt hedges comprising interest rate derivativeswhichfixthe interestexpense on portion of forecastfloating rate debt including

commercial paper shortterm bank loans and floating rateterm debt and cross currency interest rate derivatives which hedge the

cash flow exposure arising from foreign currency denominated debt

Revenue hedges comprising forward foreign exchange contracts which fix the exchange rate on portion of future foreign currency

subscription revenues forecast by the Scientific Technical Medical businesses for upto 50 months

Movements in the hedge reserve pre-tax in 2012 and 2013 including gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments were

as follows

Totaihedge

Debt Revenue reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

Cm Cm Cm

Hedge reserve at January2012 losses deferred 17 46 63

LossesIgains arising in 2012
72 70

Amounts recognised in income statement
16 10 26

Exchange translation differences

Hedge reserve at January2013 losses/gains deferred
37 35

Gainsarising in 2013
64 65

Amounts recognised in income statement

Exchange translation differences
11

Hedge reserveat 31 December2013 gainsdeferred
94 96

All cash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December2013

Ataxcharge of E23m 2012 E9m in respectof the above gainsand losses at3l December20l3wasalso deferred inthe hedge reserve

Of the amounts recognised in the income statement in the year gains of E6m 2012 losses of ElOm were recognised in revenue and

losses of3m 2012 16mwere recognised infinance costs.Atax charge offlm 2012 creditoff5mwas recognised in relationto

these items

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedgesat3l December2013 are currently expected to be recognised in the income

statement in future years as follows

Totathedge

Debt Revenue reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

Cm Cm Cm

2014
38 36

2015
37 36

2016
17 17

2017

2018

Gains deferred in hedge reserve at end of year
94 96

The cash flows forthese hedges are expected to occur in line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income statement other

than in respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions where cash flows may be expected to occur in advance of

the subscription year
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19 Dferred ax

2013 2012

Cm Em

Deferredtaxassets 4.42 79

Deferred tax liabilities 1076 919
TotaL 634 840

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets before taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction

are summarised as follows

Deferred tax Liabiuties Deferred tax assets

Excess of tax Excess of

attowances Acquired Other amortisation Tax tosses Other

over intangibLe temporary overtax carried Pensions temporary

amortisation assets differences alLowances forward liabiLities differences TotaL

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Deferred tax liability/asset

atlJanuary2Ol2 231 900 105 16 48 86 62 1024
Charge/credittoprofit 85 19 21 23 51

Charge/credit to equity/other 82

comprehensive income 91

Acquisitions 10 16

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale 18 25

Exchangetranslationdifferences 10 35 42

Deferred tax liability/asset

atlJanuary2ol3 2231 772 108 23 153 78 840

Charge/credittoprofit 138 98 106 346 26 105 271

Charge/credit to equity/other

comprehensive income 24 12 18
Acquisitions 39 39

DisposaLs/reclassifiedasheldforsale 18 30
Exchange translation differences 13 13 22

Deferred tax Liabitity/asset

at3l December2013 351 718 225 349 14 104 193 634

Other deferred tax liabilities includes temporary differences in respect of plant property and equipment capitalised development

spend and financial instruments Other deferred tax assets includes temporary differences in respect of share based remuneration

and provisions

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other deductible temporary differences have only been recognised to the extent that it is

more likely
than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered Accordingly no deferred tax asset

has been recognised in respect of unused trading losses of approximately E84m 2012 El 29m carried forward at year end The deferred

tax asset not recognised in respect of these losses is approximately 20m 2012 E34m Of the unrecognised losses 56m 2012 E47m

willexpire if not utilisedwithin lOyears and E28m 2012 E82mwillexpire aftermorethan l0years

Deferred tax assets of approximately E14m 2012 E9m have not been recognised in respect of tax losses and othertemporary

differences carried forward of E69m 2012 E41 which can only be used to offset future capital gains

20 Inventories and pre-pub.ication costs

2013 2012

Cm Em

Raw materials

Pre-pubLication costs 90 101

Finished goods 49 55

TotaL 142 159
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21 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

Cm Em

Tradereceivables
1299 1256

Allowance for doubtful debts
57 51

1242 1205

Prepayments and accrued income
174 175

TotaL
1416 1380

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to theirfarrvalue

Trade receivables are stated net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts The movements in the provision during the yearwere

as follows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Atstartofyear
51 63

Chargefortheyear
17 13

Trade receivabteswritten off
11 18

Disposals

Exchange translation differences

Atendofyear
57 51

22 Assets and liabihties held icr sal.e

The major classes of assets and liabilities of operations classified as held for sate are as follows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Goodwill
16 134

Intangible assets
84

Property plant equipment

Deferredtaxassets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
71

TotaLassetsheLdforsale
21 297

Trade and other payabtes
69

Deferred tax liabilities
27

TotaL LiabiLities associated with assets heLd for saLe
96

23 Trade and other payabt.es

2013 2012

Cm Em

Payabtesandaccruals
1192 1150

Deferred income
1403 1394

TotaL
2595 2544

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximatesto theirfairvalue
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24 Brrowings

2013 2012

Fallingdue Fattingduein Faltingdue Faltingduein

within morethan within morethan

lyear lyear Total lyear lyear Total

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 287 287 131 131

Termdebt 1223 1223 1526 1526

Financeleases 17 16

Term debt in fairvalue hedging relationships 240 938 1178 102 1036 1.138

Term debt previously in fairvalue hedging relationships 112 464 576 490 591 1081

TotaL 648 2633 3281 730 3162 3892

In 2013 E186m principalamount of term debt maturing in 2Ol9was exchanged forf235m principal amount of term debt maturing in

2022 and cash The exchange is treated asa debt modification foraccounting purposes The premium arising is offset against the

carrying amount of the newly issued term debt maturing in 2022 and will be amortised over its life

The totalfairvalue offinancial liabilities measured at amortised cost is E1709m 2012 E1996m The totalfairvalue of term debt in fair

value hedging relationships isCl288m 2012 E1177m The totalfairvalue of term debt previouslyin fairvalue hedging relationships is

650m 2012 1189m

Anatysisbyyearof repayment

2013 2012

Shortterm Short term

banktoans bank loans

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Term debt leases Total paper Term debt teases Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em Em

Within lyear 287 352 648 131 592 730

Within lto2years 174 179 644 650

Within2to3years 400 403 178 181

Within3to4years 341 341 400 400

Within4to5years 181 181 359 359

After5years 1529 1529 1572 1572

After year 2625 2633 3153 3162

TotaL 287 2977 17 3281 131 3745 16 3892

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paperwere backed up at 31 December2013 bya $2000m C1207m committed bank

facility maturing in July 2018 which was undrawn

AnaLysis by currency

2013 2012

Short term Short term

bankloans banktoans

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance corn mercial Finance

paper Term debt leases TotaL paper Term debt leases Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em Em

USdollars 87 1800 17 1904 25 2059 16 2100

Esterling 27 719 746 736 736

Euro 167 458 625 103 950 1053

Othercurrencies

TotaL 287 2977 17 3281 131 3745 16 3892

Included in the US dollar amounts forterm debt above isE427m 2012 E347m of debt denominated in Swiss francs CHF 625m
2012 CHF 500m thatwas swapped into US dollars on issuance and againstwhich there are related derivative financial instruments

which asat3l December2013 had fairvalue of E81m 2012 E80m 65m 12012 E80m of these derivativeswere designated asfair

value hedges of the related Swissfranc debt and E16m 2012 nil were undesignated
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25 Lease arranqements

Finance Leases

At 31 December20l3futurefinance lease obligations fall due as follows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Withinoneyear

In the second to fifth years inclusive

17 16

Lessfuturefinancecharges

TotaL
17 16

Present value of future finance lease obligations payable

Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive

TotaL
17 16

The fairvalue of the lease obligations approximatesto their carrying amount

Operating Leases

Reed Elsevier leases various properties principally offices and warehouses which have varying terms and renewal rightsthat are

typical to the territory in which theyare located

At31 December2013 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases falldue as follows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Withinoneyear
103 117

In the second to fifth years inclusive
275 309

Afterfiveyears
169 184

TotaL
547 610

Of the above outstanding commitments E528m 2012 577m relate to land and buildings

Reed Elsevier has numberof properties that are sub-leased.The future lease receivables contracted with subtenantsfallasfollows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Within oneyear
16 16

In the second to fifth years inclusive
43 33

Afterfiveyears
25 17

TotaL
84 66
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26 Povisions

2013 2012

Property Restructuring Total Property Restructuring Total

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Atstartofyear 164 169 109 17 126

Transfers 22 22

Charged 62 62

Utilised 32 35 24 12 36

Exchangetranslationdifferences

Atendofyear 131 133 164 169

Property provisions relate to estimated sub tease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leases forvarious

periods upto 2024 The charge in 2012 predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses

At 31 December 2013 provisions are included within current and non-current liabilities as follows

2013 2012

Cm Em

Current liabilities 17 30

Non-currentliabilities 116 139

TotaL 133 169

27 Combined share capital share premiumsand shares held in treasury

Combined share capitals exclude the shares of Reed Elsevier NV held by subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC Disclosures in respect of

share capitalare given in note l2to the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements and note l3tothe Reed Elsevier NV

consolidated financialstatements Combined share premiums excludethe share premium in respect of shares of Reed Elsevier NV held

by subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC

During the year Reed Elsevier repurchased 41961920 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares 24282106 Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares

and 94053 Reed Elsevier NV sharesfor consideration of E600m These shares are held in treasury

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shares which at the trustees discretion can be used in respect of the

exercise of share options and to meet commitments under conditionalshare awards At31 December 2013 shares held by the EBT were

El 12m 2012 E152m at cost

Detailsof the shares held in treasuryare provided in note 12 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financiatstatements and note 13 of

the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements



FINANCIALSTATEMENTSAND OTHER INFORMATION

..O NOTESTO THE COMBINED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2013

28 Other combined reserves

Hedge Other Total

reserve reserves Total Restated

2013 2013 2013 2012

Cm Cm Em Em

Atstartofyear
26 226 252 199

Profit attributableto parent companies shareholders 1110 1110 1044

Dividendspaid
549 549 521

Actuarialgains/losses on defined benefit pension schemes 40 40 2931

Transferto net profit on disposalof available for sale investments
11

FairvaluemovementsoncashflowhedgeS
65 65 70

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income 15 24 39 77

Increase in share based remuneration reserve net of tax 48 48 31

Settlementofshareawards
40 40

Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve net of tax
21

Disposalof non-controlling interests

Exchangetranslationdifferences
12

Atendofyear
73 807 880 252

Other reserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve

29 Retated party transachon

Transactions between the Reed Elseviercombined businesses have been eliminated within the combined financialstatements

Transactionswithjointventureswere made on normalmarketterms of trading and comprise sales of goodsand servicesof Elm

2012 Elm As at3l December2013 amounts owed byjointventureswere E7m 2012 Elm and amounts dueto jointventureswere 6m

2012 Elm Key management personnel are also related parties as defined byIAS24 Related Party Disclosures and comprise the

Executive and Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Key management personnel remuneration is set out below The remuneration details of Executive Directors employed during 2013 are

given in the Directors Remuneration Report single total remuneration table page 86 with these details forming an integral part of the

financialstatements In addition to the Directors reported in the Remuneration Report Mark Armourserved as an Executive Director

until3l December 2012 Details of MrArmours remuneration are shown below For reporting purposes salary benefits and annual

incentive payments are considered shortterm employee benefits

KEV M4NAEMENT PERSONNE REMUNERAUON
2013 2012

Cm Em

Salaries other short term employee benefits and non-executive fees

Post employment benefits

Share based remuneration

TotaL
11

EXEElJVE DIREL QR Costof Costof

Annual share based pension

Salary Benefits Incentive remuneration provision Total

000 000 000 000 000 OOO

2013 1677 260 1743 3898 642 8220

TotatExecutiveDirectors 2012 1910 62 2074 5079 770 9895

2013

Of which Mark Armour 2012 645 24 694 2067 259 3689

The share based remuneration charge comprises the multi-yearincentive scheme charges in accordance with IFRS2 Share Based

Payment These IFRS2 charges do not ref lect the actualvalue received on vesting The cost of pension provision comprises the transfer

value of the increase in accrued pension during the year net of inflation Directors contributions and participation feefor defined

benefit schemes and payments made to defined contribution schemes or in lieu of pension

Mark Armourserved as an Executive Director until 31 December2012
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29 RE1aled pnrtytransactionscontiriued

NONEXEI UTIVE DIREC ORS

Fees and benefits

The remuneration details of Non-Executive Directors are set out in the Remuneration Report page 87 with these details forming an

integral part of the financial statements No termination benef its were paid to any Director in 2013 2012 nil No loans advances or

guarantees have been provided on behalf of any Director The aggregate gains made by Executive Directors on the exercise of options

during 2013 were 2526305 Details are shown on page 90 As disclosed in last years Remuneration Report the current Executive

Directors did not exercise any options during 2012 Details of Directors remuneration are set out in the Directors Remuneration Report

onpages78to94

Statement of

__________ _______
financiaL position

2013 2012

1.20 1.23

1.66 1.62
-n

137

2012

0OOO

1066

2013

000

1088

30 Echdnge rites

The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the combined financialstatements

Eurotosterling 1.18 123

USdollarstosterling 1.56 1.59

Income statement

2013 2012

31 Approva.cIfinancialstalements

The combined financialstatements were approved and authorised for issue by the Boards of Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV on 26 February 2014
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INDEPENDENTAUDITORS REPORT

Independent auditors report

to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC and sharehoWers of Reed Elsevier NV

Opinion on our audit of the combined financiaL statements of

Reed ELsevier

In our opinion the combined financial statements

give true and fairview of the state of affairs of Reed Elsevier

PLC Reed Elsevier NV Reed Elsevier Group plc Elsevier Reed

Finance BVand their respective subsidiaries associates and

joint ventures together the combined businesses as at

31 December2Oi3and of their profit and their cash flows forthe

year then ended and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs as adopted by the

European Union

We have audited the combined financial statements of the

combined businesseswhich comprise the combined income

statement the combined statement of comprehensive income the

combined statement of cash flows the combined statement of

financial position the combined statement of changes inequity

summaryof significantaccounting policiesand the related

notes ito 31 Thefinancialreportingframeworkthat has been

applied in their preparation is applicable lawand IFRSs as adopted

bythe European Union

Our assessment of risks of materiaL misstatement

The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are

those that in our professional judgement had the greatest effect

on our audit strategy the allocation of resources in the auditand

directing the efforts of the engagement team

The assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and acquired We challenged managements assumptions used in the

intangible assets impairment modelforgoodwilland acquired intangible assets

The combined businesses had E4576m of goodwilland 2404m described in note i4to the combined financialstatements

of acquired intangible assets as at3i December 2013 The including specifically the cash flow projections discount rate

quantum of these balances togetherwith the inherent judgements perpetuity growth rates and sensitivities used

required to be made when performing an impairment review have

resulted in us considering this significant risk

The carrying value of internalLy deveLoped intangibLe assets in We challenged managements assessment as to whether

accordancewith 1AS38 Intangible Assets development projects in-progress were still expected to deliver

The closing net book value of all capitalised development projects sufficient positive economic benefits to the combined businesses

is E720m The quantum of these balances togetherwith the upon their completion and for completed development projects

inherent judgements required to be made when performing an considered whether the usefuleconomic lives selected remained

impairment review have resulted in us considering this appropriate

significant risk

Revenue recognition including the timing of revenue recognition We performed tests of controls over revenue recognition

and the accounting for muLtipLe eLement arrangements including the timing of revenue recognition and the accounting for

Reed Elseviers businesses continue to evolve and new business revenue recognition in multiple element arrangements aswellas

models can result in new revenue arrangements This can result substantive testing analytical procedures and assessing whether

in circumstances which require careful consideration to the revenue recognition policies adopted complied with IFRS

determine how revenue should be recognised

The valuation of amounts recorded for uncertain tax positions We considered the appropriateness of managements

Reed Elsevier operates in significant number ofjurisdictions assumptions and estimates in relation to uncertain tax positions

around the world allwith differing tax regimes with complex challenging those assumptions and considering advice received

cross-border arrangements and istherefore open to challenge by managementfrom external partiesto supporttheir position

from multiple taxauthorities

An overview of the scope of ouraudit

Our audit of the combined financialstaternents was scoped by

obtaining an understanding of the combined businesses and its

environment including the entity-wide controls and assessing

the risks of material misstatement at the combined businesses

level Based on that risk assessment we designed and performed

audit procedures responsiveto those risks and obtained audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for

ouropinion In making those risk assessments we considered

internalcontrol relevantto the entitys preparation and fair

presentation of thefinancialstatements in orderto design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances As part of

an audit in accordance with the applicable standards we exercised

professionaljudgment
and maintained professionalscepticism

throughout the planning and performance of the audit

RISK HOWIHE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT RESPONOEDTO THE RISK

We agreed withtheAuditCommitteesthatwewOuld reporttothe

Committees allaudit differences in excess of E1.7m as wellas

differences below that threshold that in ourview warranted

reporting on qualitative grounds

The above matters are selected from the matters communicated

to the Audit Committees but are not intended to represent all

mattersthatwere discussed with them The Audit Committees

consideration of these risks is set out on page 95

Ouraudit procedures relating to these matters were designed in

the context of our audit of the financialstatements as whole and

not to express an opinion on individualaccounts or disclosures

Our opinion on thefinancialstatements is not modified with

respect to any of the risks described above and we do not express

an opinion on these individual matters

Our application of materiality

We have considered number of benchmarks in orderto guide our

determination of our materiality We determined materiality for

the combined businesses to be E85m which is around 7% of

pre-tax profit and below 5% of equity Ouraudit work at the

operating locations was executed at levels of materiality lower

than the materialityforthe combined businesses and was capped

at E30m or$50m
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Based on that assessment our audit scope for the combined

businesses focused primarilyon the audits of seventeen operating

locations which represent the principal business unitswithin the

combined businesses five reportable segments These locations

togetherwith the combined businesses head office functions

which were also subject to full scope audit account for 95% of

the combined businesses totalassets 92% of the combined

businesses total liabilities 80% of the combined businesses

revenue 84% of the combined businesses adjusted operating

profit and 87% of the combined businesses profit before tax They

were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking

audit work to address the risks of material misstatement

identified above

The combined businesses auditteam continued tofollowa

programme of planned visits that has been designed so that the

Audit Partners of Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

frequently visit the key locations The Audit Partners also attend

audit close meetings with management of each of the combined

businesses five operating segments alongside the localauditors

of the business units

We also tested the consolidation process and carried outanalytical

procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant

risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial

information of the remaining components not subjectto audit

We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

financial information of the entities and business activities to

express an opinion on the combined financialstatements We are

responsible forthe direction supervision and performance of the

combined businesses audit We remain responsible forour

audit opinion

Going concern

The financial statements of the combined businesses have been

prepared using the going concern basis of accounting The use of

this basis of accounting is appropriate unLess management either

intends to liquidate the combined businesses orto cease

operations or has no realistic alternative butto do so

We have reviewed the Report of the Boards on page 76 where the

Board has not identified materialuncertaintythat may cast

significant doubt on the combined businesses abilityto continue

as going concern We confirm that

we have not identified material uncertainties related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the combined

businesses ability to continue as going concern which we

believe would need to be disclosed in accordance with IFRSsas

adopted bythe European Union and

we have concluded that the Boards use of the going concern

basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

statements is appropriate

However because not allfuture events or conditions can be

predicted this statement is not guarantee asto the combined

businesses ability to continue as going concern

Other matters

The separate audit reports on the consolidated financial

statements of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV which

have been audited under locally adopted auditing standards and

which include the otheropinions required by local laws and

regulationsappearonpagesl74tol75andl97tol98

Respective responsibiLities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully
in the Directors responsibilities

statement the Boards are responsible forthe preparation of the

combined financialstatements in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted bythe European Union

and for being satisfied that they give true and fairviewand for

such internalcontrolastheydetermine is necessary to enable the

preparation of combined financialstatementsthat arefree from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Our responsibility isto audit and express an opinion on the

combined financialstatements in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland as issued by the United

Kingdom Auditing Practices Board and Dutch Law including the

Dutch Standards on Auditing The standards require us to comply

with our respective professions ethical requirements including

the Auditing Practices Boards Ethical Standards forAuditors and

the International Ethical Standards Board of Accountants Code of

Ethics We are independent of the group within the meaning of the

applicable lawand regulation and have fulfilled our other

responsibilities under those ethical requirements We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide basis for our opinion

We are requiredto communicatewiththeAuditCommittees

regarding among other matters the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings including any significant

deficiencies in internal controlthatwe identify during our audit

We are also required to provide the Audit Committees with

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirementsregarding independenceandtocommunicatewith

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence and where applicable

related safeguards

Scope of the audit of the combined financiaL statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence aboutthe amounts and

disclosures in the combined financialstatements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the combined financial statements are

free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or

error This includes an assessment of whetherthe accounting

policies are appropriate to the combined businesses

circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately

disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by the directors and the overall presentation of the

combined financialstatements In additionwe read allthe

financialand non-financial information in the annual reportto

identify material inconsistencies with the audited combined

financial statements and to identify any information that is

apparently materially incorrect based on or materially

inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of

performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

implications forour report

Douglas King Seniorstatutoryauditor

Forand on behalf of

DeLoitte LLP

Chartered Accountants

and StatutoryAuditor

London United Kingdom

26 February2ol4
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L4.j SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN EUROS

Introduction

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are presented in pounds sterling This summary financial information presents the

primary combined financialstatements and selected notes in euros using the exchange rates provided in note 30 tothe combined

financial statements

Combined income statement

FOR THE YIEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER Restated

2013 2012

Note Cm

Revenue 7121 7523

Costof sales 24991 2631

Gross profit
4622 4892

Selling and distribution costs 11861 1249

Administration and other expenses
1.847 2033

Operating profit before joint ventures 1589 1610

Share of results of joint ventures 35 29

Operating profit
1624 1639

Finance income
12 20

Finance costs 243 299

Netfinancecosts 231 279

Disposals and other non operating items 19 56

Profitbeforetax 1412 1416

Currenttax 416 189

Deferred tax 320 63

Taxexpense
96 126

Netprofitfortheyear
1316 1290

Attributable to

Parent companies shareholders 1310 1284

Non-controlling interests

Netprofitfortheyear
1316 1290

Combined statement of comprehensive income

FORTHEVEARENDED31 DECEMBER Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Netprofitfortheyear
1316 1.290

Items that wilL not be recLassified to profit or toss

Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit pension schemes 47 360

Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 128 118

TotaL items that wiLL not be recLassified to profit or Loss 19 242

Items that may be recLassified subsequentLy to profit or Loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1171 102

Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments 14

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges
77 86

Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve net of tax 26

Tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 18 24

TotaL items that may be recLassified to profit or Loss 114

Other comprehensive toss for the year 195 242

TotaLcomprehensive income forthe year 1221 1048

Attributable to

Parent companies shareholders 1215 1042

Non-controlling interests

TotaLcomprehensiveincomefortheyear
1221 1048
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Combined statement of cash flows

FOR THE EAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2013 2012

Note em

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 2293 2272
Interest paid 236 284
Interest received

Tax paid net 427 266
Net cash from operating activities

.636 1731

Cash fLows from investing activities

Acquisitions 12611 389
Purchases of property plant and equipment 67 86
Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 296 323
Purchase of investments 12
Proceeds from disposals of property plant and equipment

Gross proceeds from business disposals 367 289

Paymentson businessdisposals 137 101
Dividends received from joint ventures 26 25

Net cash used in investing activities 3731 585

Cash fLows from financing activities

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 648 641
Distributions to non-controlling interests

Increase/decrease in short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 199 534
Issuanceoftermdebt 217 728

Repayment of term debt 1080 538
Repayment of finance leases 12
DisposaLof non-controlling interests

Repurchase of ordinary shares 7081 308
Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares 148 59

Net cash used in financing activities 1891 1235

Decrease in cash and cash equivaLents 628 89

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents

Atstartofyear 788 871

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 628 89
Exchange translation differences

Atendofyear 158 788
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1L4Z4 SUMMARYCOMBINEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTSINEUROS

Combinedstatement of financiaL position

ASATJ1
2013 2012

Note Cm

Non-current assets

Goodwill
5491 5591

Intangible assets
3749 4028

Investments in joint ventures
150 123

Otherinvestments
110 97

Property plant and equipment
285 325

Deferred tax assets
530 97

Derivative financial instruments
77 170

10392 10431

Current assets

Inventories and pre-publication costs
171 196

Trade and other receivables
1699 1697

Derivative financial instruments
149 70

Cash and cash equivalents
158 788

2177 2751

Assetshetdforsate
25 365

TotaLassets
12594 13547

Current LiabiLities

Trade and other payables
3114 3129

Derivative financial instruments
14

Borrowings
778 898

Taxation
705 742

Provisions
20 37

4622 4820

Non-current LiabiLities

Derivative financial instruments
16

Borrowings
3159 3889

Deferred tax liabilities
1291 1130

Net pension obligations

455 573

Provisions

139 171

5060 5763

LiabiLities associated with assets heLd for saLe
118

TotaL LiabiLities
9686 10701

Net assets
2908 2846

CapitaL and reserves

Combined share capitals
269 274

Combined share premiums
3664 3354

Combined shares held in treasury
t1757 106

Translation reserve
25 161

Othercombined reserves
867 121

Combined sharehoLders equity
2868 2804

Non-controlling interests
40 42

TotaL equity
2908 2846
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Combinedstatement of changes in equity

Combined

Combined Combined Combined Other share- Non-

share share sharesheld Translation combined holders controlling Total

capitals premiums intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

268 3268 7961 297 4311 2606 30 2636

102 1144 1042 1048

641 641 646
58 59 59

308 308 308

38 38 38

Acquisitions

Disposalof non-controlling interests

Exchange differences on translation of

capitaland reserves 28 11 34 12

BalanceatlJanuary2Ol3 274 3354 1106 161 121 2804 42 2846

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 171 1386 1215 1221

Dividends paid 648 648 655
lssueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 147 148 148

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 708 708 708
Increase in share based remuneration

reservenetoftax 57 57

Settlement of share awards 47 47
Exchange differences on translation of

capitaland reserves 37 10 35

Batanceat3l December2013 269 3464 1757 25 867 2868 40 2908

CD

CD

Balance at January2012

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends paid

Issue of ordinary shares net of expenses

Repurchase of ordinary shares

Increase in share based remuneration

reserve

Settlement of share awards

to

CD

Ui

CD

11 11

57

CD

CD

CD

CD
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L4.Q NOTESTO THE SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Segment anaysis

ANALYSH BY BUSINESS SEGMENT Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Scientific Technical Medical 2509 2538 876 868 975 960

RiskSolutions 1101 1139 368 346 489 482

Businesslnformation
645 815 84 93 126 146

Legal
1849 1980 164 180 281 288

Exhibitions 1017 1051 190 210 251 258

Sub-total 7121 7523 1682 1697 2122 2.134

Corporate costs
158 58 158 58

TotaL 7121 7523 1624 1639 2064 2076

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of 35m 2012 29mi included in operating profit comprises 7m 2012 2m relating

to Legaland 28m 2012 27m relating to Exhibitions

ANALYSIS OF REVS NUE BY GEOGRAPHILAL ORIGIN
2013 2012

Cm Cm

North America
3661 3840

United Kingdom
1162 1188

The Netherlands
774 752

Restof Europe
824 969

Rest of world
700 774

TotaL
7121 7.523

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEiGRAPHIiA MARKE
2013 2012

Cm Cm

North America
3637 3879

United Kingdom
523 544

The Netherlands
196 203

Restof Europe
1267 1447

Rest of world
1498 1450

TotaL
7121 7523

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY OVMAT
2013 2012

Cm Cm

Electronic
4686 4792

Print
1378 1605

Facetoface
1057 1.126

Total
7121 7523
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Sejmentanalysiscortintied

ANALYSKOFI1EVENLJE BYTYPE

147

2013 2012

Cm Cm

Subscriptions 3672 3663
Transactional 3166 3429

Advertising 283 431

Total
7121 7523

ANALYSL BY EIJS1NES1 SEGMENT Expenditureon Capital Amortisation

acquired goodwiltand expenditure of acquired Depreciation and

intangibleassets additions intangibleassets otheramortisation

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Scientific Technical Medical 59 148 110 130 90 84 112 101

RiskSolutions 193 18 30 26 114 134 26 28

Businesslnformation 21 21 37 46 12 17

Legal 18 98 200 213 87 102 127 113

Exhibitions 66 219 18 31 47 39 17 20

TotaL 342 483 379 421 375 405 294 279

Capitalexpenditure comprises additions to property plant and equipment and internallydeveloped intangible assets Amortisation of

acquired intangible assets includes amounts in respect ofjointventures of lm2012 lm in Exhibitions Otherthan the depreciation

and amortisation above non cash items include 37m 2012 38m relating to the recognition of share based remuneration and

comprise 7m 2012 C6m in Scientific Technical Medical 4m 2012 nil in Risk Solutions 2m 2012 4m in Business

Information 7m 2012 8m in Legal 5m 2012 5m in Exhibitions and 12m 2012 15m in Corporate

ANALYS1E OF NON-CURGEE4TASSEFS BYG1EOGRJ PHICAL LOCATION 2013 2012

Cm Cm

NorthAmerica 7549 8.012

United Kingdom 701 645
The Netherlands 150 148

Rest of Europe 904 897
Rest of world

481 462

TotaL
9785 10164

CD

CD

CD

Non-current assets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax assets and derivative financial instruments
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14 NOTESTO THESUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL FORMATNEUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Pension schemes

The pension expense recognised within operating expense IS

ANALYS OF REV BY FORMM
Restated

2013 2012

Cm Cm

Defined benefit pension expense
16 53

Defined contribution pension expense
56 56

TotaL

72 109

The amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major

scheme as follows

Restated

2013 2012

UK US NL TotaL UK US NL Totai

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Service cost 34 34 18 86 33 35 10 78

Settlement past service and curtailment

credits
601 10 701 241 25

DefinedbenefitpenSiOfleXPeflSe
34 26 16 32 11 10 53

10 22
14

NetdefinedbenefitpeflSiOfleXPeflSe
41 16 13 38 38 20 67

Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within netfinance costs in the income statement Service cost

including settlements pastservice credits and curtailments is presented within operating expenses

The amount recognised in the statement offinancial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start and end of the

yearand the movements during the yearwere as follows

Restated

2013 2012

UK US NL Total UK US NL TotaL

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Defined benefit obLigation

Atstartofyear 32641 11351 8561 52551 2975 1029 647 4651

Servicecost 341 341 181 861 33 35 10 78

Settlements past service and

curtailment credits 60 10 70 24 25

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 1441 491 30 2231 153 54 37 244

Actuarial loss/gain on financial

assumptions
204 101 21 821 113 179 178 470

Actuarial loss/gain arising from

experienceassumptions
12 31 61 18 22 39

Contributionsbyemployees 71 131
14

Benefitspaid
111 110 22 243 110 138 18 266

Exchange translation differences 75 44 120 74 22 50

Atendofyear 3458 9151 8591 5232 3264 1135 856 5255

Fair vaLue of scheme assets

Atstartofyear
3095 874 713 4682 2845 871 645 4361

Interestincomeonplanassets
137 39 25 201 147 45 38 230

Return on assets excluding amounts

included in interest income 131 135 56 65 28 149

Contributionsbyemployer
42 39 17 98 78 47 18 143

Contributions byemployees
13 14

Benefitspaid
1111 1101 22 2431 109 138 19 266

ExchangetranslationdiffereflceS
72 361 11 109 69 16 51

Atendofyear 3229 811 737 4777 3095 874 713 4682

NetdefinedbenefitpeflsiOflObLigatiOn 2291 104 1221 6551 169 261 143 573

included in benefits paid are settlements of 61m 2012 92m

As at3l December2013 the defined benefit obligations comprise 5040m 2012 5058m in relation to funded schemesand 192m

2012 197m in relation to unfunded schemes
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Adjusted figures

Reed Elsevier uses adjusted figures as additional performance measures Adjusted operating profit excludes amortisation of acquired

intangible assets acquisition related costsandthe share of taxes in jointventures Acquisition related costs relateto acquisition

integration transaction related fees and those elements of deferred and contingent consideration required to be expensed under IFRS

Adjusted profit beforetax also excludes disposal related and other non operating items and the netfinancing charge or credit on defined

benefit pension schemes The adjusted tax charge excludes the tax effect of these adjusting items exceptionaltax credits in 2012 only
and movements on deferred tax assets and liabilities related to goodwilland acquired intangible assets It includes the benefit of tax

amortisation where available on goodwilland acquired intangible assets.Adjusted operating cash flow is measured after net capital

expenditure and dividends from joint ventures but before payments in relation to prioryear exceptional restructuring programmes and

acquisition related costs Adjusted figures are derived as follows

Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Operating profit 1624 1639

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 375 405

Acquisition related costs 51 26

Reclassification of tax injointventures 14

Adjusted operating profit 2064 2076

Profitbeforetax 1412 1416

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 375 405

Acquisition related costs 51 26

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 14

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 22 14

Disposals and other non operating items 191

Adjusted profit before tax 1855 1811

Taxcharge 961 126
Adjustments

Deferred tax movements on goodwill and acquired intangible assets

Tax on acquisition related costs 14
RecLassification of tax in joint ventures 141

Tax on net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 71

Tax on disposals and other non operating items 40

Otherdeferred taxcreditsfrom intangible assets 3541

Exceptional prioryeartax credit

Adjusted tax charge 4361

Profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1310 1284

Adjustments post tax

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 384 413

Acquisition related costs 37 20

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 15 10

Disposals and other non operating items 21 127
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets 3541

Exceptional prioryeartax credits 118

Adjusted profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 413 1379

Cash generated from operations 2293 2272

Dividends received from joint ventures 26 25

Purchases of property plant and equipment 671 86
Proceeds from disposals of property plant and equipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 2961

Payments in relation to exceptional restructuring costs 14 30

Payments in relation to acquisition related costs 33 45

Adjusted operating cash fLow 2010 1972

movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify fortax amortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global managementstructure
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NOTESTOTHESUMMARYCOMBINEDF1NANCI4L1NF0RMATb0NlNE

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Statement of cash I.ows

RECONCiLIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE JO NT VENTURES TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPIERAT0NS Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Operating profit before jointventures
1589 1610

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
374 404

Amortisation of internallydeveloped intangible assets
189 186

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
105 93

Share based remuneration
37 38

TotaLnoncashitems
705 721

Decrease in inventories and pre-publication costs
12 26

Decrease in receivables

Decrease in payables
1193 90

IncreaseinworkingcapitaL
59

Cash generated from operations
2293 2272

CASH FLOWONACQU1SIT1ON
2013 2012

Cm

Purchase of businesses
229 339

Investment injointventures

13

Deferred payments relating to prioryear acquisitions
25 37

TotaL
2613 389

REcONILIATIDN OF NFl BOHROW1NGF
ReLated

derivative

Cash cash financiaL

equivaLents Borrowings instruments 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm

Atstartofyear
788 47873 153 3846 4119

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
628 628 89

Net movement in short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 182 17 199 534

Issuanceoftermdebt
217 217 728

Repaymentoftermdebt
1080 1080 538

Repaymentoffinanceleases
12 12

ChangeinnetborrowiflgsreSULtiflgfrOmCaShfLows
628 693 17 48 260

Inceptionoffinanceleases
14 14 16

Fair value and other adjustments to borrowings and related derivatives 38 393

ExchangetranslationdiffereflceS
133 127 28

Atendofyear
158 3937 93 3686 3846

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents loan capital finance leases promissory notes bank and other loans derivative

financial instrumentsthat are used to hedge thefairvalue offixed rate borrowings and payable/receivable balances in respect of cash

collateral received/paid
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Acqusitions

Duringtheyeara numberof acquisitionswere madeforatotalconsideration of 282m 2012 419m1 aftertaking accountofnetcash

acquired of 17m 2012 C15m The netassets of the businessesacquired are incorporated attheirfairvaluetothe combined

businesses Provisionalfairvalues of the consideration given and of the assets and Liabilities acquired are summarised below

Fair Fair

value value

2O3 2012

Cm

Goodwill 185 203

Intangibleassets 157 281

Property plant equipment

Current assets 11 26

Current liabilities 251 75
Currenttax

Deferred tax 461 20

Netassetsacquired 282 419

Consideration aftertaking account of C17m 2012 15m net cash acquired 282 419

Less consideration deferred to future years 421 28
Less acquisition date fairvalue of equity interest 11 52
Net cash fLow 229 339

Goodwill being the excess of the consideration overthe net tangible and intangible assets acquired represents benefitswhich do not

qualify for recognition as intangible assets including the ability of business to generate higher returns than individualassets skilled

workforces acquisition synergiesthatare specific to Reed Elsevier and high barriersto market entry In addition goodwillarises on the

recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets forwhich amortisation does nOt qualifyfortax deductions

Thefairvalues of the assets and liabilitiesacquired are provisionalpending the completion of thevaluation exercises Finalfairvalues

will be incorporated in the 2014 combined financialstatements There were no significantadjustmentsto the provisionalfairvalues of

prioryearacquisitions established in 2012

The businesses acquired in 2013 contributed 32m to revenue increased adjusted operating profit by9m increased adjusted net

profit by9m decreased reported net profit bylm and contributed net cash outf low of 4m from operating activities forthe part

year under Reed Elsevier ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs Had the businesses been acquired at the

beginning of the year on pro
forma basis the Reed Elsevier revenues adjusted operating profit adjusted net profit attributable to

parent companies shareholdersand net profitattributableto parentcompanies shareholdersfortheyearwould have been 7159m
2066m 1415m and 1312m respectively before taking account of acquisition financing costs
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NOTES TO THE SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Borrowings

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 344 344 161 161

Termdebt 1468 1468 1877 1877

Financeleases
11 20 11 20

Term debt in fairvalue hedging relationships
288 1126 1414 125 1274 1399

Term debt previously in fairvalue hedging relationships 135 556 691 603 727 1330

TotaL
778 3159 3937 898 3889 4787

In 2013 223m principalamountof term debt maturing in 2Ol9was exchanged for282m principalamount
of term debt maturing in

2022 and cash The exchange is treated asa debt modification foraccounting purposes
The premium is offset against the carrying

amount of the newly issued term debt maturing in 2022 and will be amortised over its life

The totalfairvalue of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is2051m 2012 2455m The totalfairvalue of other loans in

fairvalue hedging relationships is 1546m 2012 1448m The totalfairvalue of other loans previously in fairvalue hedging

relationships is780m 2012 1462m

Short term

bank loans

overdrafts

and

2013

FaLLing due Fatling due in

within morethan

lyear lyear Total

Cm Cm Cm

2012

Fatling due Faltingduein

within more than

lyear lyear Total

AnaLysis byyear of repayment

2013

Shortterm

bank Loans

overdrafts

and

2012

commerciaL Finance commercial Fuance

paper Term debt Leases TotaL paper Term debt leases Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm

Withinlyear
344 423 11 778 161 728 898

Within to2years
209 215 792 799

Within2to3years
480 483 219 223

Within3to4years
409 409 492 492

Within4to5years
217 217 442 442

After5years 1835 1835 1933 1933

After year
3150 3159 3878 11 3889

TotaL 344 3573 20 3937 161 4606 20 4787

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paperwere backed up at 31 December2013 bya $2000m 1448m committed bank

facility maturing in July 2018 which was undrawn
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Borowingscontinued

AnaLysis by currency

2013 2012

Shortterm Short term

banktoans bankloans

overdraftsand overdrafts and

commerciaL Finance com merciat Finance

paper Term debt Leases TotaL paper Term debt leases Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

USdollars 104 2160 20 2284 30 2532 20 2582

Esterling 32 863 895 905 905

Euro 201 550 751 127 1169 1296

Othercurrencies

TotaL 344 3573 20 3937 161 4606 20 4787

Included in the US dollaramountsforterm debt above is512m 427m of debt denominated in Swissfrancs CHF 625m
2012 CHF 500m that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are related derivative financial instruments

which asat 31 December2013 had fairvalue of 97m 2012 98m 78m 2012 98mJ of these derivativeswere designated asfair

value hedges of the related Swiss franc debt and 19m 2012 nil were undesignated

Provisions

2013 2012

Property Restructuring TotaL Property Restructuring Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Atstartofyear 202 208 131 21 152

Transfers 27 27

Charged 76 76

Utilised 38 42 30 15 45
Exchange translation differences

Atend of year 157 159 202 208

Property provisions relate to estimated sub-lease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leasesforvarious

periods upto 2024 The charge in 2012 predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses

4t31 December2013 provisions are included within current and non-current liabilities as follows

2013 2012

Cm Cm

Current liabilities 20 37

Non-current liabilities 139 171

TotaL 159 208
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J4 NOTESTOTHESUMMARYCOMBINED FINANCIALINFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Other cornbnLd reserves

Hedge Other Tota

reserve reserves TotaL Restated

2013 2013 2013 2012

Cm Cm em Em

Atstartofyear
32 89 121

Profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1310 1310 1284

Dividends paid
1648 648 641

Actuarialgains/tiosses on defined benefit pension schemes 47 47 360

Transferto net prof it on disposalof available for sale investments
14

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges
77 77 86

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income 18 28 46 94

Increase in share based remuneration reserve of tax 57 57 38

Settlementofshareawards
47 47

Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve net of tax
26

Disposalof non-controlling interests

Exchangetranslationdifferences
12

Atendofyear
88 779 867 121

Other reserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve

Exchange rates

Statement of

Income statement financiaL position

2013 2012 2013 2012

Sterling to euro
0.85 0.81 0.83 0.81

USdollarstoeuro
1.32 129 1.38 132
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UO REED ELSEVIER PLC

Directors report

The Directors present their report together with the financial

statements of the group and company forthe year ended

31 December2013

As consequence of the mergerof the companys businesses with

those of Reed Elsevier NV in 1993 described on page 69 the

shareholders of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV can be

regarded as having the interests ofa single economic group

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements represent the

combined interests of both sets of shareholders and encompass

the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc Elsevier Reed Finance

BVand their respective subsidiaries associates and joint

ventures together with the parent companies Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV combined businesses or Reed

Elsevier This Directors report and the financialstatements of

the group and company should be read in conjunction with the

combined financialstatements and other reports set out on pages

to 139 review of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses and

their performance in the year is set out on pages 7to 39

summary of the principal risks facing Reed Elsevieris set out on

pages 60 to 62 and the Reed Elsevier statement on corporate

responsibility is set out on pages
41 to 50

FinanciaL statement presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC

include the 52.9% economic interest that shareholders have under

the equalisation arrangements in the Reed Elsevier combined

businesses accounted for on an equity basis

Underthe terms of the mergeragreement dividends paid to Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders are otherthan in

special circumstances equalised at the gross level inclusive of the

UK tax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders

Because of the tax credit Reed Elsevier PLC normally requires

proportionately less cash to fund its net dividend than Reed

Elsevier NV does to fund its gross dividend An adjustment is

therefore required in the consolidated income statement of Reed

Elsevier PLC to share this tax benefit between the two sets of

shareholders in accordance with the equalisation agreement The

equalisation adjustment arises on dividends paid by Reed Elsevier

PLC to its shareholders and it reduced the consolidated

attributable earnings byEl5m 2012 14m being 47.1% of the

total amount of the tax credit

In addition to the reported figures adjusted profit figures are

presented as additional performance measures used by

management These exclude the tax credit equalisation adjustment

and in relation to the results of joint ventures the companys share

ofamortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition-related

costs disposalgains and losses and other non-operating items

related tax effects exceptional prioryear tax credits in 2012 only

and movements in deferred taxation assets and Liabilities related to

acquired intangible assets and include the benefit of tax amortisation

where available on acquired goodwilland intangible assets

Consolidated income statement

Comparative figures have been restated following the adoption

of IAS19 Employee Benefits revised Reed Elsevier PLCs

shareholders 52.9% share of the adjusted profit before tax of the

Reed Elseviercombined businesseswasE832m 2012 E779m

Reported profit before tax including the Reed Etsevier PLC

shareholders share of amortisation charges acquisition-related

costsand disposalsand other non-operating items wasE576m

2012 532m The increase reflects the improved trading

performance offset by lower disposal gains

Elsevierachieved good growth in primary research submissions

and usage and in databases and tools across the scientific

technical and medical segments At Risk Solutions all business

segments achieved strong growth At Business Information

underlying revenue growth accelerated reflecting continued good

growth in data services modest growth elsewhere and portfolio

development Legal maintained positive underlying revenue

growth despite subdued market conditions in the US and Europe

Exhibitions achieved strong underlying growth excluding the

effect of biennial show cycling while growth in Europe was

modest the US Japan Braziland other markets grewwell

The overatladjusted operating margin was 1.4 percentage points

higher despite investment in globaltechnology platforms and

new products and services reflecting combination of process

innovation portfolio development and currency effects

Reed Elsevier PLCs shareholders share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the combined businesses was E633m 2012

593m After deducting the companys share of the post tax

charge foramortisation of acquired intangible assets and

acquisition-related costs disposal-related and other non-

operating items the net financing charge on defined benefit

pension schemes exceptional prioryear tax credits in 2012

only and movements on deferred taxes related to acquired

intangible assets the reported net profit fortheyearwas

572m 2012 538m

Adjusted earnings per share increased 9% to 54.Op 2012 49.4p

At constant rates of exchange the adjusted earnings per share

were 7% higher Including the effect of the tax credit equalisation

aswellas amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition-

related costs disposal-related and other non-operating items the

netfinancing charge on defined benefit pension schemes and tax

adjustments the basic earnings per share were 48.8p 2012 44.8p

ConsoLidated statement of financiaL position

The consolidated statement of financial position of Reed Elsevier

PLC reflects its 52.9% economic interest in the net assets of

Reed Elsevierwhich asat3l December20l3wasfl264m

2012 1206m The E58m increase in net assets reflects the

companys share in the comprehensive income of Reed Elsevier

partially offset by dividends paid and shares repurchased

Dividends

The Board is recommending an equalised finaldividend of l7.95p

perordinaryshare 2012 17.Op.Thisgivestotatordinarydividends

fortheyearof24.60p 2012 23.Op Thefinaldividend will be paid

on 23 May2Ol4to shareholders on the Registeron May 2014

Dividend cover based on adjusted earnings per share and the

total interim and proposed finaldividends forthe year is 2.2 times

TheBoardsofthecompanyand Reed ElsevierNVhaveadopted

dividend policies in recent years in respect of their equalised

dividendsthat subjectto currency considerations grow dividends

broadly in line with adjusted earnings per share whilst maintaining

dividend cover being the numberof times the annualdividend is

covered by the adjusted earnings per share of at least 2.0 times

over the longerterm

The total dividend paid on the ordinary shares inthefinancialyear

was 278m 2012 E264m
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Parent company financial statements

The individual parent companyfinancial statements of Reed

Elsevier PLC are presented on pages 172 to 173 and are prepared

underUKGenerallyAccepted Accounting Practice Parent

companyshareholdersfundsas at3l December2Ol3were

E3044m 2012E3490m

Corporate governance

The company has complied throughout the yearwith the

provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the

Financial Reporting Council in September2012 the UK Code

The UK Code is publicly available atwww.frc.org.uk Details of

howthe principles of the UK Code have been applied and the

Directors statement on internalcontrolare set out in the

Structure and Corporate Governance report on pages 69to 77

Details of the role and responsibilities membership and activities

of the Reed ElsevierAudit Committees including the companys

Audit Committee are set out in the Report of the Audit Committees

onpages95and96

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The company is required to state the annualquantity of emissions

in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalentfrom activitiesforwhich the

group is responsible Details of our emissions during the yearended

31 December2013 andthe actions being takento reducethem are

set out in the Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic

Report on pages 49 and 50 and form part of the Directors report

disclosures Further details can be found in our online Corporate

Responsibility Report at www.reedelsevier.com/go/CRReport

Directors

Thefollowing served as Directors of the company during theyear

AJ Habgood Chairman

Engstrom Chief Executive Officer

DJ Palmer Chief FinancialOfficer

MW Elliott retired 25 April2013

Hauser appointed 25 April 2013

AN Hennah

Hook Senior Independent Directoras of 23April 2013

Polet

Sir David Reid retired 25 April2013

Sanford

van der Veer

Biographicaldetails of the Directors at the date of this report are

given on pages 64and 65

Directorsareappointed inaccordancewiththeArticlesof

Association the Articles which provide that any director

appointed during the year holds office only until the next following

AnnualGeneral Meeting AGM and is then eligible forelection by

the shareholders The companys Articles provide that at every

AGM of the company one-third of the directors or if theirnumber

is not multiple of three the number nearest to one-third shall

retire from office and if theywish put themselves up for

re-election bythe shareholders The UK Code recommendsthat

all directors should seek re-election by shareholders annually

Accordingly the Board has adopted this practice

The office of directorshall be vacated if he or she resigns

ii becomes bankrupt or compoundswith his or her creditors

generally iii is or may be suffering from mental illness iv is

prohibited by law from being director or is removed from

office pursuant to the companys Articles Subject to the

shareholders rights to appoint individuals to the Board in

accordance with the companys Articles no individual may be

appointed tothe Board unless such appointment is recommended

bythe Nominations Committee

Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid retired as Directors at the

conclusion of theAGM in April 2013 and Wolf hart Hauserwas

appointed to the Board on 25 April2013

In accordance with the provisions of the UK Code all of the

Directors will retire from the Board at the AGM in 2014 and being

eligible theywill each offer themselves for re-election Taking into

account the assessment bythe Corporate Governance Committee

of the qualifications performance and effectiveness of each

individual Director seeking re-election the Board has accepted

recommendation from the Nominations Committee that each

Director be proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM

In September 2013 Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignation

as Chief Financial Officereffective as of 25 September 2014 or

such earlier date as Reed Elsevier may designate In January2014

Reed Elsevierannounced the appointment of Nick Luff as Chief

FinancialOfficerto be effective ata date to be confirmed but is

expectedto be nolaterthan 15 December2014

In accordance with the Articles Directors are normally subject

toelection byshareholdersatthefirstAGMfollowingtheir

appointment bythe Board Notwithstanding the effective date of

Nick Luffs appointment remains to be confirmed shareholders

will be asked to elect Mr Luff at the AGM in April 2014

The notice period applicable to the service contracts of

Erik Engstrom Duncan Palmerand Nick Luff is 12 months

The remaining Directors seeking re-election at the 2014 AGM

do not have service contracts

Details of Directors remuneration and their interests in the share

capital of the company are provided in the Directors Remuneration

Report on pages 78 to 94

Share capitaL

The companys issued share capital comprises single class of

ordinary shares all of which are listed on the London Stock

Exchange All issued shares are fully paid up and carry no

additional obligations or special rights Each share carries the

right to one vote at general meetings of the company In general

meeting subject to any rights and restrictions attached to any

shares on show of hands every memberwho is present in

person shall have one vote and every proxy present who has been

dulyappointed by one or more members entitled to vote on the

resolution has one vote although proxy has one vote for and one

vote against the resolution if the proxy has been duly appointed

by more than one member entitled to vote on the resolution and ii

the proxy has been instructed by one or more of those members to

vote for the resolution and by one or more other of those members

to vote against it Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to
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any shares on vote on resolution on poll every member

present in person or by proxy shall have one vote forevery share of

which he isthe holder Proxy appointments and voting instructions

must be received by the companys registrars not Less than 48

hours before general meeting There are no specific restrictions

on the size ofa holding nor on the transfer of shares which are

both governed by the general provisions of the Articles and

prevailing legislation The company is not aware of any

agreements between shareholdersthat may result in restrictions

on the transfer of shares or on voting rights attached to the shares

At the 2013 AGM shareholders passed resolution authorising

the Directors to allot shares upto nominalvalue of 9m
representing lessthan 5% of the companys issued share capital

Since the 2013 AGM no shares have been issued underthis

authority The shareholder authority also permitted the Directors

to allot shares in order to satisfy entitlements under employee

share plans and details of such allotments are noted below The

authority to allot shares will expire at the 2014 AGM and

resolution to further extend the authority will be submitted to the

shareholders at the 2014 AGM

During the year 9438719 ordinary shares in the company were

issued in orderto satisfy entitlements under employee share

plans as follows

440685 under UK Sharesave option scheme at prices

between 401.60p and 596p pershare

7983O28underexecutiveshareoptionschemesatpriceS

between L20p and 734.50p per share and

1015006 under the Long Term Incentive Plan at prices

between 4/8p and 487.25p per share

The issued share capitalas at3l December2013 is shown in note 12

to the consolidated financialstatements

Authority to purchase shares

At the 2013 AGM shareholders passed resolution authorising

the purchase of up to 125.9 million ordinary shares in the company

representing less than 10% of the issued ordinary shares by

marketpurchase During theyear 41961920 ordinaryshareswere

purchased underthis and the previous authority As at3l December

2013 there were 99446834 ordinary shares held in treasury

representing 7.8% of the issued ordinary shares further

6045.270 ordinaryshareswere purchased between January

2Ol4and the date of this report The authorityto make market

purchases will expire at the 2O14AGM at which resolution to

further extend the authoritywill be submitted to shareholders

SubstantiaL share interests

As at 26 February 2014 the company had been notified by the

following shareholders that they held an interest of 3% or more in

voting rights of the issued share capital of the company

Franklin MutualAdvisers LLC

BlackRock Inc

Invesco Limited

Lloyds Banking Group plc

Legal GeneralGroup plc

The percentage interests stated above are as disclosed at the date

on which the interestswere notified tothe company

EmpLoyee benefit trust

The Trustee of the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust

held an interest in 10120537 ordinary shares in the company

representing 0.80% of the issued ordinaryshares as at

31 December2013 The Trustee may vote or abstain from voting

any shares it holds in anyway it sees fit

Significant agreements change of controL

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV statesthat upon change of control of Reed Elsevier

PLC forthese purposes
the acquisition bya third party of 50% or

more of the issued share capital having voting rights should there

not be comparable offer from the offeror for Reed Elsevier NV

Reed Elsevier NV may serve notice upon Reed Elsevier PLC

varying certain provisions of the Governing Agreement including

the governance and the standstill provisions

There are number of borrowing agreements including credit

facilities that in the event of change of control of both Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVand in some cases

consequential credit rating downgradeto sub-investment grade

may at the option of the lenders require repayment and/or

cancellation as appropriate

Powers of directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 the

companys Articles and any directions given by special

resolutions the business of the company shall be managed by the

Boardwhich mayexerciseallthepowersofthecompany

Directors indemnity

In accordance with the companys Articles the company has

granted Directors an indemnity to the extent permitted bylaw in

respect of liabilities incurred as result of their office The

companyalso purchased and maintained throughouttheyear

Directors and Officers liability insurance in respect of itself and

its Directors

ReLated party transactions

Internal controls are in place to ensurethatany related party

transactions involving Directors ortheir connected persons are

carried out on an arms length basis and are properly recorded

ConfLicts of interest

The Companys Articles permitthe Board to approve situations

where Director has an interest that conflicts or may possibly

conflict with the interests of the company The Board has

established formalsystem wherebythe Nominations Committee

considers any such conflict or potentialconflict and makes

recommendation to the Board on whetherto authorise it In

reaching its decision the Board is required to act in way it

considerswould bemosttikelytopromotethesuccessofthe

company and may impose limits orconditionswhen giving its

5.04% authorisatiori if itthinks this is appropriate

5.03%
PoLiticaL donations

5.03% Reed Elsevier does not make donations to European Union EU

470/
politicalorganisationsorincurEU politicalexpenditure Inthe

United States Reed Elseviercompanies donated 48000

3.40% 2012 57201 to political organisations In line with US law

these donations were not made at federal level but only to

candidatesand politicalpartiesatthestateand locallevels
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FinanciatStatements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors report

and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law

and regulations

Companylawrequiresthe Directorsto preparefinancial

statementsforeach financialyear Underthatlawthe Directors

are required to prepare the consolidated financialstatements in

accordancewith International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS as adopted by the EU and Article of the lAS Regulation

The Directors have elected to preparethe parent company

financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom

GenerallyAccepted Accounting Practice United Kingdom

Accounting Standards and applicable law Under company law

the Directors must not approve the accounts unless theyare

satisfied that they give true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the company and of the profit or loss of the companyforthat period

In preparing the parent companyfinancial statements the

Directors are required to selectsuitable accounting policies and

then applythem consistently makejudgementsand accounting

estimates that are reasonable and prudent state whether

applicable UKAccounting Standards have been followed subject

to any materialdepartures being disclosed and explained in the

financial statements and prepare thefinancialstatements on

going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume thatthe

companywill continue in business

In preparing the group financialstatements IAS1 requiresthat

directors properlyselectand applyaccounting policies present

information including accounting policies in mannerthat

provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable

information provide additionaldisclosures when compliance with

the specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users

to understand the impact of particulartransactions otherevents

and conditions on the entitys financial position and financial

performance and make an assessment of the companys abilityto

continue as going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the companys

transactions and disclosewith reasonable accuracyatanytime

the financialposition of the companyand enable them to ensure

that the financial statements complywith the Companies Act 2006

Theyare also responsiblefor safeguarding the assets of the

companyand hence fortaking reasonable steps forthe prevention

and detection offraud and other irregularities

Directors responsibiLity statement

The Board confirms that to the best of its knowledge

the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the InternationalAccounting Standards Board and as adopted

bythe European Union give true and fairview of the financial

position and profit orloss of the group and

the Directors report includes fair review of the development

and performance of the business and the position of the group

togetherwith description of the principal risks and

uncertainties that it faces

Having taken into account allthe matters considered bythe Board

and brought to the attention of the Board during the year the

Directors are satisfied thatthe Annual Report and Accounts taken

as whole is fair balanced and understandable and providesthe

information necessaryfor shareholdersto assess the Companys

performance business modeland strategy

Neitherthe company northe Directors accept any liabilityto any

person in relation to the Annual Report except to the extent that

such liability could arise under English law Accordingly any

liabilityto person who has demonstrated reliance on any untrue

or misleading statement oromission shall be determined in

accordance with Section 90A of the FinancialServices and

Markets Act 2000

DiscLosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the companys 2013 financial

statements the Directors have taken steps pursuant to section

4182 of the Companies Act 2006 to ensure that they are aware of

any relevantaudit information and to establish that the companys

auditors are aware of that information In that context so faras the

Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of

which the companys auditors are unaware

Going concern

The Directors having made appropriate enquiries considerthat

adequate resources existforthe combined businesses to continue in

operationalexistenceforthe foreseeable future and that therefore

it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the

20l3financialstatements In reaching this conclusion the Directors

have had due regard tothe combined businesses financial position

asat3l December2013 the strong free cash flowof the combined

businesses Reed Elseviers
ability to access capital markets and

the principal risks facing Reed Elsevier

Acommentaryon the Reed Elseviercombined businesses

cash flows financial position and liquidityfortheyearended

31 December2013 is set out in the Chief Financial Officers Report

on pages 52to 59 This shows that aftertaking account of available

cash resources and committed bank facilities that backup short

term borrowings none of Reed Elseviers borrowingsfall due

within the next two years Reed Elseviers policies on liquidity

capital management and management of risks relating to interest

rate foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages

58 and 59 Further information on liquidity of the combined

businesses can be found in note 18 of the combined financial

statements The principal risks facing Reed Elsevierare set out

on pages 60 to 62

Auditors

Resolutions forthe re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as auditors of

the company and to authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration will be submitted to stareholders atthe 2O14AGM

Byorderof the Board Registered Office

159

Er

Ci

CD

CD

CD

Henry Udow

CompanySecretary

26 February 2014

1-3 Strand

London

WC2N 5JR
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Consolidated income statement

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECE1BER
Restated

2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Administrative expenses
121

Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings
1151 14

Share of results ofjoint ventures
11 583 547

Operating profit

566 531

Finance income
10

Profit beforetax
576 532

Tax expense/credit
141

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders
572 538

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FJP THE YEi\R ENDED DEEE1CER
Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

572
Profit attributabLe to ordinary shareholders

538

Share ofjointventures othercomprehensive lossforyear
113 132

Total comprehensive income for the year
559 406

Earnings per ordinary share

FORTHEVEARENDEDIl DECEMBER

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Restated

2013 2012

pence pence

48.8 44.8

48.2 44.3
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FORTHE EAR ENDEIr1 LEULMEtE 2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash used by operations 10

Interest received io

Tax paid 21

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash fLows from investing activities

Dividends received from joint ventures 11 102 694

Net cash received from investing activities 102 694

Cash fLows from financing activities

Equitydividendspaid 2781 264
Repurchase of ordinaryshares 326 143
Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares 50 33

Decrease/lincrease in netfunding balancesduefromjointventures 10 447 317
Net cash used in financing activities 107 691

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ASAT1 000MBER
2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Non-current assets

Investmentsinjointventures
11 1266 1207

TotaLassets
1266 1207

Current LiabiLities

Taxation

TotaL LiabiLities

Netassets
1264 1206

CapitaL and reserves

Ca1ed upsharecapita
12 182 181

Sharepremiumaccount
1257 1208

Shares heW in treasury induding in joint ventures
7521 447

Capita redemption reserve

Transation reserve
40 87

Otherreserves
13 533 173

TotaLequity
1264 1206

The consotidated financiaktatementswere approved by the Board of Directors 26 February 2014

AJ Habgood
DJ PaLmer

Chairman
Chief FinanciaOfficer
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ConsoLidated statement of changes in equity

FORTHEYEAFtENDEDtl DECEMBER Shares Capital

Share Share heLdin redemption Translation Other

capitaL premium treasury reserve reserve reserves Totalequity

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

8atanceatl January2012 180 1176 308 159 62 1149

Totatcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 72 478 406

Equitydividendspaid 264 264
Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 32 33

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 143 143
Share ofjointventures increase in share

based remuneration reserve 16 16

Share ofjoint ventures settlement of share

awardsbytheemptoyeebenefittrust

Share of joint ventures disposal of

non-controlting interests

Equatisation adjustments

BalanceatlJanuary2ol3 181 1208 447 87 173 1206

Totatcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 47 606 559

Equitydividendspaid 278 278
Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 49 50

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 326 326
Share ofjointventures increase in share

basedremunerationreservenetoftax 25 25

Share of joint ventures setttement of share

awardsbytheemployeebenefittrust 21 21
Equatisation adjustments 28 28

BaLance at 31 December2013 182 1257 752 40 533 1264

CD

CD

CD
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Group accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost convention in accordance with applicable accounting

standards They report the consolidated statements of income

comprehensive income cash flow financial position and changes

in equity of Reed Elsevier PLC incorporated and domiciled in the

United Kingdom and have been prepared in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS as adopted by

the European Union and as issued bythe InternationalAccounting

Standards Board IASBI

The consolidated financialstatements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 159 Unless otherwise

indicated allamounts shown inthefinancialstatements are in

millions of pounds

The basis of the merger of the businesses of Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV is set out on page
69

Determination of profit

The Reed Elsevier PLC share of the Reed Elseviercombined results

has been calculated on the basis of the 52.9% economic interest of

the Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders in the Reed Elsevier combined

businesses aftertaking account of results arising in Reed Elsevier

PLC and its subsidiaries Dividends paid to Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders are other than in special

circumstances equalised at the gross level inclusive of the

tax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders

In Reed ElsevierPLCsconsolidatedfiflancialstatemefltsan

adjustment is required to equalise the benef it of the tax credit

between the two sets of shareholders in accordance with the

equalisation agreement This equalisation adjustment arises on

dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC to its shareholders and

reduces the consolidated attributable earnings by 47.1% of the

0lamount of the tax credit The accounting policiesadopted
in

the preparation of the combined financialstatements are set out

on pages lO2to 107

Investments

Reed Elsevier PLCs 52.9% economic interest in the net assets of the

combined businesses has been shown on the statement of financial

position as investments in joint ventures net of the assets and liabilities

reported as part of Reed Elsevier PLC and its subsidiaries Investments

in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method The results

of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses are set out on pages 9Bto 137

Foreign exchange transLation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange

prevailing on the date of the transaction At each statement of financial

position date monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the

statement of financial position date Exchange differences arising

are recorded in the income statement The exchange gains or

losses relating to the retranslation of Reed Elsevier PLCs 52.9%

economic interest in the net assets of the combined businesses

are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

translation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current and

deferred tax are charged or credited in the income statement

except to the extent that the tax arises from transaction or event

which is recognised in the same or different period outside profit

or loss either in other comprehensive income directly in equity

orthrough business combination in which case the tax appears

in the same statement asthetransaction that gave rise to it

Currenttax isthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or

recoverable based on the profit forthe period as adjusted for items

thatare not taxable or not deductible and is calculated using tax

rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the

date of the statement of financial position Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect

to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to

interpretation Provisionsare established where appropriate on

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts in the statement of financial position Deferred tax is

calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and which

are expected to applywhen the related deferred tax asset is

realised or the deferred tax liability is settled

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable

temporary differences but not recognised fortaxable temporary

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries associates and

joint ventures where the reversal of the temporary difference can

be controlled and it is probable that the difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future Deferred tax liabilities are not

recognised on temporary differencesthatarise from goodwill

which is not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that

taxable profits will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised and reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of

temporary differences that arise on initial recognition of assets

and liabilities acquired otherthan in business combination

Deferred tax is not discounted

CriticaL judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in the preparation of the combined financial

statementsare set out on pages lO5to 106

Standards and amendments effective for the year

As described on page 106 of the combined accounts the combined

businesses adopted IAS1 Employee Benefits revised with effect

from January2013 As required underthe revised standard

comparative figures have been restated Fortheyearended 31

December 2012 Reed Elsevier PLCs share of results of joint

ventures isfl4m lower and basic earnings pershare is l.2p lower

than previously reported On an adjusted basis earnings per share

is 0.7p lower than previously reported

With effect from January 2013 the combined businesses also

adopted various other standards interpretations and amendments

to IFRS none of which have had significant impact on Reed

Elseviers accounting policies or reporting

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

Recently issued standards amendments and interpretations and

their impact on future accounting policies and reporting have been

considered on page 107 of the combined financialstatements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Administritive expenses

Administrative expenses include 972000 2012 877000 paid intheyearto Reed ElsevierGroup plc undera contractforthe services

of Directors and administrative support Reed Elsevier PLC has no employees 2012 nil

EffecI of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings

Thetax credit equatisation adjustmentarises on ordinary dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC to its shareholders and reducesthe

consolidated profitattributableto ordinaryshareholders by47.1% of thetotalamountof the tax credit as setout in the accounting

policies on page 164

Auciitors remuneration

Audit fees payable by Reed Elsevier PLC were 29000 2012 28000 Further information on the audit and non audit fees paid by the

Reed Elsevier combined businessesto Deloitte LLP and its associates is set out in note 3to the combined financialstatements

Re ated party tra nsactions

Alltransactionswithjointventures which are related parties of Reed Elsevier PLC are reflected inthesefinancialstatements

Key management personnelare also reLated parties and comprise the Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC Transactionswith

key management personnelare setout in note 29tothe combined financialstatements

Finance income

2013

Cm

2012

Em

2013

Cm

576
Profit before tax

Tax at applicable rate 23.25% 2012 24.5% 134
Tax at applicable rate on share of results ofjointventures 136

Other

Tax expense/credit

Restated

2012

Em

532

131

134

165

CD

CD

to

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

DC

CD

CD

Finance income from joint ventures 10

Taation

2013 2012

Cm Em

UK corporation tax expense/credit

reconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of tax to the actuattotaltax expense is set out below
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

Equitydividends

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS PAID IN THE YEAR
2013 2012 2013 2012

pence pence Cm Em

Ordinary shares

Finalforpriorfinancialyear
17.Op l5.9p 200 191

Interimforfinancialyear
6.65p 6.Op 78 73

TotaL
23.65p 21.9p 278 264

The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed finadividend of l7.95p 2012 17.Op The cost offunding the proposed finadividend

is expected to be E208m No liabihty has been recognised at the statement of financial position date

ORDINAR DIVIDE NUS PAID AMI PROPOED RELATIItG TC THE NANC AL YEAR
2013 2012

pence pence

Ordinary shares

Interim paid
6.65p ó.0p

Final proposed
17.95p i/op

TotaL
24.60p 23.Op

Earnings per ordinary share EPS

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average

numberof number of Restated Restated

shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS

Imiuions Cm pence mOtions Em pence

Basicearningspershare
1172.2 572 48.8 1200.6 538 44.8

Based on 52.9% interest in totaloperations

ofthecombinedbusinesses 1172.2 587 50.1 1200.6 552 46.0

Ditutedearningspershare 1187.2 572 48.2 1215.1 538 44.3

The diluted EPS figures are cacuated aftertaking account of the effect of potentiatadditionatordinarysharesarlsing
from share

options and conditional shares
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EarningsperordinarysbareEPScontinued

The weighted average numberof shares isafterdeducting shares held in treasury Movements in the number of shares in issue net of

treasury shares forthe year ended 31 December2013 are shown below

NUMBE OFORDINAR SHARES Yearended3l December

2013 2012

Sharesin Shares in

issue net of issue net of

Shares in Treasury treasury treasury

issue shares shares shares

millions lmiuions tmiltions millions

Atstartofyear 1257.6 171.01 1186.6 1202.6

Issueofordinaryshares 9.4 9.4 6.7

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 41.91 41.91 23.3

Net release of shares bythe employee benefit trust 3.3 3.3 0.6

Atendofyear 1267.0 109.6 1157.4 1186.6

Weighted average number of equivaLent ordinaryshares during the year 1172.2 1200.6

Adiusted figures

Adjusted profit and earnings pershare figures are used by management as additional performance measures The adjusted figures are

derived as follows

Profitattributableto Basic earnings

ordinaryshareholders pershare

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Om pence pence

Reported figures 572 538 48.8 44.8

Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 15 14 1.3 1.2

Profit attributable to ordinaryshareholders based on 52.9% economic interest in the

Reed Elsevier combined businesses 587 552 50.1 46.0

Share of adjustments in joint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangibleassets 172 178 14.6 14.8

Acquisition related costs 16 1.4 0.7

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 0.6 0.4

Disposalsand other non operating items 10 0.9 4.6

Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets5 1591 44 13.61 3.7

Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit 51 4.2

Adjusted figures 633 593 54.0 49.4

movements on deferred tax liabilitiesarising on acquired intangible assetsthatdo notqualifyfortax amortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with theirglobal management structure
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended3l December2013

10 Statement of cash flows

Cm Em

Administrative expenses
t2

Cash used by operations

REc0NcILIArI0N0F NETFUNUNUBALANI FROM JOIN FFIruRR5 2013 2012

Cm Em

At start of year
949 632

Cashflow
447 317

Atendofyear
502 949

11 Investments in joint ventures

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

583 547

13 132
Share of results ofjoint ventures

Share of jointventures othercomprehensive loss

Share ofjointventures disposal of non-controlling interests

Share of joint ventures increase in share based remuneration reserve net of tax 25 16

Equalisation adjustments
13

Dividends received from joint ventures
102 694

Decrease/increase in netfunding balances duefrom joint ventures 447 317

Netmovementintheyear
59 49

Atstartofyear
1.207 1158

Atendofyear
1266 1207

Reed Etsevier PLC

sharehoLders share

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

3193 3235

583 547

RECONCILIATION OFADM1N1STItAT1VE EXPENSESTC CASH USED BY OPERATIONS
2013 2012

During the yearthe company received dividends offlO2m from Elsevier Reed Finance By

Summarised information showing totalamounts in respect of jointventures
and Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders 529% share is set

out below

Revenue

Net profit for the year

Totatjolntvefltures

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

6035 6116

1115 1049

Reed Elsevier PLCs share of joint ventures net profit attributable to parent companyshareholdersforthe year excludes the net profit

that arose directly in Reed Elsevier PLC of C4m 2012 E5m

Reed Elsevier PLCs othercomprehensive income includes loss of E13m 2012 E132m relatingtojointventures
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11 Investments in joint yen ures continued

Reed Etsevier PLC

Totatjointventures shareholders share

2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Cm Cm Cm

Totatassets 10495 11014 5552 5826

Total liabilities 18072 14788 5568
Netassets 2423 2314 764 258

Attributable to

Jointventures 2390 2280 764 258

Non-controlling interests 33 34

2423 2314 764 258

Funding balances due from joint ventures 502 949

TotaL 1266 1207

The above amounts for Reed Elsevier PLCs shareholders share of totatassetsand total liabilities exclude assets and liabilities held

by Reed Elsevier PLC but include the counterparty balances of amounts owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses Included

within Reed Elsevier PLCs share of assets and liabilities are cash and cash equivalents of E70m 339m and borrowings of

E1736m f2059m respectively

12 Share capitaL and shares heLd in treasury

CALLE 5F1 RE CAP TtiL ISSUCD AND FULLi PAil 2013 2012

Noof shares Cm No of shares Em

At start of year 1257597977 181 1250913565 180

Issue of ordinary shares 9438719 6684412

Atendofyear 1267036696 182 1257597977 181

Allof the ordinaryshares rank equallywith respect tovoting rights and rights to receive dividends exceptforshares held in treasuryby

the parent company which do not attract voting ordividend rights There are no restrictions on the rights to transfer shares

The issue of ordinaryshares relatestothe exercise of share options Details of share option and conditionalshare schemes are setout in

note to the Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements

At 31 December2013 shares held in treasury related to 101205372012 13451468 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares held bythe

Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benef it Trust EBT and 994468342012 57484914 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares held by the

parent company

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC shares which at the Trustees discretion can be used in respect of the exercise of share options

and to meet commitments under conditionalshare awards.At31 December 2013 Reed Elsevier PLC shares held by the EBlwere

f64m 2012 E84m at cost
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

13 Other reserves

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Em

Atstartofyear
173 t62

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
572 538

Share of joint
ventures

Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit pension schemes 21 155

Transferto net profit on disposal of available for sale investments

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges
34 37

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income
t2O 41

Increase in share based remuneration reserve net of tax
25 16

Settlementofshareawards
t21

Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve net of tax 11 11

Disposalof non-controlling interests

Equalisation adjustments
28

Equitydividendspaid
278 264

Atendofyear
533 173
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1L Cntingent liabiLities

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings ofjoint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier PLC as follows

171

.5

CD

.5

CD

Guaranteed jointly and severaLlywith Reed Etsevier NV

2013 2012

Em

3063 3595

Financial instruments disclosures in respect of the borrowings covered bythe above guarantees are given in note 18 tothe Reed Elsevier

combined financialstatements

15 Principal ointventures

CD

hoiding

Reed ElsevierGroup pLc

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18385 ordinary shares 100%

1-3 Strand 18385 ordinary shares

London WC2N 5JR 100000 7.5% cumulative preference non voting shares 100%

Holding companyfor operating businesses involved in

science medical risk management legaland business

publishing and organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalent to 50% equity interest

ELsevier Reed Finance BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 133 ordinary shares 100%

Radarweg29 205ordinaryEshares

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands Holding company

forfinancing businesses Equivalent to 39% equity interest

The shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVare owned by Reed Elsevier NV

16 Principal subsithary

holding

Reed Holding BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 191 ordinaryshares 100%

Radarweg29

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands

At31 December2013 Reed Holding BV owned 414678520124240838 shares of separate class in Reed Elsevier NV
The equalisatiori arrangements entered into between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVat the time of the mergergive

Reed Elsevier PLC 5.8% economic interest in Reed Elsevier NV

CD

CD

DC

CD

CD

CD

CD
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IL REED ELSEVIER PLC

Parent company balance sheet

ASAT
2013 2012

Note Cm Em

Fixed assets

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
309 309

Investments in joint ventures
2312 2310

2621 2619

Current assets

Debtors amounts due from joint ventures
502 949

502 949

Creditors amounts fatLing due within one year

Taxation

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
77 77

79 78

Netcurrentassets
423 871

Net assets
3044 3490

CapitaL and reserves

Called up share capital
182 181

Sharepremiumaccount
1257 1208

Shares held in treasury
693 367

Capital redemption reserve

Otherreserves
152 150

Prof it and loss reserve
2142 2314

SharehoLders funds
3044 3490

The parent company financialstatements were approved by the Board of directors 26 February 2014

AJ Habgood
DJ PaLmer

Chairman
Chief Financial Officer

Parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds

Share Shares Capital
Profit

Share premium hetdin redemption Other and loss

capitaL account treasury reserve reserves reserve Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

AtlJanuary2Ol2
180 1176 224 148 1879 3163

ProfitattributabletoordinarysharehOlders
699 699

Equitydividendspaid
264 264

Repurchaseofordinaryshares
143 143

Issue of ordinary shares net of expenses
32

33

Equity instruments granted to employees of

combined businesses

AtlJanuary2Ol3
181 1208 367 150 2314 3490

ProfitattributabletoordinarysharehOlders
106 106

Equitydividendspaid
2781 278

Repurchaseofordinaryshares
326 326

Issue of ordinaryshares net of expenses
49 50

Equity instruments granted to employees of

combined businesses

At31 December2013 182 1257 6931 152 2142 3044
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Parent company accounting policies

173

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared

underthe historical cost convention in accordance with UK

GeneraLlyAccepted Accounting Practice UKGAAPJ Unless

otherwise indicated allamounts in the financial statements are in

millions of pounds

The parent companyfinancialstatements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 159

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the

company has not presented its own profit and loss account

The Reed Elsevier PLC accounting policies under UK GAAP are

set out below

Investments

Fixed asset investments in the Reed Elsevier combined

businesses are stated at cost less provision if appropriate for

any impairment in value The fairvalue of the award of share

options and conditionalshares over Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary

shares to employees of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses

are treated as capitalcontribution

Principal joint ventures and subsidiaries are set out in notes 15 and

16 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements

Shares heLd in treasury

The consideration paid including directlyattributable costs for

shares repurchased is recognised as shares held in treasury and

presented as deduction from total equity Details of share capital

and shares held intreasuryare set out in note 12 of the Reed

Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements and note 27 of the

Reed Elseviercombined financialstatements

Foreign exchange transLation

Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded at

the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction

Taxation

Deferred tax is provided in fullfortiming differences using the

liabilitymethod Deferred taxassets are only recognised to the

extent that theyare considered recoverable in the short term

Deferred tax balances are not discounted

Note to the parent company financial statements

Invstments

Subsidiary Joint

undertaking ventures

Cm Cm

2308At January2012 309

Equityinstrumentsgrantedto Reed Elsevieremployees

AtlJanuary2Ol3 309 2310 2619

Equity instruments granted to Reed Elsevieremployees

At31 December2013 309 2312 2621

-n

DJ

in

CD

TotaL

Cm

2617

CD

.5

CD

CD
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Independent auditors report to the members of Reed Etsevier PLC

Opinion on ouraudit of the consoLidated and parent company

financial statements of Reed Etsevier PLC tthe Companyi

In our opinion

thefinancialstatementS give atrueand fairviewof the state

of the Companysaffairsas at3l December2013 and of the

consolidated profitand theircash flowsfortheyearthen ended

the consolidated financial statements have been property

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the

European Union

theparentcompanyfinancialstatementshavebeen property

prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice and in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

the financialstatements have been prepared in accordance

with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as

regards the group financial statements Article of the

lAS Regulation

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which

comprise the consolidated income statement the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income the consolidated cash flow

statement the consolidated statement of financial position the

consolidated statements of changes in equity summary of the

consolidated accounting policies and the related notes ito 16

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements is applicable

lawand International Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs as

adopted bythe European Union The parent companyfinancial

statements comprise the parent company balance sheet the

parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds summary

of the parent company significant accounting policies and the

related note The financial reporting framework that has been

applied in the preparation of the parent companyfinancial

statements is applicable lawand United Kingdom Accounting

Standards

Ourassessment of risks of material misstatement appLication

of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit

Given the nature of the Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier

NV legal structure our assessment of risks of material

misstatement materialityand audit scoping forthe Combined

Businesses equally appliesto the audit of the parent company

and the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC

Seepage l38forfurtherdetails

Scope of the audit of the financiaL statements

Anauditinvolvesobtaining evidenceabouttheamountsand

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of whetherthe accounting policies

are appropriatetothe Companys circumstances and have

been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the

directors and the overall presentation ofthefinancialstatements

In addition we read all the financialand non-financial information

in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the

audited financial statements and to identify any information that is

apparently materially incorrect based on or materially

inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of

performingtheaudit Ifwebecomeawareofanyapparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

implications for our report

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully
in the Directors Responsibilities

Statement the directors are responsible for the preparation of the

financialstatements and for being satisfied thatthey give atrue

and fairview Our responsibility isto auditand express an opinion

on the financialstatements in accordance with applicable law and

InternationalStandards on Auditing UKand Ireland Those

standards require usto complywith theAuditing Practices

Boards EthicalStandardsforAuditors

This report is made solelytothe companys members as body in

accordance with Chapter of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Ourauditwork has been undertaken so thatwe mightstate tothe

companys members those matters we are required to state to

them in an auditors report and for no other purpose Tothefullest

extent permitted bylaw we do not accept or assume responsibility

to anyone other than the company and the companys members as

body for our audit work for this report orforthe opinions we

have formed

We are required to communicatewith the Audit Committee

regarding among other matters the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings including any significant

deficiencies in internal controlthatwe identify during our audit

We are also required to provide the Audit Committee with

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence and to communicatewith

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence and where applicable

related safeguards

Going Concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors

statement contained on page 76 that the Company is going

concern We confirm that given the nature of the Reed Elsevier

PLC and Reed Elsevier NV legal structure our assessment of the

combined businesses ability to continue as going concern

equally applies to the parent company and the consolidated

financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC

However because not allfuture events or conditions can be

predicted this statement is not guarantee asto the Companys

ability to continue as going concern
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CD
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CD

Opinion on other matters prescribed bythe CompaniesAct 2006 In particular we are required to considerwhetherwe have

identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired
In ouropinion

during the audit and the directors statement that they consider

the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited the annual report isfair balanced and understandable and

has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies whetherthe annual report appropriatelydisclosesthose matters

Act 2006 and thatwe communicated tothe Audit Committee which we consider

should have been disclosed
the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors

Reportforthefinancialyearforwhichthefinancialstatements We have nothingto report in respect of these matters

are prepared is consistent with the financialstatements
Douglas King Seniorstatutory auditor

Matters on which we are required to report byexception For and on behalf of

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records DeLoitte LLP

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if Chartered Accountants and StatutoryAuditor

inouropinion London

United Kingdom
wehavenotreceivedallthe information and explanationswe

26February2Ol4
require forouraudit or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company or returns adequate forouraudit have not been

received from branches notvisited by us or

the parent companyfinancialstatements are not in agreement

with the accounting recordsand returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

CD

Dire ctorsremuneration

Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in

ouropinion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have

not been made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report

to be audited is not in agreementwith the accounting records and

returns Under the Listing Rules we are required to review certain

elements of the Directors Remuneration Report We have nothing

to report arising from these matters or our review

Corporate Governance Statement

Underthe Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of

the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the companys

compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance

Code We have nothing to report arising from our review

Our duty to read other in formation in the Annual Report

Underthe ISAs UKand Irelandwe are required to report to you if

in our opinion information in the annual report is

materially inconsistent with the information in the audited

financialstatements or

apparently materially incorrect based on or materially

inconsistent with our knowledge of the Company acquired in

the course of performing ouraudit or

is otherwise misleading
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5yearsummary

iAS19 revisedt51 As reported

2013 2012 2012 2011 2010 2009

Note Cm Em Em Em Em Em

Combined financial information

Revenue 6035 6116 6116 6002 6055 6071

Reported operating profit
1376 1333 1358 1205 1090 787

Adjusted operating profit 1749 1688 1713 1626 1555 1570

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 1110 1044 1069 760 642 391

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 1197 1121 1138 1060 983 982

Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financiaL information

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 572 538 552 389 327 195

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 633 593 602 561 520 519

ReportedearningsperordinarysharePeflCe
48.8 44.8p 114.Op 32.4p 27.3p l/.2p

AdjustedearningsperordinarysharepeflCe
54.0 49.4p SO.lp 46.7p 431ep 45.9p

Dividend perordinarysharepence 24.60p 23.Op 23.Op 2l.55p 2O.4p 20.4p

Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation and

impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill the netfinancing cost on defined benefit pension schemes exceptional

restructuring 2008- 2010 and acquisition related costs exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only and in respect of

attributable net profit reflect tax rate that excludes the effect of movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not

expected to crystallise in the nearterm and includes the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwilland

intangible assets Acquisition related financing costs and profit and lossfrom disposalgains and losses and other non operating

items are also excluded from the adjusted figures

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders and reported earnings pershare are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier

combined profit attributable to shareholders adjusted to equalise the benefit of the UK dividend tax credit with Reed Elsevier NV

shareholdersasa reduction in reported profits

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders and adjusted earnings pershare are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier

combined profit attributable to Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders

Dividend per ordinary share is based on the interim dividend and proposed finaldividend forthe relevant year

t5 Comparative figuresfor2Ol2 have been restated following the adoption of IAS19 Employee Benefits revised
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Parent company financiaL statements

In accordance with article 23621 of the Dutch Civil Code the

individual parent companyfinancialstatements of Reed Elsevier NV

on pages 194 to 198 are prepared under UK Generally

AcceptedAccounting PracticeUKGAAP.Theprofitattributable

to the shareholders of Reed Elsevier NVwas199m 758m
and netassetsas at3l December2013 principally representing

the investments in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed

Finance BVunder the historicalcost method and loans to their

subsidiaries were 4579m 4948 ml Free reserves asat

31 December20l3were 4329m 4701m comprising

reserves and paid-in surplus less shares held in treasury

Dividends

The Board is recommending an equalised final dividend of 0374

per ordinary share up 11% compared with the prioryear This

gives total ordinary dividends forthe year of 0506 12012 0467
up 8% on 2012 The final dividend will be paid on 23 May2014

Dividend cover based on adjusted earnings per share and the

total interim and proposed final dividends forthe year is 2.0 times

The Boards of the company and Reed Elsevier PLC have adopted

dividend policies in recent years in respect of their equalised

dividendsthat subjectto currency considerations grow dividends

broadly in line with adjusted earnings pershare whilst maintaining

dividend cover the numberof times the annualdividend is

covered by the adjusted earnings per share of at least two times

over the longer term

The total dividend paid on the ordinaryshares in the financialyear

was321m

Share capitaL

During 20138165731 ordinaryshares in the companywere

issued as follows

under convertible debentures at prices between 11.19

and15.87

under executive share option schemes at prices between

11.l55and15.825

Information regarding shares outstanding at3l December2013 is

shown in note 13 to the consolidated financialstatements

At31 December20l3the totalshares held in treasurywere

67451493 Of these 4992360 ordinary shares were held by the

Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust and 60895193

ordinary shares and 156394 shares to 1563940

ordinaryshares were held by Reed Elsevier NV

SubstantiaL hoLdings

As at 26 February 2014 based on the public database of and on

notification received from the NetherlandsAuthorityforthe

Financial Markets the company is aware of interests in the capital

and voting rights of the issued share capitalof the company of at

least 3% bythe following persons ororganisations

FIL Limited

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

Causeway Capital Management LLC

BlackRock Inc

CreditSuisseGroupAG

INGGroepN.V

Authority to purchase shares

At the 2013 Annual General Meeting shareholders passed

resolution delegating the authority to the Board to acquire shares

in the Companyfora period of 18 months from the date of the

AnnualGeneral Meeting of Shareholders and therefore upto and

including 23 October2014 forthe maximum amount of 10% of the

issued capital During theyear 24282106 ordinarysharesand

additionally 94053 shares to 940.530 ordinary

shareswere purchased underthis and the previous delegation of

authority Asat 31 December2013 therewere 65887553 ordinary

shares held in treasury representing 9% of the issued ordinary

shares Afurther3511668 ordinary shares were purchased

between January20l4and the date of this report

resolution to renew the delegation of the authority to the

Board will be submitted to the shareholders at the 2Ol4Annual

General Meeting

Corporate Governance

Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC are subject to various

corporate governance principles and best practice codes in

particular the Dutch Corporate Governance Code issued in

December2008 Dutch Code and the UK Corporate Governance

Code issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council in September

2012 UK Code Reed Elsevier NV maynotapplyfullythe

verbatim language of these codes but doesfullyapply the

principles and best practice provisions other than in respect of the

Dutch Code the following for reasons explained below

Best practice provision 11.2.5 Executive directors are required

to build up minimum shareholding and meeting the relevant

shareholding requirement is both condition of thevesting of

awards as well as pre-requisite to maintain
eligibility to

receivefutureawardsunderthemulti-yearincentives Reed

Elsevier uses long term incentive arrangements in the form of

awards of shares which mayvest afterthree years The intent

of this shareholding policy isto align the interests of senior

executives and shareholders This intent is in compliance with

the Dutch Code Shares received on joining Reed Elsevier in

compensation for benefits forfeited under incentive schemes

from previous employer are not to be considered as part of

the minimum shareholding inthis context

Best practice provision 11.2.8 Reed Elsevier has

arrangementsthatarecommensuratewith localand legal

requirements to ensure competitive employment offerto its

Board Members Executive directors have service contracts

under English lawthat provide for notice periods not exceeding

one year There are currently no executive directors with

employment agreements under Dutch law In the event of

dismissal notice is given in accordance with the agreed notice

period The notice period applicable to the service contracts of

executive directors is 12 months The payment during the

notice period may be mitigated if the director finds other

employment within this period The application of this

arrangement mayfallwithin the best practice provision that

remuneration in the event of dismissal may not exceed the fixed

component of one years salary There are no other severance

arrangements in place for the executive directors and none of

the service contracts contain severance pay arrangements

Although the principle that severance pay should not exceed

the fixed component of one years salary is supported there
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maybe exceptionalcircumstances wherethis maximum would

be manifestly unreasonable that could justify additional

compensation on termination forloss of variable remuneration

components Fulldisclosure on remuneration in event of

dismissal is provided in the Directors Remuneration Report

Best practice provisions 11.2.13 and 11.2.14 In view of their

detailed specificity and complexity and because of the

confidential or potentially commercially sensitive nature of the

information concerned individual performance targets and

achievements relevant forvariable executive remuneration

will only be disclosed in general terms

Best practice provision 11.3.4 and 111.6.3 The disclosure of

transactions where directors have conflict of interest as

required by these provisions shall be qualified to the extent

required underapplicable rules and laws pertaining to the

disclosure of price sensitive information confidentiality and

justified aspects of competition

PrincipLe 111.7 The remuneration of non-executive directors is

determined bythe Board in the context of the board

harmonisation with Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group

plc having regard forthe maximum per annum approved by the

general meeting of shareholders

Best practice provision lvii Appointments suspensions and

removal procedures for executive directors are set out in the

Reed Elsevier NV Corporate Governance Statement 2013 In

order to safeguard the agreed board harmonisation with the

Board of Reed Elsevier PLC the articles of association of Reed

Elsevier NV providethata resolution of the General

Shareholders Meeting to appoint an executive director other

than in accordance with the proposal of the Board shall require

majority of at least two thirds of the votes cast if less than

one half of the companys issued capital is represented at

the meeting Given the still generally low attendance rate

at shareholders meetings in the Netherlands the Board

believes that this qualified majority requirement is appropriate

for this purpose

Best practice provision IV.3.1 It is considered impractical and

unnecessary to provide access for shareholders to all

meetings with analysts and all presentations to investors in

realtime Price sensitive and other information relevant to

shareholders is disclosed as required or as appropriate and

made available on the website Presentations made following

the announcement of the interim and fullyear results are

simultaneously webcast Investor seminars are also webcast

Forfurther information on the application of the Dutch Code

see the Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NV

published on the Reed Elsevierwebsite www.reedelsevier.com

The Board

The implementation of the unitary board governance structure at

Reed Elsevier NVwas approved at the AnnualGeneral Meeting of

Shareholders in April2013 On May 2013 the articles of

association of Reed Elsevier NVwere amended and the unitary

governance structure became effective Reed Elsevier NV now has

unitary board comprising both executive and non-executive

directors At the same time it was determined that Executive

Board members would become executive directors and members

of the Supervisory Board would become non-executive directors

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier Group plc are

also unitary boards It is established board practice at Reed

Elsevier NV that the executive and the non-executive directors

meet together

Significant agreements change of controL

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier NV and Reed

Elsevier PLC states that upon change of control of Reed Elsevier

NV for these purposes the acquisition bya third party of 50% or

more of the issued share capital having voting rights should there

not be comparable offer from the offeror for Reed Elsevier PLC

Reed Elsevier PLC may serve notice upon
Reed ElsevierNVvarying

certain provisions of the Governing Agreement including the

governance
and the standstill provisions

There are number of borrowing agreements including credit

facilities that in the event of change of control of both Reed

Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC and in some cases

consequentialcredit rating downgrade to sub-investment grade

may at the option of the lenders require repayment and/or

cancellation as appropriate

Directors

The following individuals served as directors during theyear

Non-executive directors

Habgood Chairman

Elliott retired 24 April 2013

Hauser appointed 24 April 2013

Hennah

Hook senior independent director

asof23April2ol3

van Lier Lels

Polet

Sir David Reid retired 24April2Ol3

Sanford

van der Veer

At the Annual General Meeting held in April2013 Wolfhart Hauser

was appointed as non-executive directorwith effect from

24April 2013 Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid retired as

non-executive directors at the conclusion of the Annual General

Meeting in April2013

In September 2013 Duncan Palmer gave notice of his resignation

as Chief Financial Officer effective as of 25 September 2014 or

such earlier date as Reed Elsevier may designate The

Nominations Committee retained an externalsearch consultancy

to conduct search process in conjunction with the Boards to

identify suitable candidate to succeed Mr Palmer Following the

conclusion of the search process
and on the recommendation of

the Nominations Committee the Board selected Nick Luff as Chief

FinancialOfficer In January 2014 Reed Elsevierannounced that

Nick Luff will be appointed to the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC

Reed Elsevier Group plc and Reed Elsevier NVas Chief Financial

Officer subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual

General Meetings in April2014 The effective date of his

appointment remains to be confirmed but is expected to be no

later than 15 December2014

All directors will stand for re-appointment at the Annual General

Meeting in April2014

Executive directors

Erigstrom

Chief Executive Officer

Palmer

Chief Financial Officer
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Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are

given on pages 64 and 65 Details of the remuneration of the

Directors and their interests in the share capitalof the company
are provided in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages

78to94

FinanciaL statements and accounting records

The financial statements provide true and fairview of the state of

affairs of the companyand the group asof3l December2013 and of

the profit or loss in 2013 In preparing the financial statements the

Board ensures that suitable accounting policies consistently

applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates

have been used and applicable accounting standards have been

followed The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting

records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the companyand enablethem to ensure that

the financial statements complywith the Law The Board has

general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard

the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities

InternaL controL

As required under sections 11.1.4 and 11.1.5 of the Dutch Code the

Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the effectiveness of

the systems of internalcontroland risk management during the

last financial year The objective of these systems is to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives Accordingly they can only provide reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss The

outcome of this review has been discussed with the external

auditors The Board confirmed that as regards financial reporting

the risk management and control systems provide reasonable

assurance against material inaccuracies or loss and have

functioned properlyduringthefinancialyear

Directors responsibiLity statement

The Board confirms to the best of its knowledge that

the consolidated financialstatements prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the InternationalAccounting Standards Board and as adopted

by the European Union give true and fairview of the financial

position and profit or loss of the group and

the Report of the Board includes fairreviewofthe

development and performance of the business during the

financialyearand the position of the groupasat 31 December

2013 togetherwith description of the principal risks and

uncertainties that it faces

Neither the company nor the directors accept any liability to any

person in relation to theAnnual Report except to the extent that

such liabilityarises under Dutch law

DiscLosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the companys 2013 financial

statements the Board has taken steps to ensure that all relevant

information was provided to the companys auditors and so far as

the Board is aware there is no relevant audit information of which

the companys auditors are unaware

Going concern

The Directors having made appropriate enquiries consider that

adequate resources exist for the combined businesses to continue

in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that

therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the 2013 financial statements In reaching this

conclusion the Directors have had due regard to the combined

businessesfinancialpositionasat3l December2Ol3the

strong free cash flow of the combined businesses Reed Elseviers

abilityto access capital markets and the principal risks facing

Reed Elsevier

commentary on the Reed Elsevier combined businesses cash

flows financial position and liquidity forthe year ended 31

December 2013 is set out in the Chief Financial Officers Report on

pages 52 to 59 This shows that after taking account of available

cash resources and committed bankfacilitiesthat back up short

term borrowings none of Reed Elseviers borrowings fall due

within the next two years Reed Elseviers policies on liquidity

capital management and management of risks relating to interest

rate foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages

58 and 59 Further information on liquidity of the combined

businesses can be found in note l8of the combined financial

statements The principal risks facing Reed Elsevier are set out on

pages6oto62

Auditors

Resolutions forthe re-appointment of Deloitte Accountants BV as

auditors of the companyand to authorise the Board to determine

their remuneration will be submitted to the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting on 23 April 2014

Signed by

Non-executive directors

Habgood Chairman

Hauser

AHennah

LHook

van Lier Lels

Polet

Sanford

Bvan der Veer

Registered office

Radarweg 29

1043 NXThe Netherlands

Chamber of Commerce Amsterdam

Register file No 33155037

26 February 2014
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Executive directors

Engstrom

Chief Executive Officer

Palmer

Chief FinancialOfficer
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Consolidated income statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Restated

2013 2012

Note Cm

Administrative expenses

Share of resuLts of joint ventures
11 642 638

Operating profit

640 636

Finance income
19

Profit before tax
659 644

Tax expense
43

Profit attributabLe to sharehoLders
655 642

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FOR TH YEAR ENDED 31 DEE MBER
Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Profit attributabLe to sharehoLders
655 642

Share of jointventures other comprehensive lossforthe year
48 121

TotaL comprehensive income forthe year
607 521

Earnings per ordinary share

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Restated

2013 2012

Notp

Basic earnings per share
0.91 0.87

DiLuted earnings per share
0.90 0.87

Consolidated statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2013 2012

Note Cm

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash used by operations
10

Interest received

19

Tax paid

Netcashfrom/usedifloperatiflgaCtiVitieS
15

Cash fLows from investing activities

Dividends received from joint ventures
11 186 754

Net cash from investing activities
186 754

Cash Lows from financing activities

Equitydividendspaid
321 319

Repurchaseof shares
337 141

Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares
88 18

Decrease/increase in net funding batancesdue from joint ventures 10 370 313

Net cash used in financing activities
200 755

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ASAT31 DECE MBER
2013 2012

Note Cm Cm

Noncurrent assets

Investments in joint ventures
ii 1488 1455

Current assets

Amounts due from joint ventures

Cash and cash equivatents

TotaLassets
1494 1460

Current LiabiLities

PayabLes 12

Taxation 54 51

TotaL LiabiLities 60 58

Netassets
1434 1402

CapitaL and reserves

Sharecapitatissued 13 55 54

Paidinsurplus 2276 2189
Shares held in treasuryincluding injointventures 881
Transation reserve 131
Otherreserves 14 115

TotaLequity 1434 1402

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Paidin Shares held Translation

capital surplus in treasury reserves

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm

54 2171Balartceatl January2012

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear

Equitydividendspaid

Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 18 18

Repurchaseof shares 141
Share of joint ventures increase in share based

remuneration reserve 19 19

Share of joint ventures setttement of share awards by

theemployeebenefittrust

Share of joint ventures disposa of noncontrolling

interests

Equatisation adjustments

Exchange transation differencesBa 54 2189 571 42 228 1402

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 86 693 607

Equitydividendspaid 321 321
Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 87 88

Repurchaseof shares 337 337
Share of joint ventures increase in share based

remunerationreservenetoftax 29 29

Share of joint ventures setttement of share awards by

theemptoyeebenefittrust 24 24
Equatisation adjustments 34 34
Exchangetranslation differences 31

BaLance at 31 December2013 55 2276 881 131 115 1434

Other

reserves

Cm

572

Total

equity

Cm

1303

521
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Group accounting policies

These consolidated financialstatementS which have been

prepared under the historicalcost convention report the

consolidated statements of income comprehensive income

cash flow financial position and changes in equity of

Reed Elsevier NV incorporated and domiciled in the Netherlands

Unless otherwise indicated allamounts shown in the

financial statements are in millions of euros

As required bya regulation adopted bythe European Parliament

the consolidated financlalstatements have been prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS as adopted bythe European Union and as issued bythe

InternationalAccounting Standards Board IASB

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 181

The Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatements presented in

pounds sterling on pages 97to 139 form an integral part of the

notes to Reed Elsevier NVs statutory financial statements The

primary combined financial statements and selected notes are

presented in euros on pages 142 to 154

As consequence of the merger of the companys businesses

with those of Reed Elsevier PLC described on page 69 the

shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC can be

regarded as having the interests ofa single economic group

enjoying substantially equivalent ordinary dividend and capital

rights in the earnings and net assets of the Reed Elsevier

Combined Businesses The Combined Businesses are composed

of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BY and their

respective subsidiaries and joint ventures togetherwith the two

parent companies Reed ElsevierNVand Reed ElsevierPLC The

Combined Businesses are jointly controlled by Reed Elsevier NV

and Reed Elsevier PLC

The Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements are

presented incorporating Reed Elsevier NVs investments in the

Reed Elsevier Combined Businesses accounted for using the

equity method as adjusted for the effects of the equalisation

arrangement between Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC

The arrangement lays down the distribution of dividends and net

assets in such way that Reed Elsevier NVs share in the profit

and netassetsof the Reed ElsevierCombined Businessesequals

50% with allsettlements accruing to shareholdersfrom the

equalisation arrangementstaken directlyto reserves

Because the dividend paid to shareholders by Reed Elsevier NV is

equivalent to the Reed Elsevier PLC dividend plus other than in

special circumstances the UKtax credit received by certain Reed

Elsevier PLC shareholders Reed Elsevier NV normally distributes

higher proportion of the combined profit attributable than Reed

Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier PLCs share in this difference in

dividend distributions is settled with Reed Elsevier NV and is

credited directly to consolidated reserves under equalisation

Reed Elsevier NV can pay nominal dividend on its shares held

bya subsidiaryof Reed Elsevier PLC that is lowerthan the dividend

on the ordinary shares Equally Reed Elsevier NV has the

possibility to receive dividends directly from Dutch affiliates

Reed Elsevier PLC is compensated by direct dividend payments by

Reed Elsevier Group plc The settlementsflowingfrom these

arrangements are also taken directly to consolidated reserves

unddrequalisation

Combined financiaL statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

combined financialstatements are set out on pages 102 to 107

Basis of vaLuation of assets and LiabiLities

Reed Elsevier NVs 5O% economic interest in the net assets of the

combined businesses has been shown on the consolidated

statement of financial position as investments in joint

ventures net of the assets and liabilities reported as part of

Reed Jojntventures are accounted forusing the

equity method

Cash and cash equivalents are stated atfairvalue Other assets

and liabilities are stated at historicalcost less provision if

appropriate forany impairment in value

Foreign exchange transLation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded atthe rate of

exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each

statement offinancial position date monetaryassets and

liabilitiesthatare denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated atthe rate prevailing on the statement of financial

position date Exchange differences arising are recorded in the

income statement The gains or losses relating to the

retranslation of Reed Elsevier NVs 5O% interest in the net assets

of the combined businesses are classified as equity and

transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

transation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Taxation

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current and

deferred tax are charged orcredited in the income statement

except to the extent that the tax arises from transaction or event

which is recognised in the same ora different period outside

profit or loss either in other comprehensive income directly

inequity orthrough business combination in which case the

tax appears in the same statement asthe transaction that gave

rise to it

Currenttax isthe amount of corporate income taxes payable or

recoverable based on the profit forthe period as adjusted for items

that are nottaxable or not deductible and is calculated using tax

rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the

date of the statement of financial position Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect

to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to

interpretation Provisions are established where appropriate on

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising

between thetax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts in the statement of financial position Deferred tax is

calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and which

are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is

realised or the deferred tax liability
is settled
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised forall taxable

temporary differences but not recognised for taxable temporary

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries associates and

jointventures where the reversal of the temporary difference can

be controlled and it is probable that the difference will not reverse

intheforeseeablefuture Deferred tax liabilities are not

recognised on temporary differences that arise from goodwill

which is not deductible fortax purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that

taxable profitswill be availableagainst which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised and reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of

temporarydifferencesthatarise on initial recognition of assets

and liabilities acquired otherthan in business combination

Deferred tax is not discounted

CriticaL judgements and keysources of estimation uncertainty

Criticaljudgements in the preparation of the combined financial

statements are set out on pages 105 to 106

Standards and amendments effective for the year

As described on page 106 of the combined accounts the

combined businesses adopted IAS19 Employee Benefits revised

with effect from January2013 As required underthe revised

standard comparative figures have been restated Forthe year

ended 31 December2012 Reed Elsevier NVs share of results of

joint ventures is 16m lower and basic earnings pershare is 0.03

lowerthan previously reported On an adjusted basis earnings per

share is 0.01 lowerthan previously reported

With effect from January2013 the combined businesses

also adopted various otherstandards interpretationsand

amendments to IFRS none of which have had significant

impact on Reed Elseviers accounting policies or reporting

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

Recentlyissued standards amendments and interpretations and

their impact on future accounting policies and reporting have been

considered on page 107 of the combined financialstatements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV reflect the 50% economic interest that its shareholders have underthe

equatisation arrangements in the Reed Elsevier combined businesses accounted for on an equity basis

The Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatemeflts are presented in pounds sterlingwhich is the functionalcurrency of Reed Elsevier

Group plc UK registered companywhich ownsthe publishing and information businesses of Reed Elsevier The following analysis

presents
how the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV presented in euros are derived from the Reed Elsevier

combined financlalstatements

REEoELYEviERNvcoNsoLirEoPRoIi ATTRFIurAEILeToHAREHoLuERs
Restated

2013 2012

Reed Etsevier combined businesses net profitattributableto parent company shareholders in

poundssterling
1llOm 1044m

Reed Elseviercombined businesses net profitattributableto parent companyshareholders in

pounds sterling translated into euros at average exchange rates 31 Om 284m

Reed Elsevier combined businesses net profit attributable to parent company shareholders in euros 310m 284m

Reed Elsevier NVs 50% share of combined net profit attributable to shareholders
655m C642m

REED ELYEVIER NV CONSDLIDITED TOtAL EQUITY
2013 2012

Reed Elsevier combined shareholders equity in pounds sterling
239Om E2280m

Reed Elsevier combined shareholders equity in pounds sterling translated into euros at year end

exchange rates
2868m 2804m

Reed ELsevier NVs 50% share of combined equity
1434m 402m

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses includethe remuneration for present and former Directors of Reed Elsevier NV in respect of services rendered

to Reed Elsevier NV and the combined businesses Fees for NonExecutive Directors of Reed Etsevier NVof 03m 2012 03m are

included in remuneration Insofaras remuneration is related to services rendered to Reed Elsevier Group plc group
and Elsevier Reed

Finance BVgroup itis borne by these groups
Reed Elsevier NV has no employees 2012 nil

Auditors remuneration

Audit fees payable by Reed Elsevier NVwere 129000 2012 126000 Further information on the auditand non auditfees paid

by the Reed Elsevier combined businesses to Deloitte Accountants B.V and its associates is set out in note to the combined

financialstatements
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ReI.ated party transactoiis

All transactions with joint ventures which are related parties of Reed Elsevier NV are reflected inthesefinancial statements

Key management personnelare also related parties and comprise the Directors of Reed Elsevier NV The remuneration of key

management personnelare set out in note 29 to the combined financialstatements

Fir ance income

187

The Board of Reed Elsevier NV has proposed final dividend of 0374 2012 0337 The cost of funding the proposed finaldividend

is expected to be 252m No liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date

ORDINAR DIVLDENDS PAID AND PFOPOSED REL TINGTOTHE F1NANc1ALyEAR 2013 2012

cC

CD

CD

-n

CD

CD

CD

CD

Ordinaryshares

Interim paid 0.132 0130
Finalproposed O.374 0337

TotaL O.506 0467
Rshares

2013 2012

Cm

Finance incomefromjointventures 19

Taxation

reconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of tax to the actualtotaltax expense is set out below

Restated

2013 2012

Cm

659Profit before tax 644

Tax at applicable rate 25% 2012 25% 165 161
Tax at applicable rate on share of results ofjointventures 161 159

Other

Tax expense

Equitydvidends

DROINARDiVIDENDSiAIDiNTHEYEAR 2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm

Ordinary shares

Finalforpriorfinancialyear 0.337 0326 230 228

Interim forfinancialyear e0.132 0130 91 91

TotaL O.469 0456 321 319

Rshares
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

Earnings per ordinary share EPS
2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

average average

numberof number of Restated Restated

shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS

milLions Cm millions Cm

Basicearningspershare
717.6 655 0.91 734.0 642 0.87

Dilutedearningspershare
726.9 655 0.90 742.1 642 0.87

The diluted EPS figures are calculated aftertaking account of the effect of potential additional ordinary shares arising from share

options and conditional shares

The weighted average number of shares reflectsthe equivalent ordinary shares amount taking into account the shares and is after

deducting shares held intreasury Movements inthe numberof ordinaryshares orequivalentsfortheyearended 31 December2013

are shown below

NUMBE ORniNARY 5HAPE EQWVALFNTS
Yearended3l December

2013 2012

Ordinary Ordinary

share share

equivaLents equivatents

Ordinary
netof netot

sharesin Rsharesin Treasury treasury treasury

issue issue shares shares shares

miLLions millions ImiLLions ImiUionsl millions

Atstartofyear
726.0 43.0 44.2 726.8 735.8

Issueofordinaryshares
8.1 8.1 1.9

Repurchase of ordinary and shares
25.2 25.2 13.3

Net release of shares by the employee benefit trust
2.0 2.0 0.4

Atend of year
734.1 43.0 67.4 709.7 724.8

Weighted average number of equivaLent ordinary shares during the year
717.6 734.0

The average number of equivalent ordinary shares takes into account the shares in the company held bya subsidiary of

Reed Elsevier PLC which represents 5.8% interest in the companys share capital

At31 December2Ol3treasuryshares included 156394 shares 2012 62341 equivalentto 1563940 Reed Esevier NVordinaryshares

2012 623410

At31 December2013 4146785 shares 2012 4240838 were held bya subsidiaryof Reed Elsevier PLC .The sharesare convertible

at the election of the holders into ten ordinary shares each and each share carries an entitlement to cast ten votes They have

otherwise the same rights as the ordinary shares except that Reed Elsevier NV may pay
lower dividend on the shares
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Acjusted figures

189

Adjusted profit and earnings per share figures are used by managementas additional performance measures The adjusted figures are

derived as follows

.5

CD

.5

CD

Profit attributable to

shareholders

Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Basic earnings

per share

Restated

2013 2012

Reported figures 655 642 0.91 0.87

Share of adjustments in joint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 192 207 0.27 0.28

Acquisitionre 18 10 0.03 0.02

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 0.01 0.01

Disposals and other non operating items 11 64 0.02 0.09

Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets 1771 52 0.251 0.07

Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit 59 0.08

Adjusted figures 707 689 0.99 0.94

movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualifyfortax amortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with their global management structure

10 SLatemerit of cash fbwE

RECONC LiATiON OFAIiMINISTRATIVE EXPENS ES To CASH USED ey OPERATIONS 2013 2012

Cm

Administrative expenses

Net movement in payables 31

Cash used byoperations 31

RECONC LiATION OF NLT FUNDING BALANCES UE FROM JOINT VEN ruRES 2013 2012

Cm

CD

.5

CD

Atstartofyear 1397 1084

Cashflow 370 313

Atend of year 1.027 1397
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REED ELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2013

11 Investments in joint ventures

Restated

2013 2012

Cm Sm

Share of results ofjointventures

642 638

Share of jointventures other comprehensive loss 48 121

Share of jointventures disposalof noncontrolling interests

Share of joint ventures increase in share based remuneration reserve net of tax 29 19

Equalisation adjustments
341

Dividends received from joint ventures
186 754

Decrease/increase in net funding balances due from joint ventures 370 313

Netmovementintheyear
33 96

At start of year
1455 1359

Atendofyear
1488 1455

During the yearthe company received dividends of 186m from Elsevier Reed Finance By

Summarised information showing totalamounts in respect of jointventures
and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders 50% share is set

out below

Reed Etsevier NV

TotaL joint ventures sharehoLders share

Restated Restated

2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Sm Cm Sm

Revenue
7121 7523 3561 3762

Net profitfortheyear
1316 1290 642 638

Reed Elsevier NVs share of joint ventures net profit attributable to parent company sharehotdersfortheyearexCludeS
the net profit

that arose directlyin Reed Elsevier NVof 13m 2012 4m
Reed Elsevier NVs othercomprehensive income includes toss of 48m 2012 121m relating tojointventures

Reed Etsevier NV

TotaLjoint ventures sharehoLders share

2013 2012 2013 2012

Cm Sm Cm Sm

Totalassets
12594 13547 6295 6773

Total liabilities
9686 10701 5834 6715

Net assets
2908 2846 461 58

Attributable to

Joint ventures
2868 2804 461 58

Noncontrolling interests
40 42

2908 2846 461 58

Netfunding balances due from jointventures
1027 1397

TotaL
1488 1455

The above amounts for Reed Elsevier NVs shareholders share of totalassets and total liabilities exclude assets and liabilities held

by Reed Elsevier NV but include the counterparty balances of amounts owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses Included

within Reed Elsevier NVsshare of assetsand liabilities are cash and cash equivalents of 77m 2012 393m and borrowings of

1963m 2012 2386m respectively
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CD

CD

12 P3yabes

Included within payables are employee convertible debenture loans of 5m 2012 7m with weighted average interest rate of 1.95%

2012 2.65% Depending on the conversion terms the surrender of 200 parvalue debenture loans qualifies for5o Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares

13 Share capita and share heW in treasury

AUTHORISED No.of shares Cm

Ordinary shares of 0.07 each 1800000000 126

Rsharesof0.7Oeach 26000000 18

TotaL 144

ISSUED ND FiLLY PAl Ordinary Ordinary

Rshares shares Rshares shares Total

number number Cm Cm Cm

4303179 724077755 51 54At January2012

Issueofordinaryshares 1906470

At January2013 4303179 725984225 51 54

Issueofordinaryshares 8165731

At31 December2013 4303179 734149956 52 55

The issue of shares relatesto the exercise of share options Details of share option and conditionalshare schemes are set out in note 6to

the Reed Elseviercombined financialstatements

At31 December2013 41467852012 4240838 shareswere held bya subsidiaryof Reed Elsevier PLC The sharesare convertible

at the election of the holders into ten ordinary shares each and each share carries an entitlement to cast ten votes They have

otherwise the same rights as the ordinaryshares except that Reed Elsevier NV may paya lower dividend on the shares

At 31 December2013 shares held in treasury related to 49923602012 6990101 Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares held bythe

Reed ElsevierGroup plc Employee BenefitTrust EBT and 60895193 201236613087 Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares and

156394 shares 2012 62341 held bythe parent company

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier NVshareswhich atthetrustees discretion can be used in respectof the exercise of share options

andto meetcommitments underconditionalshare awards.At31 December2013 Reed Elsevier NVshares held bythe EBTwere 56m
2012 84mat cost

CD

CD
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7L REEDELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyear ended 31 December2013

1L Other reserves

Restated

2013 2012

Cm

At start of year
228

Profit attributable to shareholders
655 642

Share ofjointventures

Actuarialgains/losses on defined benefit pension schemes 24

Transferto net prof it on disposalof available for sale investments

Fair value movements on cash flow hedges
38 43

Tax recognised in othercomprehensive income 23 47

Increase in share based remuneration reserve of tax 29 19

Settlementofshareawards
24

Transferto net profitfrom cashflow hedge reserve of tax
13

Disposal of non-controlling interests

Equalisation adjustments
34

Equitydividendspaid
3211 319

Atendofyear
115

15 Contingent habihties

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier NVasfollows

2013 2012

Cm

Guaranteed jointLy and severaLLy with Reed ELsevier PLC 3676 4422

Financialinstruments disclosures in respectof the borrowings covered bythe above guarantees are given in note l8tothe Reed Elsevier

combined firtancialstatements
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16 Principal.jointventures

hoLding

Reed EtsevierGroupptc

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18385 ordinary shares

13 Strand 18385 ordinary shares 100%

London WC2N 5JR 100000 7.5% cumuLative preference non voting shares

Holding companyfor operating businesses involved in science

medical risk management legal and business publishing and

organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalent to 50% equity interest

Etsevier Reed Finance BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 133 ordinary shares

Radarweg 29 205 ordinaryEshares 100%

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands

Holding company forfinancing businesses Equivalent to 61% equity interest

The shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVand the nonvoting preference shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc

are owned by Reed Elsevier PLC

In addition Reed Elsevier NV holds shares with special dividend rights in Reed Elsevier Overseas By subsidiary of Reed Elsevier

Group pLc with registered offices in Amsterdam These shares are included in the amount shown under investments injointventures

and enable Reed Elsevier NVto receive dividends from companies within the same tax jurisdiction

list of companies within Reed Elsevier is filed with the Amsterdam Chamberof Commerce in the Netherlands

17 Approval.offinanciat.staLements

The consolidated financialstatementswere signed and authorised for issue bythe Board of Directors on 26 February 2014

AJ Habgood DJ PaLmer

Chairman of the Board Chief Financial Officer
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74 REED ELSEVIERNV

Parent company profit and Loss account

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEC YMBER
2013 2012

Cm

Administrative expenses

Dividends received from joint ventures
186 754

19
Finance income from joint ventures

Taxexpense

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders
199 758

Parent company baLance sheet

ASAT31 DECEMBER
2013 2012

Note Cm

Fixed assets

Investments in joint ventures
3606 3604

Current assets

Amounts due from joint ventures funding
1027 1397

Amounts due from joint ventures other

1031 1401

Cash

1033 1402

Creditors amounts faLLing due within one year

Taxation
54 51

Othercreditors
16

60 58

Netcurrentassets
973 1344

Net assets
4579 4948

CapitaL and reserves

Share capital issued
55 54

Paid-insurplus
2276 2189

Shares held in treasury
814 477

Other reserves
195 193

Reserves
2867 2989

SharehoLders funds 6579 4948

The parentcompanyfinanciatstatements Were signed and authorisedfor issue bythe Board of Directors on 26 February20l4

DJPaLmer

Chief Financial Officer

AJ Habgood

Chairman of the Board



Reed Etseyjer Annual Reports and FinanciaL Statements 2013

AtlJanuary2Ol2 54

Profitattributabletoshareholders

Equitydividendspaid

Repurchaseofshares 141 141
Issueofsharesnetofexpenses 18 18

Equityinstrumentsgrantedtoemployeesofcombinedbusinesses

AtlJanuary2Ol3
54 2189 477 193 2989 4948

Profit attributable to shareholders 199 199

Equitydividends paid 321 321

Repurchaseofshares 337 337

Issueofsharesnetofexpenses 87 88

Equity instruments granted to employees of combined businesses

At31 December2013 55 2276 814 195 2867 4579

Within paidin surplus an amount of 2099m 2012 2012m is free of tax

ii Other reserves relate to equity instruments granted to employees of the combined businesses undershare based remuneration

arrangements Other reserves do riot form part of free reserves

iii Free reserves of the companyat3l December2Ol3were 4329m 2012 4701m comprising reserves and paidin surplus less

shares held in treasury

Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The parent companyfinancialstatements have been prepared

underthe historical cost convention As permitted by 2362

subsection of the Dutch Civil Code for companies with

internationaloperations the parent companyfinancialstatements

have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice UK GAAP ensuring consistency The

financial information relating to the company is recognised in the

consolidated financialstatements

The parent companyfinancialstatements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 181

The Reed Elsevier NVaccounting policies underUKGAAPare set

out below

Investments

Fixed asset investments in the combined businesses are stated at

cost less provision ifappropriateforanyimpairmentinvalue

The fair value of the award of share options and conditional

shares over Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares to employees of

the Reed Elsevier combined businesses are treated as capital

contribution

Principaljointventures are set out in note 11 of the Reed Elsevier NV

consolidated financialstatements

Short term investments are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value Otherassets and liabilities are stated at

historicalcost less provision if appropriateforany impairment

in value

Shares heLd in treasury

The amount of consideration paid including directly attributable

costs forshares repurchased is recognised as shares held in

treasury and presented as deduction from total equity Details of

share capitaland shares held intreasuryare set out in note 13 of

the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements and

note 27 of the Reed Elsevier combined financial statements

Foreign exchange transLation

Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded at

the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction

Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full for timing differences using

the liability method Deferred tax assetsare only recognised to the

extent that they are considered recoverable in the short term

Deferred taxation balances are not discounted

195

Parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds

Share Shares

capitaL Paid-in heLdin Other Reserves

issued surplustil treasury reservesiij iii TotaL

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

2171 336 191 2550 4630

758 758

319 319
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

Other creditors

Othercreditors include 5m 2012 7m of employee convertible debenture loanswith weighted average interest rate of 1.95%

2012 2.65% Depending on the conversion terms the surrender of 200 parvalue debenture loans quatifiesfor50 Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares

ReconcU.iatlons to consolidated financial statements

reconciliation of the parent company profit attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated profit

attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under IFRS and presented underthe equity method is provided below

YEAR ENiED31 DECEMBER
Restated

2013 2012

Cm

Parent company profit attributable to shareholders
199 758

Share of results of joint ventures
642 638

Dividends received from joint ventures
1861 754

ConsoLidated profit attributabLe to sharehoLders using the equity method 655 642

reconciliation between the parent company shareholders funds prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated shareholders funds

prepared under IFRS and presented underthe equity method is provided below

ASAT31 DECEMBER
2013 2012

Cm

Parent company shareholders funds
4579 4948

Cumulative share of results of jointventures less cumulative dividends received from jointventures 1971 2.427

Cumulative currency translation adjustments
351 262

Cumulative equalisation and other adjustments
41 32

Share of treasury shares held by joint ventures employee benefit trust 67 94

Share of IFRS adjustments in joint ventures
602 602

Equity instruments granted to employees of combined businesses 1951 193

ConsoLidated sharehoLders funds using the equity method 1434 1402

Other matters

Transactions with Directors including share based remuneration costs are set out in note 29 to the combined financialstatements and

details of the directors remuneration are included in the directors remuneration report on pages 78to 94

Additional information

shares

Reed Elsevier NV has two types of shares ordinary shares of 0.07 nominalvalue and shares of 0.70 nominalvalue Each share is

convertible into 10 ordinarysharesand is entitled to cast 10 votes Otherwise it has the same rights as an ordinary share except that

Reed Elsevier NV may paya lowerdividend on it but notlessthan 1% of the nominalvalue ofan share

Profit aLLocation

TheArticles of Association providethatdistributions of dividend mayonly be made insofarasthe companys equityexceedstheamountof

the paid in capital increased bythe reserveswhich must be keptbyvirtue of the lawand maybe made in cash or in shares atthe proposalof

the Board Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares and on the class shares shall be made in proportion to the nominalvalue of each

share The Board may resolve that the dividend to be paid on each class share shall be lower than the dividend to be paid on each ordinary

share resolving at the same time what amount of dividend shall be paid on each ordinaryshare and each class share respectively

PROPOSAL FOR ALLOcATIOS OF PROFIT
2013 2012

Cm

Final dividend on ordinary shares for priorfinancialyear
230 228

Interim dividend on ordinarysharesforfinanctalyear
91 91

Dividend on shares

Retained loss profit
122 439

TotaL _______________
199 758
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Independent auditors report to the shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV

197

Opinion on ouraudit of the consoLidated and parent company

financiaL statements of Reed Etsevier NV tthe Company

In our OpiniOn

The financial statements give true and fairview of the state of

the Companys affairs asat3l December2013 and of its profit

and its cash flowsforthe yearthen ended

the consolidated financial statements have been property

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and in

accordance with Part of Book of the Dutch Civil Code and

the parent company financial statements have been properly

prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice and in accordance with Part of

Book of the Dutch Civil Code

We have audited the consolidated financialstatements which

comprise the consolidated income statement the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income the consolidated statement

of cash flows the consolidated statement of financial position and

the consolidated statement of changes in equityand the related

notes ito 17 includingasummaryofthesignificantaccounting

policies The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is

applicabletawand IFRSsasadopted bythe European Union.The

parent company financial statements comprise the parent

company profit and loss account the parent company balance

sheet the parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds

asummaryoftheparentcompanysignificantaccounting policies

and the related notes ito The financial reporting framework

that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company

financialstatementsisapplicableDutchlawand United Kingdom

Accounting Standards

Ourassessment of risks of materiaL misstatement appLication

of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit

Given the nature of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

legal structure our assessed risks of material misstatement

application of materiality and overview of the scope of ouraudit for

thecombined businessequallyappliestotheauditofthe

consolidated and parent company financial statements of Reed

Elsevier NV See page 138 forfurther details

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors responsibilities

statement the Board is responsible forthe preparation of the

financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the

European Union and for being satisfied that they give true and fair

view and for such internal control as they determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Our responsibility isto audit and express an opinion on the

financialstatements in accordance with Dutch Law including the

Dutch Standards on Auditing The standards require usto comply

with our respective Dutch professions ethical requirements

including the International EthicalStandards Board of

Accountants Code of Ethics We are independent of the Company

within the meaning of the relevant Dutch ethical requirements and

have fulfilled our other responsibilities underthose ethical

requirements We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion

We are required to communicate with the Audit Committee

regarding among other matters the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant auditfindings including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during ouraudit

We are also required to provide the Audit Committee with

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence and where applicable related safeguards

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement whether caused byfraud or error and perform audit

procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion

Reasonable assurance is high levelof assurance but is nota

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Dutch Law

will always detect material misstatement when it exists

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are considered

material if individually or in the aggregate they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated and parent companyfinancial

statements

As part of an audit in accordance with Dutch law we exercise

professionaljudgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughoutthe planning and performance of the audit We also

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated and parent company financial statements whether

due tofraud orerror design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for ouropinion The

risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud

is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve

collusion forgery intentional omissions misrepresentations or

the override of internal control

In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation of

the financialstatements in orderto design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances An audit also includes an

assessment of whetherthe accounting policies are appropriate to

the businesses circumstances and have been consistently applied

and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made bythe Board and the overall

presentation structure and content of the financial statements

including the disclosures and whetherthe financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in mannerthat

achieves fair presentation We obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence regarding the financialinformation of the Company and

business activities to express an opinion on the financial

statements We are responsible forthe direction supervision and

performance of the audit We remain solely responsible for our

audit opinion In additionwe read allthefinancialand

non-financial information in the annual report to identify material

inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to

identifyany information that is apparently materially incorrect

based on or materially inconsistent with the knowledge acquired

by us in the course of performing the audit Ifwe become aware of

any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we

considerthe implications forourreport
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Going concern

The financialstatements of the Company have been prepared

using the going concern basis of accounting The use of this basis

of accounting is appropriate unless management either intendsto

liquidate the Company orto cease operations or has no realistic

alternative but to do so

We have reviewed the Report of the Board on page 76 wherethe

Board has not identified material uncertainty that may cast

significant doubt on the Companys abilityto continue as going

concern We confirm that given the nature of the Reed Elsevier

PLC and Reed Elsevier NVlegalstructure ourassessmentofthe

combined businesses abitityto continue as going concern

equally applies to the parent company and the consolidated

financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV

However because not allfuture events or conditions can be

predicted this statement is not guarantee as to the Companys

ability to continue as going concern

Other LegaLand reguLatory requirements

Pursuantto the legal requirement under Section 2393 sub ate

andfof the Dutch CivilCodewe have no deficiencies to report as

result of our examination whetherthe Report of the Board to the

extent we can assess has been prepared in accordance with Part

of Book of this Code and whetherthe information as required

under Section 2392 sub at b-h has been annexed Furtherwe

report that the Report of the Board to the extent we can assess is

consistent with the financialstatements as required by Section

2391 sub4of the Dutch CivilCode

DeLoitte Accountants B.V

ASandler

Amsterdam

The Netherlands

26 February 2014
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5yearsummary

lAS19lrevedP31 As reported

2013 2012 2012 2011 2010 2009

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Combined financial information

Revenue 7121 7523 7523 6902 7084 6800

Reportedoperatingprofit 1624 1639 1670 1386 1275 881

Adjustedoperatingprofit 2064 2076 2107 1870 1819 1758

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 1310 1284 1315 874 751 438

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 1413 1379 1400 1219 1150 1099

Reed Elsevier NV consoLidated financial information

Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 655 642 658 437 376 219

Adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders 707 689 700 610 575 550

Reported earnings perordinaryshare 0.91 0.87 0.90 0.59 0.51 0.32

Adjustedearningsperordinaryshare 0.99 0.94 0.95 0.83 0.78 0.79

Dividendperordinaryshare 0.506 0467 0467 0436 0412 0400

Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation and

impairmentof acquired intangible assets and goodwill the netfinancing cost on defined benefit pension schemes exceptional

restructuring 2008- 2010 and acquisition related costs exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only and in respect of

attributable net profit reflect tax rate that excludes the effect of movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not

expected to crystallise in the near term and includes the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwill and

intangible assets Acquisition related financing costs and profit and loss from disposalgains and losses and other non operating

items are also excluded from the adjusted figures

Dividend per ordinary share is based on the interim dividend and proposed finaldividendforthe relevant year

Comparative figures for 2012 have been restated following the adoption of IAS1 Employee Benefits revised
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REED ELSEVIER COMBINED BUSINESSES

Reed Etsevier combined businesses

Summary financiaL information in US dollars

Basis of preparation

The summaryfinanciatinformation isa simptetranstation of the Reed Etseviercombined financiatstatements into US dottarsat

the stated rates of exchange Thefinancial information provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the

Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatements It does not represent restatement under US GAAP which would be different in

some significant respects

EXCHANGE RATE FOR TRANSLATION Statement offinanciat

Income statement position

2013 2012 2013 2012

USdollarstosterling
1.56 1.59 1.66 1.62

Combined income statement

FOR THEYE4R ENDED 31 IIECEMBER Restated

2013 2012

US$m US$m

Revenue 9415 9724

Operating profit
2147 2119

Profit beforetax 1866 1830

Net profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1732 1660

Adjusted operating profit 2728 2684

Adjusted profit before tax 2452 2340

Adjusted net profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1867 1782
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Cornbined statement of cash flows

FUR rH YE ENDEE31 DECEMEtER 2013 2012

US$m LLS$m

Net cash from operating activities 2162 2.237

Net cash used in investing activities 493 757
Net cash used in financing activities 24991 1594

Decrease in cash and cash equivaLents 830 114

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Atstartofyear 1038 1125

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 830 114

Exchange translation differences 11 27

Atendofyear 219 1038

Adjusted operating cash fLow 2657 2549

Combinedstatement of financial position

ASAT31 DECEMBER 2013 2012

US$m US$m

Non-currentassets 14376 13738

Current assets 3011 3624

Assets held for sate 35 481

TotaL assets 17422 17843

Current liabilities 6395 6347

Non-current liabilities 7000 7591

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 156

TotaLLiabiLities 13400 14094

Net assets 4022 3749

CD
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L4 REEDELSEVIERPLC

Reed Etsevier PLC

Summary financial information in US dollars

Basis of preparation

The summary financial information is simple translation of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements into US dollars at

the stated rates of exchange The financial information provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the Reed

Etsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements It does not represent restatement under US GAAPwhich would be different in some

significant respects

EXCHANGE RATES FORTRAN5LATIONOFTERLlNGi1l 2013

US$

Incomestatement
1.56

Statement of financial position
1.66

Consolidated income statement

ORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Restated

2012 2012

US$m US$m

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders
892 855

Adjusted profit attributable to 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses 987 943

Share of joint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets
2671

Acquisition related costs
25 13

Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 111

Disposals and other non operating items 16 88

Otherdeferred tax credits from intangible assets 248 70

Exceptional prioryear tax credit
81

Profit attributabLe to 52.9% interest in Reed ELsevier combined businesses 916 878

movements on deferred taxliabilities arising on acquired intangible assetsthatdo notqualifyfortaxamortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with thetrglobal management structure

DAEA PER AMERICAN DEPOSITARYSHARE ADS
Restated

2013 2012

uss uss

Earnings perADS based on 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses

Adjusted
$3.37 $3.14

Basic
$3.05 $2.85

Net dividend perADS paid in the year
$1.48 $1.39

Netdividend perADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear
$1.54 $1.46

Consolidated statement of financial position

ASAT31 DECEMBER
2013 2012

US$m US$m

SharehoLders equity
2098 1954

Adjusted earnings perAmerican Depositary Share is based on Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders 52.9% share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition related

costs disposal related and other non operating items the netfinancing charge or credit on defined benefit pension schemes exceptional

prioryear tax credits in 2012 only and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the nearterm

and include the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets Adjusted figures are additional

performance measures used by management and are described in note 9to the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements

Reed Elsevier PLC shares are quoted on the NewYork Stock Exchange andtrading is in theform of American DepositarySharesADS5

evidenced byAmerican Depositary Receipts ADRs representing four Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares CUSIP No 758205207

trading symbol RUK Bank of NewYork istheADR Depositary

2012

1.59

1.62
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Basis of preparation

The summaryfinancialinformation is simple translation of the Reed Elsevier NVconsolidatedfinancialstatements into US dollars at

the stated rates of exchange The financial information provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the Reed

Elsevier NVconsolidatedfinancialstatements It does not represent restatement under US GAAP which would be different in some

significant respects

2013 2012

US$C US$

1.29

1.32

Income statement 1.32

Statement of financial position 1.38

Consolidated income statement

FORTHEYEAI1ENDEDil DEcEMBER
Restated

2013 2012

US$m US$m

Adjusted profitattributable to shareholders 933 889

Share ofjoint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 253
Acquisition related costs 24 13
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 10
Disposals and other non operating items 15 83

Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets 234 67

Exceptional prioryear tax credit
76

Profit attributable to shareholders 865 828

movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualifyfortaxamortisation and in 2013

non-recurring deferred tax credits arising on the alignment of certain business assets with theirglobal management structure

DATA PEFAMERlCAN DEPOSITARY SHARE ADSI
-- --

--

Restated

2013 2012

uss uss

Earnings perADS based on 50% interest in Reed Elseviercombined businesses

Adjusted $2.61 $2.43

Basic $2.40 $2.24

Net dividend perADS paid in the year $1.24 $1.18
Net dividend perADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear $1.34 $1.20

Consolidated statement of financial position

AS 4131 ECEMBER 2013 2012

US$m US$m

Shareholders equity 1979 1851

Adjusted earnings perAmerican DepositaryShare is based on Reed Elsevier NVshareholders 50% share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition related

costs disposalrelated and other non operating items the net financing charge orcrediton defined benef it pension schemes exceptional

prioryear tax credits in 2012 only and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near term

and include the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets Adjusted figures are additional

performance measures used by management and are described in note to the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements

Reed ElsevierNVshares are quoted on the NewYork Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of American Depositary Shares ADSs
evidenced byAmerican Depositary Receipts ADRs representing two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares CUSI No 758204200

trading symbol ENL Bank of NewYork istheADR Depositary

CD

CD

Reed EI.sevier NV

Summary financial information in US dollars

EXCHANGE RATES FOF TRANSLATION OF EURO $Cll

CD

CD



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information

AnnuaL Reports and FinanciaL Statements 2013

The Annual Reports and Financial Statements forthe Reed

Elsevier combined businesses Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NVfortheyearended 31 December 2013 and the

Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NVare

available on the Reed Elsevierwebsite and from the registered

offices of the respective parent companies
shown on page 209

Additionalfinancial information including the interim and

full-year resultsannouncements Interim Management

Statements and presentations is also available on the Reed

Elsevierwebsite www.reedelsevier.com

The Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatemeflts set out in the

Annual Reports and Financial Statements are expressed in

sterling with summary combined financial information expressed

in euros The financialstatements of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV are expressed in sterling and euros respectively

Interim resuLts

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV no longer publish interim

results in hard copy The interim resuLts are available on the Reed

Elsevier website www.reedelsevier.com

Share price information

Reed ElsevierPLCs ordinary shares are quoted on the London

Stock Exchange

Reed Elsevier NVs ordinary shares are quoted on the NYSE

Euronext Amsterdam Stock Exchange

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares are

quoted on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of American

Depositary Shares evidenced by American Depositary

Receipts ADRs Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four

Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares Each Reed Elsevier NVADR

represents two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

The Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share

prices and the ADR prices may be obtained from the Reed Elsevier

website other online sources and the financial pages of some

newspapers

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION VISIT WWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM

Information for Reed EIsevier PLC

ordinary sharehoWers

SharehoLder services

The Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share register is administered

by Equiniti Limited Equiniti provides free online portal for

shareholders at www.shareview.co.uk Shareview allows

shareholders to monitorthevalue of their shareholdings view their

dividend payments and submit dividend mandate instructions

Shareholders can also submittheir proxyvoting instructions

ahead of company meetings as wellas updatetheir personal

contact details Shareview Dealing provides share purchase

and sale facility Equinitis contact details appear on page 209

ELectronic communications

While hard copy shareholder communications continue to be

available tothose shareholders requesting them in accordance

with the Companies Act 2006 and the companys articles of

association Reed Elsevier PLC uses the Reed Elsevierwebsite

asthe main method of communicating with shareholders

By registering theirdetails online at Shareview shareholders

can be notified byemailwhen shareholder communications

are published on the website Shareholders can also use the

Shareviewwebsite to appoint proxyto vote on their behalf at

shareholder meetings

Shareholders who hold their Reed Elsevier PLC shares through

CREST mayappoint proxiesfor shareholder meetings throughthe

CREST electronic proxy appointment service by using the

procedures described in the CREST manual

Dividend mandates

Shareholders are encouraged to have their dividends paid directly

into UK bank or building society account This method of payment

reduces the risk of delay or loss of dividend cheques in the post

and ensures the account is credited on the dividend payment

date dividend mandate form can be obtained online at

www.shareview.co.uk or by contacting Equiniti atthe address

shown on page 209

Equiniti has established service foroverseas shareholders in

over 90 countries which enables shareholders to have their

dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid directly

into their nominated bank account Furtherdetails of this service

and the fees applicable are available atwww.sharevew.co.uk or

by contacting Equiniti at the address shown on page 209

Dividend Reinvestment PLan

Shareholders can choose to reinvest their Reed Elsevier PLC

dividends by purchasing further shares through the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan DRIP provided by Equiniti Further

information concerning the DRIP facility togetherwith the terms

and conditionsand an applicationform can be obtained online at

www.shareview.co.uk/dividendsorbycontacting Equinitiatthe

address shown on page 209
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Share deaLing service

Atelephone and internet dealing service is available through Reed

Elsevier PLCs Registrar Equiniti which provides simple wayfor

UK-resident shareholdersto buyorselL Reed Elsevier PLC

shares FortelephonedealingcallO8456037o37between8.OOam

and 430pm Mondayto Friday andfor internet dealing log onto

www.shareview.co.uk/dealing You will need yourshareholder

account number shown on your dividend tax voucher

IndividuaL savings account ISA

single company ISAfor Reed Elsevier PLC shares is available

through Equiniti Details may be obtained from

www.shareview.co.uk/ISA bywriting to Equiniti at the address

shown on page 209or by calling their ISA helpline on 0871 384 2244

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates charity share donation

scheme for shareholderswith small parcels of shares whose value

makes it uneconomicto sellthem Details of the scheme can be

obtained from the ShareGift website at www.sharegift.org or by

telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737

Sub-division of ordinary shares and share consoLidation

On 28 July1986 each Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshare of El

nominalvaluewassub-divided intofourordinarysharesof25p

each On May1997 each 25pordinarysharewassub-divided into

two ordinaryshares of l2.5p each On January2008 the ordinary

shares of l2.5p each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new

ordinary shares of
l451/iisp nominalvalue for every 67 ordinary

shares of l2.5p each held

Capitalgainstax

The mid-market price of Reed Elsevier PLCs ordinary shares

on 31 March 1982 was 282p Adjusting forthesub-divisionsand

share consolidation referred to above results in an equivalent

mid-market price of 4O.72p for each existing ordinary share of

l45Viop nominalvalue

Warnincj to shareholders unsolicited

investment advice

Fromtimetotimeshareholdersmayreceiveunsolicitedcalls

from fraudsters

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure

investors into scams sometimes known as boiler room scams

They may offerto sell shares that turn out to be worthless or

non-existent orto buy shares atan inflated price in return for

an upfront payment

While high profitsare promised if you buyorsellshares in this

way you will probably lose your money

5000peoplecontacttheFinancialConductAuthorityabout

share fraud each year with victims losing an average of

E20000

How to avoid share fraud and boiLer room scans

The FinancialConduct Authority has issued some guidance

on how to recognise and avoid investment fraud

Legitimate firms authorised by the FCAare unlikely to contact

you unexpectedlywith an offer to buy or sell shares

If you receive an unsolicited phone call do not get into

conversation note the name of the person and firm contacting

you and then end the call

Check the Financial Services Registeravailable at

www.fca.org.ukto see if the person and firm contacting you

is authorised by the FCA If you wish to call the person or

firm back only use the contact details listed on the Register

Call the FCA on 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have any

contact details on the Register or if you are told that they are

out of date

Search the list of unauthorised firms to avoid at

www.fca.org.uk/scams

If you do buyorsell shares through an unauthorised firm you

will not have accesstothe Financial Ombudsman Service orthe

FinancialServices Compensation Scheme

Considerobtaining independentfinancialand professional

advice before you hand overany money If it sounds too good to

be true it probably is

Howtoreportascam

If you are approached byfraudsters please tellthe FCA using the

sharefraud reporting form atwww.fca.org.uk/scams whereyou

can find out more about investment scams You can also callthe

FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money to share fraudstersyou should

contactAction Fraud on 03001232040
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

nforrnation for Reed Ekevier NV

ordinary sharehoWers

Shareholder enquiries

Enquiries from holders of Reed Elsevier NV registered ordinary

shares in relation to share transfers dividends change of address

and bankaccountsshould be directedtothe CompanySecretary

of Reed Elsevier NV at the registered office address shown on

page209

Dividends

Dividends on Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares are declared and

paid in euros Registered shareholders in Reed Elsevier NVwill

receive dividendsfrom the company bytransmission to the bank

accountwhich they have notified tothe company Dividends on

shares in bearerform are paid through the intermediary of bank

or broker

Dividend Reinvestment PLan

By instructing their bank or intermediary shareholders can

choose to reinvesttheir Reed Elsevier NV dividends by purchasing

furthersharesthrough the Dividend Reinvestment Plan DRIP

provided byABN AMRO Bank NV Further information concerning

the DRlPfacility can be obtained online atwww.securitiesinfo.nl

ConsoLidation of ordinary shares

On January 2008 the Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share of 0.06

each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new ordinary shares of

0.07 each for every 67 ordinary shares of 0.06 each held

Information for Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV ADR holders

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADR Depositary is

BNY Mellon

Reed Elsevier PLCs CUSIP number is 758205207 and its trading

symbol is RUK Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four

Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares

Reed Elsevier NVs CUSIP number is 758204200 and its trading

symbol is ENL Each Reed Elsevier NVADR represents two

Reed ElsevierNVordinaryshares

ADR sharehoLder services

Enquiries concerning Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV

ADRs should be addressed tothe.ADR Depositary at the address

shown on page 209

Dividends

Dividend payments on Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

ADRs are converted into US dollars bytheADR Depositary

Annual Report on Form 20-F

The Annual Report on Form 20-F forthe Reed Elsevier combined

businesses Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed ElsevierNVisfiled

electronicallywith the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission.Acopyof the Form 20-F is available on the Reed

Elsevierwebsite orfrom the ADR Depositary at the address

shown on page 209
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Contacts

Reed Etsevier PLC Reed ELsevier NV

1-3 Strand Radarweg 29

London WC2N 5JR 1043 NXAmsterdam

United Kingdom The Netherlands

Tel 4402071665500 Tel 310204852222
Fax 44020 7166 5799 Fax 31 020 485 2032

Auditors

Deloitte LLP Deloitte Accountants BV

2NewStreetSquare Orlyptein 10

London EC4A3BZ 1043 DPAmsterdam

United Kingdom The Netherlands

Registrar Listing/paying agent

Equiniti Limited ABN AMRO Bank NV

Aspect House Gustav Mahlerlaan 10

Spencer Road 1082 PPAmsterdam

Lancing The Netherlands

West Sussex

BN996DA
WWW.SECURITIESINFO.NL

United Kingdom

WWW.SHAREVIEW.CO.UK

TeL0871 3842960

calls cost 8p per minute plus additional network charges

where applicable

Tel 44121 415 7047 callers outside the UK

Reed ELsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADR Depositary

BNY Mellon Depositary Receipts

P0 Box43006

Providence RI 02940-3006

USA

WWW.ADRBNY.COM

Email shrrelationsldbnymellon.com

Tel 888 269 2377

201 680 6825 callers outside the US



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANDOTHERINFORMATION

2014 FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2014 financial calendar

27 February PLC/NV Results announcernentfortheyearended 31 December2013

23 ApriL PLC/NV Interim management statement issued in relation to the 2014 financialyear

23 ApriL NV AnnualGeneral Meeting Reed Elsevier NV HotelOkura Ferdinand Bolstraat 33 1072 LH Amsterdam

24ApriL PLC Annual General Meeting Reed Elsevier PLC Millennium Hotel GrosvenorSquare London W1K2HP

30 ApriL PLC/NV Ex-dividend date 2013 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and ADRs and Reed Elsevier

NV ordinaryshares

May NV Ex-dividend date 2013 finaldividend Reed Elsevier NVADRs

May PLC Record date 2013 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and ADRs

May NV Record date 2013 finaldividend Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs

23May PLC/NV Paymentdate2ol3finaldividend
Reed ElsevierPLCand Reed ElsevierNVordinaryshareS

30 May PLC/NV Payment date 2013 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADRs

24JuLy PLC/NV Interim results announcement forthe six months to 30 June 2014

August PLC/NV Ex-dividend date 2014 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs

8August PLC/Nv Record date 2014 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs

28August PLC/NV Payment date 2014 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

September PLC/Nv Payment date 2014 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ADRs

The following tablesset out dividends paid or proposedi in relation to thethree financialyears 20112013

per PLC ordinaryshare per NVordinaryshare Payment date

Finaldividend for 2013 l7.95p
0374 23 May2014

Interim dividend for 2013 6.65p 0.1 32 29 August 2013

Final dividend for 2012 7.OOp 0337 23 May 2013

Interim dividendfor20l2 6.OOp 0130 31 August2012

Final dividend for 2011 5.9Op 0326 21 May2012

Interim dividend for2Oll 5.65p
0.1 10 26August 2011

proposed dividend to be submitted forapprovalatthe respective Annual General Meetings of Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Etsevier NVin April 2014

perPLCADR perNVADR Paymentdate

Final dividend for 2013
30 May 2014

Interim dividend for 2013 $0.41 $034948 September2013

Final dividend for 2012 $1 .02578 $086555 30 May 2013

Interim dividend for 2012 $037898 $032515 September2012

Finaldividend for 2011 $1 .00379 $082940 29 May2012

Interim dividend for 2011 $036860 $0.31 618 tember2011

paymentwlltbe determined using the appropriate EIUS$ and 0/US$ exchange rate on 23 May2014

Note The dividend rates shown for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and ADRs are gross dividend rates before the deduction of Dutch

withholding tax
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Principal operating locations

Reed ELsevier

1-3 Strand

London WC2N 5JR UK

Tel 4402071665500

Fax 44020 7166 5799

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands

Tel 31 0204852222

Fax 31 020 485 2032

125 Park Avenue 23rd Floor

New York NY 10017 USA

Tel 2123098100

Fax 2123098187

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION OR CONTACTIJETAILS

PLEASE CONSULT OUR WEBSITE WWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM

ELsevier

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands

WWW.ELSEVIER.COM

The Boulevard Langford Lane

Kidlington Oxford OX5 1GB UK

1600 John Kennedy Blvd

Suite 1800 Philadelphia

PA 19103 USA

3251 Riverport Lane

Maryland Heights MO 63043 USA

LexisNexis Risk SoLutions

1000 Alderman Drive

Alpharetta GA 30005 USA

WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM/RISK

Reed Business Information

Quadrant House The Quadrant

Sutton SurreySM2 5AS UK

WWW.REEDBUSINESS.CO.UK

LexisNexis LegaL ProfessionaL

125 Park Avenue 23rd Floor

NewYork NY 10017 USA

WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM

9443 Springboro Pike

Miamisburg OH 45342 USA

Lexis House 30 Farringdon Street

London EC4A4HH UK

WWW.LEXISNEXIS.CO.UK

Reed Exhibitions

Gateway House 28 The Quadrant

Richmond SurreyTW9 1DN UK

WWW.REEDEXPO.COM

ELsevier Reed Finance BV

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands

Tel 31 020 485 2222

Fax 31 020 485 2032
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